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XX APRIL 2017, THE NAME OF THE LICENSEE IS CHANGED TO THE STAR ENTERTAINMENT QLD LIMITED 
(010 741 045)
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QUEENSLAND 

CASINO LICENCE 
Casino Control Act 1982 (s. 22) 
Casino Control Regulations 1984 

the Minister administering the Casino Control Act 1982,

hereby issue in pursuance of the provisions of the said 

Act, a Casino Licence to 
NS IBO< MIDNIGrr, 3 �-���IDJ.AN:J .. LID,

�-1-'I� 
the owner of the hotel-casino complex referred to in 

Schedule A, in respect of the areas thereof constituting 

the Casino more particular described in .Schedule B
?

authorising su_bject to the said Act the conduct and 

playing in the said Casino of the games $pecified in 

Schedule C and under the terms and conditions specified 

in Schedule D. 
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THIS DEED is made on       2017 

                   

BY THE STAR ENTERTAINMENT QLD CUSTODIAN PTY LTD ACN 067 888 680 a 
company duly incorporated and having its registered office at 159 William Street, Brisbane, 
Queensland, 4000 ("the Trustee") 

 

RECITALS 

A. Pursuant to the Trust Deed, Jupiters Management Limited established the Trust. 
 
B. Pursuant to the Supplemental Trust Deed and Deed of Guarantee, Perpetual Trustees Queensland 

Limited agreed to act as trustee of the Trust. 
 
C. Pursuant to the Deed of Retirement and Appointment, Perpetual Trustees Queensland 

Limited retired as trustee and the Trustee was appointed trustee. 
 
D. Pursuant to the Deed of Undertaking - Manager, Jupiters Management Limited retired from its 

position as manager of the Trust and pursuant to clause 16.3 of the Trust Deed, the Trustee exercised 
its discretion to act as manager of the Trust. 

 
E. Clause 30.1(e) of the Trust Deed provides that subject to any approval required by law, the Trustee 

may by deed supplemental to the Trust Deed make any alteration, modification, addition or 
cancellation to the Trust Deed if such alteration, modification, addition or cancellation is considered 
by the Trustee not to be likely to become prejudicial to the interests of any of the Unit Holders and 
is recommended by the manager. 

 
F. Clause 16.3A(b) of the Trust Deed provides that during all times when the Trustee is acting as the 

manager under the Trust Deed, where the Trust Deed requires the Trustee or the manager to act 
only on the recommendation, determination, decision or direction of or from the other, that 
recommendation, determination, decision or direction will not be required. 
 

G. The Trustee considers that the amendment to the Trust Deed in the manner set out in this Deed is 
not likely to become prejudicial to the interests of any of the Unit Holders. 
 

H. The Trustee is acting as manager under the Trust Deed. 
 

I. The Trustee amends the Trust Deed in the manner set out in this deed. 
 
 
OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 
1  DEFINITIONS 
 

"Deed   of   Retirement and Appointment” means the Deed of Retirement and Appointment 
dated 3 July 1995 between Jupiters Management Limited, Perpetual Trustees Queensland 
Limited, Jupiters Limited and Jupiters Custodian Pty Ltd. 
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"Deed of Undertaking - Manager" means the Deed of Undertaking -Manager (Trust Deed) 
dated on or about 21 April 1995 between the State of Queensland, Jupiters Limited and Jupiters 
Custodian Pty Ltd. 
 
"Eighth Supplemental Deed" means the Eighth Supplemental Deed dated 26 June 1997 by 
Jupiters Custodian Pty Ltd. 
 
"Fifth Supplemental Deed" means the Fifth Supplemental Deed dated 4 November 1991 
between Perpetual Trustees Queensland Limited and Jupiters Management Limited. 
 
"Fourth Supplemental Deed" means the Fourth Supplemental Deed dated 25 September 1991 
between Perpetual Trustees Queensland Limited and Jupiters Management Limited. 
 
"Second Supplemental Deed” means the Second Supplemental Trust Deed dated 20 October 
1983 between Perpetual Trustees Queensland Limited and Jupiters Management Limited. 
 
"Seventh Supplemental Deed" means the Seventh Supplemental Deed dated 14 June 1995 
between Perpetual Trustees Queensland Limited and Jupiters Management Limited. 
 
"Sixth Supplemental Deed" means the Sixth Supplemental Deed dated 4 November 1991 
between Perpetual Trustees Queensland Limited and Jupiters Management Limited. 
 
"Supplemental Trust Deed and Deed of Guarantee" means the deed dated 30 June 1983 
between Perpetual Trustees Queensland Limited, Jupiters Management Limited and Perpetual 
Trustees Australia Limited. 
 
"Third Supplemental Deed" means the Third Supplemental Deed dated 16 May 1988 
between Perpetual Trustees Queensland Limited and Jupiters Management Limited. 
 
"Trust" means Jupiters Trust (formerly Jupiters Property Trust). 
 
"Trust Deed" means the trust deed dated 21 April 1983 between Jupiters Management Limited 
and the Trustees Executors & Agency Company Limited as amended by the Supplemental Trust 
Deed and Deed of Guarantee, the Second Supplemental Deed, the Third Supplemental Deed, 
the Fourth Supplemental Deed, the Fifth Supplemental Deed, the Sixth Supplemental Deed, the 
Seventh Supplemental Deed and the Eighth Supplemental Deed. 
 
"Trust Fund" has the same meaning given to that term in the Trust Deed.  
 
"Unit Holders" has the same meaning given to that term in the Trust Deed. 

 
2 AMENDMENT OF TRUST DEED  
 

The Trust Deed is amended by: 

(a) deleting the words “JUPITERS TRUST” from the heading of the Trust Deed and 
replacing them with the words “THE STAR ENTERTAINMENT GOLD COAST 
TRUST”; 

(b)        deleting the words “9th Floor, Niecon Tower, 17 Victoria Avenue, Broadbeach” from 
the description of the parties at the commencement of the Trust Deed and replacing 
them with the following words “159 William Street, Brisbane”;  

(c) deleting the words “Jupiters Trust” from recital B and replacing them with the words 
“The Star Entertainment Gold Coast Trust”. 
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3  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRUSTEE 

The Trustee acknowledges and agrees that the rights of the Unit Holders in respect of the 
Trust fund and the interests of the Unit Holders in the Trust fund (as they were immediately 
prior to the date of execution of this deed) are preserved and are not diminished or intended to 
be diminished under this deed. 

 

EXECUTION 

Executed as a deed in the State of Queensland. 

 

Executed by THE STAR )  
ENTERTAINMENT QLD 
CUSTODIAN PTY LTD ACN 067 888 
680 in accordance with section 127 of the 
Corporations Act 2001 

) 
) 
) 
) 

 

 

Signature of director  Signature of director/company secretary 
 
 

  

   
Name of director  Name of director/company secretary 
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

AMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

# Condition Timing 
GENERAL MATTERS 

1. 
 

Development to be generally in accordance with specified plans/drawings 
 
The development must be carried out generally in accordance with the plans/drawing 
prepared by Cottee Parker Architects listed below:  
 

# Plan no.  Rev.  Title Date 
1 SD1.1002 021 Site Plan 21/07/1704/05/16 
2 SD1.2010 01 Floor Plan Level 00 21/07/17 
32 SD1.2010.1 032 Floor Plan Level 00 

Part 1 
21/07/1725/07/16 

43 SD1.2010.2 032 Floor Plan Level 00 
Part 2 

21/07/1725/07/16 

54 SD1.2011.M 032 Floor Plan Level 01M 21/07/1728/07/16 
65 SD1.2012 032 Floor Plan Level 02 21/07/1728/07/16 
7 SD1.2012.M 01 Floor Plan Level 02M 21/07/17 
86 SD1.2013 021 Floor Plan Level03 

Concourse 
21/07/1704/05/16 

97 SD1.2014 032 Floor Plan Level 04 21/07/1725/07/16 
10
8 

SD1.2015 023 Floor Plan Level 05 21/07/1728/07/16 

11
9 

SD1.2016 032 Floor Plan Level 06 21/07/1728/07/16 

12
0 

SD1.2017 032 Floor Plan Level 07 21/07/1728/07/16 

13
1 

SD1.2018 021 Floor Plan Level 08 
Podium 

21/07/1704/05/16 

14
2 

SD1.2019 021 Floor Plan Level 9-22 21/07/1704/05/16 

15
3 

SD1.2033 021 Floor Plan Level 10-20 
Typical Hotel Floor23 

21/07/1704/05/16 

16
4 

SD1.2035 043 Floor Plan Level 215-
26 

21/07/1713/05/16 

17
5 

SD1.2067 032 Floor Plan Level 22 
Rec Deck57 

21/07/1713/05/16 

18
6 

SD1.2068 032 Floor Plan Level 2358-
60 

21/07/1713/05/16 

19
7 

SD1.2071 021 Floor Plan Level 61-
24-55 Typical 
Apartment FloorRoof 

21/07/1704/05/16 

20 SD1.2072 01 Floor Plan Level 56 
Roof Deck 

21/07/17 

21
18 

SD1.3001 043 Tower Elevations 21/07/1728/07/16 

22
19 

SD1.3002 043 Tower Elevations 21/07/1728/07/16 

23
0 

SD1.3003 032 Podium Elevations 21/07/1728/07/16 

24
1 

SD1.3004 032 Podium Elevations 21/07/1728/07/16 

25
2 

SD1.3101 021 Sections 21/07/1704/05/16 

At all times. 
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# Condition Timing 
26
3 

SD1.3102 021 Podium Sections 21/07/1704/05/16 

27
4 

SD1.3103 021 Podium Sections 21/07/1704/05/16 

28
5 

SD1.3107 021 Podium Section 
Through Facade 

21/07/1728/07/16 

 
The conditions of this approval are to be read in conjunction with these plans. Where a 
conflict occurs between the conditions of this approval and the plans/drawings, the 
conditions of this approval shall take precedence.  
 
 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING CONTRIBUTIONS 
9. Infrastructure Contributions 

 
Pay to the Council of the City of Gold Coast (Council) a monetary contribution towards 
the cost of the provision of infrastructure in accordance with Council's Charges 
Resolution. 
 
The current applicable charge is: 
 
Total levied charge payable $8,299,231.708,554,032.90 

+ ANNUAL ADJUSTMENTS 
AND/OR REVIEWS 
 
The above charge will automatically increase by the lesser of the following: 
 
a. The difference between the levied charge and the maximum adopted charge the 

local government could have levied for the development when the charge is paid; 
and 

b. The increase for the PPI index for the period starting on the day the levied charge 
was levied and ending on the day it is paid, adjusted by reference to the 3-yearly 
PPI index average. 

 
‘3-yearly PPI index average’ and ‘PPI index’ have the meanings given in the 
Sustainable Planning Act 201609. 
 
As the levied charge amount is current at the date of issue, the total charges due at the 
date of payment may be greater. 

Total payable prior to 
the use commencing, 
issue of certification 
of classification or 
final plumbing 
inspection, 
whichever occurs 
first.  

CAR PARKING AND ACCESS 
10. Off-street car parking facilities 

 
a. Off-street car parking facilities must be designed, constructed and maintained in 

accordance with AS2890.1 (latest version). 
b. Off-street facilities for car parking must only be used for vehicle parking.  
c. A minimum total of 3518 additional off-street car parking spaces must be provided 

on-site in an unbundled arrangement. , where at least 417 spaces are provided for 
residents, 27 spaces for visitors and 74 spaces for the short term accommodation 
(hotel).  

d. Off-street car parking facilities must be drained, sealed and line marked.  
 
Information Note: Any unbundled car parking unsold to a residential carpark allocation 
can be made available for use by all other activities within the integrated resort 
complex (i.e residential apartments, hotel, casino and resort users). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

11. Tandem car parking spaces  
 
Tandem car parking spaces must be allocated to residents of the same unit only. 
 

At all times.  Commented [DC1]: To be deleted – plans no longer 
include tandem car parking. 
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# Condition Timing 
 

12. Freely accessible visitor parking at ground level  
 
The 19 visitor parking spaces at ground level (Level 00) must be accessible to bona fide 
visitors for the duration of any visit to the site. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

13. Intercom system for visitor parking at level 02  
 
An intercom system must be installed and maintained, linking each of the dwellings with 
the security gate to provide access for visitors to the visitor car parking spaces located 
on Level 02. 
 
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use. 

14. Signage for visitor car parking spaces 
 
All visitor car parking spaces must be clearly identifiable through the provision of signage 
denoting “Visitor Parking”. 
 
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises and then 
maintained at all 
times.  

16. Bicycle parking  
 

a. Bicycle parking facilities must be provided to the satisfaction of the Minister, at no 
cost to Council and maintained in accordance with:  

i. a minimum of 106352 x Class 2 bicycle parking spaces for residents; 
ii. a minimum of 3620 x Class 3 bicycle parking spaces for visitors to be 

provided in a freely accessible location at ground level; and 
iii. AS2890.3.  

b. The bicycle parking spaces are to:  
i. enable wheels and frame to be located to the device without damaging the 

bicycle; 
ii. be located outside pedestrian movement paths; 
iii. be accessible from the road; 
iv. be arranged so that parking and unparking manoeuvres will not damage 

adjacent bicycles 
v. be protected from manoeuvring motor vehicles and opening car doors; 
vi. be as close as possible to the cyclists ultimate destination; 
vii. be well lit by appropriate existing or new lighting; and 
viii. be protected from the weather. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

HYDRAULICS 
39. Certification of earthworks compliance with hydraulic report 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister a certification from a 
Registered Professional Engineer Queensland (RPEQ) specialising in hydraulics 
stating that the bulk earthworks comply with the approved hydraulic report, being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Plan of Development, Flooding and 
Hydraulics Impact Assessment Revision 052”’ (Report Not: F0003-AA0090029-AAR 
dated 15 September 201709/05/16 prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd) and 
no loss of flood plain storage has occurred as a result of the earthworks. The 
certification must be accompanied by calculations and as constructed data that:  
 
a. includes existing and proposed triangulated surface meshes which can be 

produced by computer terrain modelling software packages such as Civil-Cad, 12D 
or KEAYS; and  

b. has been compared with the pre-development surface levels to ensure that no loss 
of floodplain storage has occurred.   

The certification must 
be submitted to 
Council immediately 
after completion of 
the bulk earthworks.  

STORMWATER AND WATER QUALITY 
43. Stormwater management plan to be complied with 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialised in stormwater management confirming that all works have been carried out 

The certification must 
be submitted prior to 
the commencement 
of the ‘on 

Commented [DC2]: To be deleted – visitor parking is to be 
provided in combination with the pooled public parking. 

Commented [DC3]: To be deleted- visitor parking no 
longer provided within a secure area of the car park. 

Commented [DC4]: To be deleted – designated visitor 
parking no longer provided. 
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# Condition Timing 
and completed in accordance with the approved stormwater management plan being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Plan of Development, Site Based 
Stormwater Management Plan Revision 051 (Report Not: F0009-AA0090029-AAR 
dated 157/095/201716 prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacitic Pty Ltd).  
 
Information note: this condition is non-trunk infrastructure. 
 

maintenance’ period 
(whichever occurs 
first) or, prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises. 

44 Certification that stormwater management treatment train implemented 
 
The Trustee must provide to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialising in stormwater that the stormwater management treatment train in the 
approved stormwater management plan, (“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 
1 Plan of Development, Site Based Stormwater Management Plan Revision 051 (Report 
Not: F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 17/05/16 15/09/2017 prepared by Arcadis Australia 
Paciftic Pty Ltd”), and associated design drawings has been installed on-site and is 
functioning as designed. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

45 SQIDs maintenance management plan 
 
a. A maintenance management plan for stormwater quality improvement devices 

(SQIDs) for the Site must be prepared by a qualified professional (RPEQ or 
equivalent) at the Trustee’s expense and in accordance with the City Plan Policy – 
Land Development Guidelines. 
 

b. The Trustee shall be responsible for the maintenance and monitoring of the bio-
retention basin, and associated structures serving the basins, during both 
construction and operational phases of the development at no cost to the Council.  

 
 

At all times. 

45A Certification of performance of the treatment train 
 
The Trustee/owner must submit to Council and to the Minister certification signed by the 
qualified professional (RPEQ or equivalent) confirming the following: 
 
a. The proposed treatment train including the proprietary device will achieve pollutants 

removal efficiency to satisfy Council’s water quality objectives as outlined in the City 
Plan Policy - Land Development Guidelines.  

a.b. The signing person must acknowledge that he/she is aware that the Council of the 
City of Gold Coast relies upon his/her certification in approving the above stormwater 
management plan and associated treatment train including the proprietary device. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
works on-site.   

45B Monitoring of the proprietary treatment devices 
 
a. The Trustee/owner must carry out monitoring of the performance of the proprietary 

stormwater treatment devices as adopted in the approved stormwater management 
plan for two years at no cost to Council. Annual report of the monitoring and 
subsequent results shall be prepared by a suitably qualified professional (RPEQ or 
equivalent) specialised in stormwater and must be submitted to Council for record 
keeping purposes. 
 
Alternatively, the Trustee/owner shall submit a certification or endorsement letter 
from an independent expert / peer reviewer based on the testing / monitoring results 
of the proprietary devices confirming the performance of the devices in relation to 
Council’s adopted protocol (August 2015) requirements, to discontinue the ongoing 
monitoring. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

45C Maintenance of stormwater management devices 
 
a. Prior to commencement of the use of the premises, a site-specific stormwater quality 

improvement device (SQID) maintenance management plan (MMP) must be 
prepared by a suitably qualified professional, consistent with the maintenance 
requirements of the devices in the proposed treatment train, and submitted to 
Council in a satisfactory manner. The approved MMP must be included in the 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

Commented [DC5]: To be deleted – replaced by 
conditions 45A- 45C. The new conditions are required 
because the bio-retention systems currently the subject of 
condition 45 have been replaced by a proprietary device – 
Stormwater 360. These proprietary devices have additional 
monitoring and certification requirements that are covered 
by the recommended new conditions. 
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# Condition Timing 
Trustee or Community Management Plan / Building Management Statement as 
required.  
 
The MMP must address the following: 
 
i. The MMP must include all associated cost related to the device (e.g. installation, 
inspection and replacement/maintenance, reporting, health and safety plans, 
training, area of land required to install the device etc.); 
ii. The MMP must include the lifecycle cost of the proposed treatment devices. 
 

b. The Trustee / legal authority must enter into a long-term maintenance agreement 
with the proprietor or an appropriate entity for the life of the development. A copy of 
the maintenance agreement must be submitted to council for record prior to 
commencement of the use of the premises; 
 

c. The Trustee / legal authority shall submit to Council certification from a RPEQ every 
year for the life of the development confirming that the cartridges have been replaced 
and functioning as designed. 

 
d. The Trustee / legal authority of the development shall be responsible for monitoring 

and maintaining the stormwater management devices during both construction and 
operational phases at no cost to the Council. 
 

e. In case of failure to achieve the designed pollutant load reduction target during the 
operational phase of the development, the Trustee / legal authority must be 
responsible to replace the proprietary device (Stormwater360 StormFilter 
Cartridges) with an appropriate treatment system in accordance with Council’s 
WSUD guidelines (Section 13 of the Land Development Guidelines) at no cost to 
Council. 

 
Advisory Note: Failure of achieving the water quality objectives during construction and 
operational phase of the development may trigger significant penalty under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1994. 

HEALTH AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
53. Waste Management Plan 

 
The development must be designed and constructed generally in accordance with the 
approved Waste Management Plan (WMP) prepared by Acardis dated 15 September 
2017 (Report No: AA009245-R01-054). 
 
Any proposed changes to the approved WMP must be submitted to Council for review 
prior to the implementation of any proposed structural changes. 
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

54 Bulk bins – storage point – external 
 
The bulk bin storage points must be located in generally in accordance with Floor Plan 
– Level 010 Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03). prepared by Cottee 
Parker Architects Pty Ltd dated 25 July 2016 (Job No. 5047 Issue 02). The design and 
construction of all storage points must comply with the following requirements:  
 
a. located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site; 
b. allow for at least an additional 0.5 metre clearance surrounding each container, or 

for the storage of multiple bins – one metre clearance around the combined bin 
area (whichever is the lesser); 

c. sufficiently screened to ensure bins are not visible from a public place or sensitive 
land use; 

d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. roofed and designed to prevent entry to rainwater; 
f. graded to fall to a drainage point within the storage point; 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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# Condition Timing 
g. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; and  
h. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins. 

55. Waste storage room – design and construction 
 
 
The waste storage room must be located generally in accordance with Floor Plan – 
Level 010 Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), prepared by Cottee 
Parker Architects Pty Ltd dated 25 July 2016 (Job No. 5047 Issue 02)., and be 
designed and constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. air-locked; 
b. fly and vermin proofed; 
c. used solely for the storage of waste; 
d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. graded to fall to a drainage point; 
f. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; 
g. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins; 
h. fire rated and ventilated in accordance with the National Construction Code – 

Building Code of Australia; 
i. the doors must be wide enough to allow for the easy removal of the largest container 

to be stored; 
j. the walls, ceiling, floor and equipment of each waste storage room must be designed 

and constructed of impervious material with a finish to allow for easy cleaning; 
k. adequate artificial lighting must be provided; and 
l. must permit unobstructed access for removal of the containers to the service point 

and for positioning of the containers correctly in relation to the waste chute. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

56. Bulk bins – servicing point 
 
The bulk bin servicing point must be located generally in accordance with Floor Plan – 
Level 01 Part 010 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), prepared by Cottee 
Parker Architects Pty Ltd dated 25 July 2016 (Job No. 5047 Issue 02), and be 
designed and constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
front-lift waste collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable), and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

b. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 
access, and any other similar areas. 

c. Clear of speed control devices or similar provisions which inhibit direct access to the 
bins for servicing. 

d. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 
development or any adjoining site. 

e. Constructed hardstand with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent. 
f. Allow for at least an additional 0.5 metres clearance surrounding each container, or 

for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

g. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 
vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

57. Ro-Ro Bins – storage & servicing point - undercover area 
 
The Ro-Ro bins storage / servicing point must be located generally in accordance with 
Floor Plan Level 01 Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03),  – Level 00 
prepared by Cottee Parker Architects Pty Ltd dated 25 July 2016 (Job No. 5047 Issue 
02),and be designed and constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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a. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
b. Constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent that 

is of sufficient strength to support the loaded weight of the bin and the truck. 
c. Graded to fall to a drainage point/s, connected to sewer in accordance with trade 

waste requirements. 
d. Allow for at least an additional one (1) metre clearance surrounding each container, 

or for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

e. Allow additional space for compactor and bin-lifter equipment if applicable. 
f. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 

vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site. 
g. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 

access and other similar areas. 
h. Sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
waste bin collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable),and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

58. Waste chute – design and construction 
 
The waste chute must be located generally in accordance with the approved plans 
dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 5370) prepared by Cottee Parker Architects Pty Ltd (Job 
No. 5047), and be designed and constructed in accordance with the following 
requirements:  
 
a. Adequate strength for its purpose, including additional reinforcing where necessary 

at joins, bends and hopper intersections. 
b. Insect and vermin proof. 
c. Constructed and installed to prevent the following during use and operation of the 

system: 
i. Transmission of vibration to the structure of the premises; 
ii. Excessive odour; and 
iii. Excessive noise to the occupants of the building. 

d. Installed in a fire rated duct and ventilated in compliance with building requirements 
of the National Construction Code – Building Code of Australia. 

e. Comply with the waste chute manufacturer’s technical specifications and /or 
operational limitations, including installation design features and ancillary equipment 
required to prevent blockages and noise disturbances. 

f. Fitted with a shutter at the base of the chute for closing off the chute manually during 
bin exchange and automatically in the case of fire. 
f.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

59. Waste disposal points – design and construction 
 
A waste disposal point / hopper must be located on each residential floor generally in 
accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 5370)prepared by 
Cottee Parker Architects Pty Ltd (Job No. 5047), and be designed and constructed in 
accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located to ensure the handle of the hopper is at least 1200 millimetres above 

finished floor level. 
b. Hopper door must automatically return to the closed position after use. 
c. Designed to permit free flow of waste into the chute 
d. Constructed so that the diameter or largest dimension of the service opening (the 

diagonal of a rectangular opening) does not exceed three-quarters (3/4) of the 
diameter of the chute with which the hopper is connected 

Prior to occupation. 
the commencement 
of the use. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.63 cm,  No bullets or
numbering
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e. The floor adjacent to the hopper to be constructed of a durable impervious material 

with a smooth finished surface 
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

ADVISORY NOTES 

ADVISORY NOTES: DTMR 
General Advice - Stage 1 
 
Ref: Public Passenger Transport: 
A Taxis 

The ‘porte cochere’ ‘Hotel drop-off’ area shown on Floor Plan – Level 010 Part 01_Part 02, 
prepared by Destination Gold Coast Consortium, Drawing No. SD1.2010.1 Issue 03 and 
dated 21 July 2017Cottee Parker Architects Pty Ltd, dated 04/05/2016, drawing number 
SD1.2010.2, issue 01, should be designed and constructed to ensure that it is capable of 
accommodating at least one taxi suitable for use by people with disabilities in accordance 
with the following:  
• Disability Standards for Accessible Public Transport 2002 – subsection 31(1) of the 

Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth);  
• AS1428.1 – Design for Access and Mobility; and 
• AS2890.6 – Parking Facilities, Part 6: Off-street parking for people with disabilities. 

B Private coaches/buses 
 
The two coach parking in the ‘new hotel drop offbays and car park/driveway manoeuvring areas 
shown on Floor Plan –Level 010_Part 012, prepared by Destination Gold Coast Consortium, 
Drawing No. SD1.2010.1, Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017, Cottee Parker Architects Pty Ltd, 
dated 04/05/2016, drawing number SD1.2010.2, should be designed to accommodate the 
maximum design vehicle anticipated on the development site. Advice is provided that single 
unit rigid buses of 14.5m in length are likely to access the site and the development should be 
designed to ensure that these vehicles can manoeuvre in forward gear at all times. The ’new 
hotel drop off’ should provide adequate setdown capacity for the anticipated demand for 
privately contracted buses, coaches, and shuttles/mini-buses. current arrangement shown on 
the plan would require coaches to reverse into the parking bays at the ‘Hotel drop-off’ in order 
to exit the site. This may compromise the safety and operation of the drop-off area.. 
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OLGR notes that it is considered unlikely any matters will progress beyond the Stage One/Two enforcement actions. 

Further, once a notice has been issued by the Minister, OLGR will consult with the relevant public sector entity to confirm the enforcement action taken (if any) and will liaise with 
both the public sector entity and The Star to ensure that the breach of the condition is remedied in accordance with the notice.  

The Jupiters Casino Hotel Complex must comply with: 

(a) The development approval including any conditions; 

(b) (i)  Development legislation in respect of personal licences required to be held by the development legislation (i.e. any legislation of whatsoever nature relating to 
Regulated Development; relevant planning instruments; and other statutory provisions regulating the development of the Site); and 

(ii) Standards and requirements applicable to prescribed works contained in prescribed development legislation (i.e. each relevant item of primary or subordinate 
legislation that has replaced or otherwise substituted the legislation itemised in the Jupiters Casino Agreement, and and other State laws generally applicable to 
Works). 

(c) Legislation (including subordinate legislation), other than: 

(i) Development legislation (exception clause (b)(i) above); 

(ii) Legislation specifically excluded by the Jupiters Casino Agreement) 

(Clause 17 of the Jupiters Casino Agreement) 

Relevant public sector entities (i.e. Department of Justice and Attorney-General; Council of The City of Gold Coast; Department of Transport and Main Roads; 
Department of Agriculture and Fisheries; and Department of Environment and Heritage Protection) are authorised by the Minister responsible for the regulation of the Jupiters 
Casino Agreement to receive and respond to complaints regarding the development that are relevant to their usual responsibilities, and monitor and report on compliance 
with their respective conditions. 

Each public sector entity will be required to report to the Minister quarterly, providing an update in respect to the ongoing status of the conditions and compliance with such.  

Development approval will include the following conditions to allow for the monitoring and reporting on compliance with the conditions: 

• The Star must report to each public sector entity about compliance with conditions imposed in the manner specified. 

• Public sector entities may request reports or other material relating to monitoring compliance from The Star at any point during the life of the conditions. 

• Personnel acting under the direction of a public sector entity will be provided access to the Site during the Design and Construction phase to conduct site 
inspections, observe project delivery, review planned construction activities and for any related purposes. 

• The Star must facilitate the necessary access to the Site. The Star must grant and continuously grant to the public sector entities, their contractors, subcontractors, 
agents, employees and invitees, the non-exclusive licence of rights of use and access to the Site and the Works, subject to compliance with reasonable workplace 
safety requirements of the Developer and Construction Contractor. 

In addition, The Star must immediately notify the Minister (by providing written notice to the Office of Liquor and Gaming Regulation) of the occurrence of any of the 
following matters throughout the undertaking of works associated with the development approval, as well as their proposed action/s to address such: 

• any notifiable incident, as defined within the Work Health and Safety Act 2011; and 

• any industrial action, whether undertaken by an employee or employer on the site, as defined within the Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth).  

Compliance with conditions 

Where a public sector entity recognises non-compliance with a condition or conditions, that entity is to provide notification to The Star of the matter and suggest possible 
remedial action and a timeframe. The Star is then to report to the public sector entity within the recommended timeframe to demonstrate compliance. 

Where the public sector entity determines that the matter is not rectified within the recommended timeframe or in accordance with the remedial action suggested, the 
relevant entity is to notify the Executive Director, OLGR, providing sufficient background to the matter to allow for informed consideration. 

OLGR will review the matter and then brief the Minister as required based on the material provided by the public sector entity, requesting the Minister take the relevant 
enforcement action deemed suitable in the circumstances. 

Options available to the Minister for failure to comply with a condition 
(Note that the Minister has no power under the Jupiters Casino Agreement 
to revoke or suspend any development approval) 

Stage One  
(all minor issues) 

The Minister will issue a notice to 
remedy any failure to comply with a 
development approval condition. 
 
Such notice will advise that any failure to 
do so may constitute grounds for further 
action being taken against The Star. 

Stage Two  
(major issues and failure to comply with previous notices) 

In circumstances where a significant approval condition is not complied with 
and subsequently remedied, or The Star refuses to, or otherwise does not 
comply with a remedy notice issued by the Minister, this will result in a 
further notice being issued, advising that failure to take immediate remedial 
action will result in a show cause notice being issued pursuant to the 
provisions of the Casino Control Act 1982, and requesting The Star 
demonstrate why their casino licence should not be cancelled or suspended. 

Stage Three 
(failure to comply with a notice relating to a major 

issue and/or multiple notices) 

The Minister will issue a show cause notice in 
circumstances where The Star continues to not comply 
with the conditions of the development approval. 

Stage Four 
(unsatisfactory response to show cause notice and 

failure to remedy major issues and/or ongoing failure 
to comply with notices) 

Depending on the circumstances, the Minister will either 
cancel or suspend the casino licence, and, if relevant, will 
terminate the Jupiters Casino Agreement where a 
substantial breach of the Agreement can be established. 
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THE STAR GOLD COAST REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 2 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

# Condition Timing 
GENERAL MATTERS 

1.  Development to be generally in accordance with specified plans/drawings 
 
The development must be carried out generally in accordance with the plans/drawing 
prepared by DBI Design Pty Ltd listed below:  
 

# Drawing 
no.  

Title Date 

1 Page 24 Site Plan / Overall Plan June 2017 
2 Page 25 Masterplan June 2017 
3 Page 26 Overall Plan – Level 00 June 2017 
4 Page 28 Overall Plan – Level 01 

(amended May 2018 to include proposed 
bridge link to Broadbeach Light Rail 
Station) 

June 2017  

5 Page 30 Overall Plan – Level 1M June 2017 
6 Page 32 Overall Plan – Level 02 June 2017 
7 Page 34 Overall Plan – Level 2M June 2017 
8 Page 36 Overall Plan – Level 03 

(amended May 2018 to include proposed 
bridge link to Broadbeach Light Rail 
Station) 

June 2017  

9 Page 38 Overall Plan – Level 04 June 2017 
10 Page 40 Overall Plan – Level 05 June 2017 
11 Page 41 Overall Plan – Level 06 June 2017 
12 Page 42 Overall Plan – Level 07 June 2017 
13 Page 43 Overall Plan – Level 08 June 2017 
14 Page 44 Staging Plan – Stage 2 – Tower 2  

(amended May 2018 to include proposed 
bridge link to Broadbeach Light Rail Station, 
see page 36) 

June 2017 

15 Page 45 Staging Plan – Stage 3 – Function Facilities June 2017 
16 Page 46 Staging Plan – Stage 4 – Tower 3  

(amended May 2018 to include proposed 
bridge link to Broadbeach Light Rail Station, 
see page 36) 

June 2017 

17 Page 47 Staging Plan – Stage 5 – Tower 4 
(amended May 2018 to include proposed 
bridge link to Broadbeach Light Rail Station, 
see page 36) 

June 2017 

18 Page 48 Staging Plan – Stage 6 – Tower 5  
(amended May 2018 to include proposed 
bridge link to Broadbeach Light Rail Station, 
see page 36) 

June 2017 

19 Page 55 Overall Elevation – East June 2017 
20 Page 56 Overall Elevation – North June 2017 
21 Page 57 Overall Elevation – South June 2017 
22 Page 58 Overall Elevation – West June 2017 
23 Page 65 Tower 2 – Level 6-7 – Private Gaming  June 2017 
24 Page 66 Tower 2 – Level 8 – Recreation / Retail June 2017 
25 Page 67 Tower 2 – Level 9 – Recreation / Void  June 2017 

At all times. 
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26 Page 68 Tower 2 – Typical Lower Level – Levels 10-

19, 22-26  
June 2017 

27 Page 69 Tower 2 – Level 27 – Plant Level  June 2017 
28 Page 70 Tower 2 – Level 28 – Recreation / Plant   June 2017 
29 Page 71 Tower 2 – Level 29 – Units / Void  June 2017 
30 Page 72 Tower 2 – Typical Upper Level – Levels 30-

59  
June 2017 

31 Page 73 Tower 2 – Levels 60-61  June 2017 
32 Page 74 Tower 2 – Sub Penthouse Lower – Level 62  June 2017 
33 Page 75 Tower 2 – Sub Penthouse Upper – Level 63 June 2017 
34 Page 76 Tower 2 – Penthouse Lower – Level 64  June 2017 
35 Page 77 Tower 2 – Penthouse Upper – Level 65  June 2017 
36 Page 78 Tower 2 – North / East Elevation June 2017 
37 Page 79 Tower 2 – South / East Elevation June 2017 
38 Page 80 Tower 2 – South / West Elevation June 2017 
39 Page 81 Tower 2 – North / West Elevation June 2017 
40 Page 82 Tower 2 – Section A June 2017 
41 Page 84 Tower 3 – Level 8 – Recreation / Retail June 2017 
42 Page 85 Tower 3 – Level 9 Gym / Void June 2017 
43 Page 86 Tower 3 – Typical Lower – Levels 10-23, 

26-35 
June 2017 

44 Page 87 Tower 3 – Level 36 Plant Level June 2017 
45 Page 88 Tower 3 – Level 38 – Recreation / Plant June 2017 
46 Page 89 Tower 3 – Level 39 – Units / Void June 2017 
47 Page 90 Tower 3 – Typical Upper Level – Level 40-

64 
June 2017 

48 Page 91 Tower 3 – Level 65 June 2017 
49 Page 92 Tower 3 – Level 66-70 June 2017 
50 Page 93 Tower 3 – Sub Penthouses – Level 71-72 June 2017 
51 Page 94 Tower 3 – Penthouse Lower Level 73 June 2017 
52 Page 95 Tower 3 – Penthouse Upper Level 74 June 2017 
53 Page 96 Tower 3 North Elevation June 2017 
54 Page 97 Tower 3 East Elevation June 2017 
55 Page 98 Tower 3 South Elevation June 2017 
56 Page 99 Tower 3 West Elevation June 2017 
57 Page 100 Tower 3 – Section June 2017 
58 Page 102 Tower 4 – Level 8 – Recreation / Retail June 2017 
59 Page 103 Tower 4 – Level 9 – Gym / Void June 2017 
60 Page 104 Tower 4 – Typical Lower Level 10-21, 24-

28 
June 2017 

61 Page 105 Tower 4 – Level 29 - Plant June 2017 
62 Page 106 Tower 4 – Level 30 – Recreation / Plant June 2017 
63 Page 107 Tower 4 – Level 31 Units / Void June 2017 
64 Page 108 Tower 4 – Typical Upper Level – Level 32-

48 
June 2017 

65 Page 109 Tower 4 – Level 49-50 June 2017 
66 Page 110 Tower 4 – Sub Penthouse Lower – Level 51 June 2017 
67 Page 111 Tower 4 – Sub Penthouse Upper – Level 52 June 2017 
68 Page 112 Tower 4 – Penthouse Lower – Level 53 June 2017 
69 Page 113 Tower 4 – Penthouse Upper – Level 54 June 2017 
70 Page 114 Tower 4 – North Elevation June 2017 
71 Page  115 Tower 4 – East Elevation June 2017 
72 Page 116 Tower 4 – South Elevation June 2017 
73 Page 117 Tower 4 – West Elevation June 2017 
74 Page 118 Tower 4 – Section A June 2017 
75 Page 121  Tower 5 – Level 6 June 2017 
76 Page 122 Tower 5 – Typical Lower Hotel – Level 10-

30 
June 2017 
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77 Page 123  Tower 5 – Mid Level June 2017 
78 Page 124 Tower 5 – Typical Upper Level June 2017 
79 Page 125  Tower 5 – North Elevation June 2017 
80 Page 126 Tower 5 – East Elevation June 2017 
81 Page 127 Tower 5 – South Elevation June 2017 
82 Page 128 Tower 5 – West Elevation June 2017 
83 Page 129 Tower 5 – Section June 2017 
84 Page 131 Colours and Materials June 2017 
85 Page 132 Colours and Materials June 2017 
86 Page 133 Colours and Materials  
87 Page 139 Edge Condition A – South Western 

Boundary 
June 2017 

88 Page 140 Edge Condition B – Eastern Boundary June 2017 
89 Page 141 Overall Site Podium Section A / Part A June 2017 
90 Page 142 Overall Site Podium Section A / Part 2 June 2017 
91 Page 12-25 Podium Edge – Request for Information September 2017 
92 Page 27-31 Sub-tropical Design – Request for 

Information  
September 2017 

 
The conditions of this approval are to be read in conjunction with these plans. Where a 
conflict occurs between the conditions of this approval and the plans/drawings, the 
conditions of this approval shall take precedence.  

2.  Notice of works timetable – Council 
 
The Trustee must give the Council of the City of Gold Coast (Council) written notice of 
the following: 
 
a. Application number;  
b. Site address; 
c. Name and telephone number (work and after hours) of the project manager and the 

site owner; 
d. Works intended to be carried out; 
e. The proposed timetable associated with the works, including expected 

commencement, duration and completion date. 
 
The notification is to be sent to Council’s Development Compliance Section (fax: 07 
5582 8080 or by email to Devcom_Operational@goldcoast.qld.gov.au ). This notification 
is in addition to any other notifications required by other conditions of this or other 
development approvals. 
 
A form is available to assist in providing the information relating to Notice of 
Works/Commencement requirements. The form can be obtained at Council Offices 
(Nerang, Bundall and Coolangatta).  It can also be found on Council's website at 
http://www.goldcoast.qld.gov.au/forms-applications.html 

After succession 
completion of any 
pre-start inspections 
required by 
conditions of this or 
other development 
approvals and at 
least 5 business 
days prior to 
commencement of 
any works on the 
site.  

3.  Notice of Works Timetable – OLGR 
 
The Trustee must provide the Office of Liquor and Gaming Regulation (OLGR) with a 
copy of the Notice of Works Timetable as outlined in condition 2 of these conditions at 
the same time that a copy is provided to Council.  
 
The notification is to be sent to OLGR’s Gaming Services Branch Operations Unit (fax: 
(07) 3220 0279 or by email to gaming.operations@justice.qld.gov.au).  
 
This notification is in addition to any other notifications required by other conditions of 
this or other development approvals. 

At the same time as 
notification is 
provided for 
condition 2.  

4.  Reporting to public sector entities 
 
The Trustee must provide any further reports or documentation, or updates to any 
reports or documentation, relating to the Stage 2 development upon request by each of 

As specified in the 
condition.  
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the public sector entities, as would otherwise be lawfully required under local, state and 
federal legislation.  

5.  Access to the site 
 
a. Public sector entities will require access to The Star Gold Coast Site during the 

construction phase to conduct site inspections, observe project delivery, review 
planned construction activities, assess and monitor compliance with these conditions 
of approval, and for any related purposes to the Stage 2 development. 

 
b. The Trustee must facilitate the necessary access to The Star Gold Coast Site. The 

Trustee must grant and continuously grant to each public sector entity, its 
contractors, subcontractors, agents, employees and invitees, the non-exclusive 
licence of rights of use and access to the Site and the works, subject to compliance 
with reasonable workplace safety requirements of the Trustee.  

At all times during 
the construction 
phase.  

6.  Notification of Incidents 
 
The Trustee must immediately notify the Minister, by providing written notice to the 
OLGR, of the occurrence of any of the following matters throughout the undertaking of 
works associated with this development approval, as well as any proposed action(s) to 
address:  
 
• any notifiable incident, as defined within the Work Health and Safety Act 2011; and  
• any industrial action, whether undertaken by an employee or employer on site, as 

defined within the Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth).  

At all times.  

7.  Development Costs 
 
The Trustee is responsible for all costs related to the planning, design, development, 
construction and delivery of works undertaken in accordance with the conditions of this 
approval, together with all other costs and expenses ancillary or incidental to the 
planning, design, development, construction and delivery of these works.  

At all times. 

8.  Use of The Star Gold Coast Complex or Site 
 
Only the parts of the land as shown within the red dashed lines above the toe of the 
revetment wall in areas T1, T2, T3, T4 and T5 on Site Plan prepared by DBI Design Pty 
Ltd, dated 26 July 2017, reference A-SD-1.101 and revision C may be used for 
residential purposes. Use of The Star Gold Coast Complex or Site, other than that use of 
that area, for residential purposes, is not approved and will require a further approval 
under the Jupiters Casino Agreement.  

At all times. 

9.  Currency Period 
 
The development must be completed within a period of ten (10) years from the date of 
the development approval. 

For a period of ten 
(10) years following 
the development 
approval. 

10.  Study/Media Rooms 
 
Studies and media rooms identified on the approved drawings must not be converted 
into additional bedrooms unless submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval. Any 
such submission will be assessed against the approved Stage 2 conditions, plans and/or 
drawings.  

At all times 

INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING CONTRIBUTIONS 
11.  Infrastructure Contributions  

 
Pay to the Council of the City of Gold Coast a monetary contribution towards the 
cost of the provision of infrastructure in accordance with Council's Charges 
Resolution. 
 
The current applicable charge is: 
 

Total levied charge payable $37,792,029.15 
 

Total payable prior to 
the use commencing, 
issue of certification 
of classification or 
final plumbing 
inspection, 
whichever occurs 
first.  
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+ ANNUAL ADJUSTMENTS AND/OR 
REVIEWS 
 

The above charge will automatically increase by the lesser of the following: 
 
a. The difference between the levied charge and the maximum adopted charge the 

local government could have levied for the development when the charge is paid; 
and 

b. The increase for the PPI index for the period starting on the day the levied charge 
was levied and ending on the day it is paid, adjusted by reference to the 3-yearly PPI 
index average. 
 

‘3-yearly PPI index average’ and ‘PPI index’ have the meanings given in the 
Sustainable Planning Act 2009. 
 
As the levied charge amount is current at the date of issue, the total charges due at the 
date of payment may be greater. 

CAR PARKING AND ACCESS 
12.  Off street car parking facilities 

 
a. Off-street car parking facilities must be designed, constructed and maintained 

in accordance with AS2890.1 (latest version). 
b. Off-street facilities for car parking must only be used for vehicle parking. 
c. Additional off-street car parking spaces must be provided on-site at a minimum rate 

of 0.75 spaces per residential dwelling in an unbundled arrangement. 
d. Off-street car parking facilities must be drained and line marked. 
 
Information Note: Any unbundled car parking unsold to a residential carpark allocation can 
be made available for use by all other activities within the integrated resort complex (i.e. 
residential apartments, hotel, casino and resort users). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of each 
stage of 
development and at 
all times.  

13.  Tandem car parking spaces 
 
Tandem car parking spaces must be allocated to residents of the same unit only.  

At all times.  

14.  Bicycle parking 
a. Bicycle parking facilities must be provided, at no cost to Council and 

maintained in accordance with: 
i Resident bicycle parking for the Multiple dwelling units must be 

provided at a minimum rate of 1 Security Level B space per 4 
dwellings; 

ii Visitor bicycle parking for the Multiple dwelling units must be 
provided at a minimum rate of 1 Security Level C space per 12 
dwellings; and 

iii AS2890.3. 
b. The bicycle parking spaces are to: 

i Enable wheels and frame to be located to the device without 
damaging the bicycle; 

ii Be located outside pedestrian movement paths;  
iii Be accessible from the road; 
iv Be arranged so that parking and unparking maneuvers will not 

damage adjacent bicycles; 
v Be protected from maneuvering motor vehicles and opening car 

doors; 
vi Be as close as possible to the cyclists ultimate destination; 
vii Be well lit by appropriate existing or new lighting; and 
viii Be protected from the weather. 

 
 
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  
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15.  Loading and unloading 

 
a. Loading and unloading of a vehicle servicing a development must be conducted 

wholly within the Site.  
b. A vehicle or vehicles waiting to be loaded or unloaded must stand entirely within the 

Site.  
c. All vehicles must enter and exit the Site in a forward gear.  

At all times.  

16.  Upgrade to existing bus stops 
 
Upgrade and maintain the existing bus stops on the subject site at no cost to Council, to 
an ‘Intermediate stop’ standard in accordance with the Transport and Main Roads Public 
Transport Infrastructure Manual (PTIM). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

17.  Active travel upgrade on bridge to T E Peters Drive 
 
Design, construct and maintain a 3 metre wide pedestrian and bicycle pathway on the 
existing private bridge connecting the subject site to T E Peters Drive at no cost to 
Council. The 3 metre wide pedestrian and bicycle pathway is not to be line marked 
unless otherwise approved by Council. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use. 

18.  Allowance for new grade separated bridge 
 
The design of Stage 2 development must make allowance for a future grade separated 
pedestrian bridge over Hooker Boulevarde as indicatively shown on DBI Drawing ‘Overall 
Plan Level 03’ dated June 2017 (drawing amended May 2018). 

At all times. 

ROADS AND TRAFFIC 
19.  Roadworks: T E Peters Drive / Casino Drive 

 
Design and construct works at the T E Peters Drive / Casino Drive intersection to 
achieve:  
 
a. an additional 20 metre long eastbound approach lane on T E Peters Drive;  
b. an additional eastbound circulating lane within the roundabout; and 
c. an additional 10 metre long northbound approach lane on Casino Drive.  
 
The works must be undertaken generally in accordance with Cardno Drawing 
V160335T-SK21 Revision B dated 26/08/2016 and SC6.9 City Plan Policy – Land 
Development Guidelines. All existing bicycle lanes must be maintained at the 
intersection.  
 
An operational works application is to be submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval 
of these works clearly detailing any proposed changes to infrastructure.  
 
Information note: this is considered non-trunk infrastructure.  
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
 

20.  Roadworks: Gold Coast Highway / T E Peters Drive / Victoria Avenue 
 
Design and construct works at the Gold Coast Highway / T E Peters Drive / Victoria 
Avenue intersection to achieve:  
 
a. an extension of 20 metres to the existing westbound short left slip lane in T E Peters 

Drive; and 
b. an extension of 10 metres to the westbound short right turn lane in T E Peters Drive.  
 
The works must be undertaken generally in accordance with Cardno Drawing 
V160335T-SK21 Revision B dated 26/08/2016 and SC6.9 City Plan Policy – Land 
Development Guidelines. All existing bicycle lanes must be maintained at the 
intersection.  
 
An operational works application is to be submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval 
of these works clearly detailing any proposed changes to infrastructure.  
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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Information note: this is considered non-trunk infrastructure.  
 

21.  Roadworks: Gold Coast Highway / Elizabeth Avenue / New Development Access 
 
Design and construct works at the Gold Coast Highway / Elizabeth Avenue / New 
Development Access Intersection to achieve:  
 
a. addition of a left turn free flow facility for northbound left turning traffic exiting the 

site;  
b. modification of eastbound development egress line marking to incorporate a shared 

through/right left hand lane and a dedicated right hand right turn lane; and  
c. modification of the signal personality to remove the left turn late start for vehicles 

exiting the development.  
 
The works must be undertaken generally in accordance SC6.9 City Plan Policy – Land 
Development Guidelines. All existing bicycle lanes must be maintained at the 
intersection.  
 
An operational works application is to be submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval 
of these works clearly detailing any proposed changes to infrastructure.  
 
Information note: this is considered non-trunk infrastructure.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

 STATE CONTROLLED ROAD  
22.  Casino Drive and Hooker Blvd (Nerang-Broadbeach Rd) intersection 

 
a. Road works comprising modification of the Casino Drive and Hooker Boulevard 

(Nerang-Broadbeach Rd) intersection to undertake works to remove the Casino 
Drive egress. The works involve the removal of the right-out and left-out egress from 
Casino Drive to the Hooker Blvd signalised intersection. The road works must be 
designed and constructed in accordance with Road Planning and Design Manual 2"' 
Edition and Austroads Guide to Road Design. 

 
Information note: Construction should be undertaken by a TMR pre-qualified contractor. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use. 

 ACTIVE TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE  
23.  Construct a grade separated active transport bridge between The Star 

Broadbeach and Broadbeach South Light Rail Station 
 
A grade separated active transport bridge must be constructed between Level 03 
pedestrian promenade adjacent Tower 2 across Hooker Blvd (Nerang Broadbeach Rd) 
to connect with Broadbeach South Light Rail Station and must be provided generally in 
the location shown on DBI Drawing 'Overall Plan Level 03' dated June 2017 (amended 
May 2018 to include proposed bridge link to Broadbeach Light Rail Station). In 
accordance with: 
 

• Austroads - Guide to Road Design Part 6A - Paths for Walking and 
Cycling, 2017; 

• Translink Public Transport Infrastructure Manual; 
• Technical Note 133 Guidance on the width of shared paths and separated 

bicycle paths, November 2014;and 
• Disability Discrimination Act 1992. 

 
Information note: Construction and design should be undertaken by a TMR pre-qualified 
consultant and contractor. 

Prior to 
commencement of 
use for Tower 2 or 
constructed to 
connect with the 
pedestrian 
promenade and 
Level 03 at the 
earliest opportunity, 
whichever occurs 
first. 

LANDSCAPING WORKS ON PRIVATE LAND 
24.  Detailed landscape plan to be submitted for approval 

 
a. Submit to Council and the Minister for compliance endorsement detailed landscape 

plans certified by a suitably qualified Landscape Architect illustrating the extent of 

The landscaping 
plans must be 
endorsed by Council 
prior to 
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landscaping for the development and the overall site interface with the streetscape. 
The plans must: 
 

i Be prepared by a qualified landscape architect or similar 
landscape design professional; 

ii Be in general accordance with the Statement of Landscape 
Intent, being Dwg: RPT DGC Landscape DA 170922 D, 
Destination Gold Coast, Date: N/A, By: Urbis; 

iii Reflect the approved layout (including any amendments to that 
layout required by these conditions) and the conditions of this 
approval; 

iv Comply with City Plan Policy – Landscape Work; 
v Ensure landscaping maintains visibility along pathways and 

vehicle paths; 
vi Include species which are low maintenance and water-wise; 
vii Ensure species are selected taking into account the location of 

overhead and/or underground services – such services must be 
located clear of important landscape elements such as tree 
planting areas; 

viii Ensure the proposed trees and single trunked palms within the site 
are species with a form that is respectful of the planting locations 
proximity to the building. A minimum of 40 trees within the private 
property must be minimum 200 litre bag size at time of planting; 
remaining trees must be minimum 100 litre. Plumeria, Pandanus & 
palm species must be minimum 3 metres height at time of planting; 
Dracaena draco must be minimum 2 metres height at time of 
planting; 

ix Include a maintenance management plan relating to the planter 
boxes and planting on the external façade of the podium structure. 
The maintenance management plan must: 
A Provide detailed information as to how these vegetative 

systems will be safely accessed for maintenance; 
B Stipulate a maintenance schedule for these systems; 
C Provide details of the minimum standards to which these 

systems must be maintained; and 
D Desribe actions to be taken if the systems should fail 

to function as intended. 
x Prescribe the use of tree stock compliant with 

AS2303 – Tree Stock for Landscape Use; 
xi Identify opportunities for water infiltration to be maximised on-site 

through landscaped areas and permeable paving where possible; 
and 

xii Include locations of, and a cross-sectional detail of the bio-
retention systems that are required by the Stormwater 
Management Plan prepared for the site. The cross-sectional detail 
must identify the filter media depth and the surface treatment 
proposed for the systems. The detailed landscape plan must also 
incorporate an appropriate list of species in the plan schedule 
which are suitable for a bio-retention area. Planting densities 
within the bio-retention area must match those specified in 
Council’s City Plan Policy – Land Development Guidelines. 

commencement of 
landscaping works 

 b. Construct the works in accordance with the certified plans required by part a) 
of this condition. 

c. On completion of the works, provide to Council written certification from a licensed 
and experienced Landscape Architect that the completed landscaping complies with 
part b) of this condition. 

Prior to 
commencement of 
the approved use. 

 d. Following installation of the landscaping in accordance with the certified plans, the 
landscaping within the site boundaries must be maintained in accordance with the 

At all times. 
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certified landscape plans and all relevant Australian Standards to the satisfaction of 
Council and the Minister. 

25.  Planter boxes 
 
a. The planter boxes on the podium where trees (including Pandanus) are 

proposed to be planted must be a minimum five (5) square meters in surface 
area; 

b. Each of the aforementioned planter boxes must be sized to provide a minimum 
800mm internal soil depth. The depth of planter boxes where trees are not 
proposed are to be as shown on the referenced Statement of Landscape 
Intent; and 

c. An automatic irrigation system must be provided to all podium planting, 
including the planter boxes located on the external façade of the podium 
structure. 

At all times. 

ELECTRICAL RETICULATION  
26.  Electricity supply – MCU 

 
a. Submit to Council and the Minister a copy of the ‘Certificate of Supply’ from an 

authorised electricity supplier (e.g. ENERGEX) as evidence that underground 
electricity supply is available to the development site and all proposed 
dwellings within the site. 

b. In supplying power to the site, no additional poles and/or pole-mounted 
transformers are to be erected within the road reserve.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
27.  Telecommunications – MCU 

 
a. Provide telecommunications to the subject building/s, lead-in conduits and 

equipment space/s in a suitable location within the building/s, and 
telecommunications cabling to each unit/dwelling within the development, in 
accordance with telecommunications industry standards (e.g. Telstra / NBN 
Co. standards). 

b. Where new pit and pipe infrastructure is installed within the road, it must be 
suitably sized to cater for future installation of fibre optic cables. 

c. Provide written confirmation from the authorised telecommunications carrier 
that a contractual agreement has been entered into (e.g. Telstra ‘Agreement 
Advice’ or ‘Completion Letter’, NBN Co. ‘Master Developer Agreement’ or 
‘Small Developer Agreement’ (a letter of provisioning of Telecommunication 
Services – confirmation of final payment)) for the above infrastructure prior to 
commencement of the use. 

Prior to 
commencement of 
the use.  

WORKS - COMPLIANCE 
28.  Revetment wall 

 
The registered property owner must have undertaken an inspection of the condition of the 
existing revetment wall. Such assessment must be undertaken by a registered 
professional engineer who specialises or who has expertise in retaining/revetment walls 
and must report on the existing condition of the wall and make any recommendations as 
to any required repairs or maintenance works necessary – whether or not such required 
works are as a consequence of the proposed works.  A copy of the report is to be submitted 
to Council and the Minister. 
 
Where repairs or maintenance works are recommended in the report, the property owner 
will be required to undertake the works prior to or in conjunction with building works. This 
requirement is imposed to protect the property in the long term. Certification from a 
registered engineer certifying that the required repairs or maintenance works have been 
carried out is to be submitted to Council and the Minister.  
 
 
 

Prior to any building 
works commencing 
on the site.  
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29.  Limitation of the land 

 
The development is limited to land above the toe of the revetment wall in areas T1, T2, 
T3, T4 and T5 and must be carried out generally in accordance with Site Plan prepared 
by DBI Design Pty Ltd, dated 26 July 2017, reference A-SD-1.101 and revision C. 

Prior to the 
commencement of  
the use of the 
premises and to be 
maintained at all 
times. 

30.  Certification of Compliance 
 
All works must be certified by a suitably qualified professional as complying with the 
approved plans.  
 
For this condition, a ‘suitably qualified professional’ is a person with a tertiary 
qualification and a professional affiliation in the field of engineering or science relevant to 
the works and/or management plan who has at least two years’ experience in 
management in that field. Where the works and/or management plans involve different 
fields, a certification is required from a suitably qualified professional for each separate 
field.  

The Trustee must 
submit the 
certification prior to 
the earliest of 
compliance 
assessment of the 
subdivision plan, the 
commencement of 
the ‘on maintenance’ 
period or the 
commencement of 
the use.  

WATER SUPPLY PLUMBLING WORK 
31.  Application for compliance permit for water supply plumbing work required 

 
The Trustee must make an application to Council (Plumbing and Drainage Services) for 
a compliance permit for any compliance assessable water supply plumbing work within 
the property. Without limiting the requirements of the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 
with which the works must comply, the application must: 
 
a. be accompanied by a hydraulic design for all water services within the property; and 
b. comply with Section 5.2 of Council’s City Plan policy, Land Development Guidelines. 
 
Information note: Water supply plumbing works must not be carried out until a compliance 
permit under the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 has been issued by Council for the 
works. 

Prior to works 
occurring. 

FIRE SERVICES 
32.  Application for compliance permit for fire services plumbing work required 

 
The Trustee must make an application to Council (Plumbing and Drainage Services) for 
a compliance permit for all fire services plumbing work within the property. Without 
limiting the requirements of the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 with which the works 
must comply, the application must be accompanied by a hydraulic design for all fire 
services within the property. 
 
Information note: Plumbing works for fire services must not be carried out until a 
compliance permit under the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 has been issued by Council 
for the works. 

Prior to works 
occurring. 

SEWERAGE WORKS 
33.  Application for compliance permit for sewerage works required 

 
The Trustee must make an application to Council (Plumbing and Drainage Services) for 
a compliance permit for any compliance assessable sewerage works within the property. 
Without limiting the requirements of the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 with which the 
works must comply, the application must: 
 
a. be accompanied by a hydraulic design for all sewerage works within the property; 
b. comply with Council’s: 

i Trade Waste Policy; and 
ii Trade Waste Pre-treatment Policy and Guidelines; and 

c. comply with Council’s Solid Waste Management Guidelines for new developments 
(2011)  

 

Prior to any on-site 
sewerage works 
occurring on site. 
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Information note: Sewerage works must not be carried out until a compliance permit 
under the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 has been issued by Council for the works. 
 
Plumbing and drainage approval is not an approval to discharge trade waste to Council’s 
sewerage system. The generator of trade must complete an Application for Approval to 
Discharge Trade Waste to Council’s sewerage system (available on Council’s website) 
prior to discharging any trade waste. 

SEWER AND WATER WORKS 
34.  Connection to Sewerage System 

 
a. Obtain an operational works approval for the design, construction and connection to 

the sewerage system for the proposal, ensuring that the proposed development 
connects directly to Council’s sewerage network at no cost to Council and in 
accordance with the review outcomes of the Investigation of the Sewerage Servicing 
Strategy (the Strategy) as submitted to Council for approval by the Minister, which 
shall: 

i Be in accordance with the SEQ Water Supply & Sewerage Design 
and Construction Code (SEQ Code), and the Water and Sewerage 
Connections Policy. 

ii Provide 139.6 kL of emergency storage required to service the 
proposed development at a location approved by Council. 
 

Sewerage connection point advice note: 
 
The City of Gold Coast Water and Waste (WW) Directorate advises that: 
 
The sewerage connection point for the proposed development is SPS SP68 at the 
corner of Bermuda Street and Markeri Street as it has sufficient capacity to cater for the 
proposed loads, unless there is an alternative approved connection point that is 
demonstrated under the Strategy or in Council’s review of the Strategy. 
 
The Strategy, which is presently being undertaken (as of 27 February 2018) will be 
reviewed with the intent of achieving agreed outcomes for servicing the Star Casino Site 
in Broadbeach. The review of the Strategy and approved outcomes may include a revised 
sewerage connection point to suit both parties for servicing of the development. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use. 

35.  Water reticulation 
 
a. Obtain an operational works approval for the design, construction and connection 

of a water reticulation system for the proposal ensuring that the proposal connects 
to Council’s water network at the existing 600mm main located in Hooker Boulevard 
street and the existing 225mm main located in T E Peters Drive at no cost to Council, 
and in particular: 

b. Be in accordance with the SEQ Water Supply & Sewerage Design and Construction 
Code (SEQ WS&S D&C Code), and the Gold Coast Water Network Modifications, 
Extension and Connections Policy Procedures. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use. 

36.  Sub-metering 
 
Provide individual sub-metering for each lot/unit including common property generally in 
accordance with the Metering Technical Specifications and the Gold Coast Water Network 
Modifications, Extension and Connections Policy Procedures, at no cost to Council. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use. 

37.  Fire loading 
 
Fire loading must not exceed 30L/s for 4 hours duration. 

At all times. 

38.  Development infrastructure 
 
Development infrastructure required to be provided in implementing this development 
approval is non-trunk development infrastructure unless otherwise determined by Council 
and the Minister. 
 

At all times. 
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39.  Connections and disconnections 

 
The Trustee must obtain written approval from Water and Waste for any 
disconnections or connections taking place. 
 
a. Any connection/disconnection to the existing water and sewerage networks will be 

at the Trustee’s cost. 
b. Refer to Gold Coast Water and Waste Network Modifications, Extension and 

Connections Policy Procedures, available on Council’s website: 
http://www.cityofgoldcoast.com.au 

At all times. 

40.  Water meter sizing 
 
All water meters 100 mm in diameter or larger require an operation works approval. 
 
Refer to Gold Coast Water and Waste Network Modifications, Extension and Connections 
Policy Procedures, available on Council’s website: http://www.cityofgoldcoast.com.au 

At all times. 

AMENITY 
41.  No nuisance from lighting 

 
All lighting devices must be positioned on the premises and shielded to the satisfaction 
of the Minister so as not to cause:  
 

a. glare or other nuisance to surrounding residents and motorists; and 
b. a navigation hazard on any nearby or adjacent waterway.  

At all times.  

ENGINEERING 
42.  Rectification of Council’s infrastructure 

 
Rectify any damage caused to Council infrastructure (including kerb, channelling, 
service pits, footpaths and water and sewer reticulation networks). 
 
Construct and maintain the rectified Council infrastructure at no cost to Council. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

HEALTH AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
43.  Waste Management Plan 

 
The development must be designed and constructed generally in accordance with the 
approved Waste Management Plan (WMP) prepared by Arcadis dated 15 September 
2017 (Report No: 10004368-R02-03).  

Prior to building 
approval.  

44.  Waste Management Plan Compliance Report 
 
A waste management plan compliance report prepared by a suitably qualified person 
shall be submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval. The report shall certify that the 
development has been designed and constructed in accordance with the requirements 
outlined in the approved Waste Management Plan. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

45.  Acoustics – design and construction 
 
The development must be designed and constructed in accordance with the 
recommendations outlined in the acoustic report prepared by TTM Consulting Pty Ltd 
dated 30 June 2017 (reference:16SYA0043 R01_2). 
 
Any alteration to the design or construction of the development that prevents the 
recommendations of the approved report being implemented will require an amended 
report to be submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval prior to Building Approval. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition.  

46.  Acoustic compliance report 
 
An acoustic compliance report prepared by a suitably qualified person shall be submitted 
to Council for the Minister’s approval. The report shall certify that the development has 
been designed and constructed in accordance with the established noise criteria and 
recommendations outlined in the approved acoustic report. 
 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 
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ACID SULFATE SOILS (ASS) / GROUNDWATER 

47.  Preparation of acid sulfate investigation and management plan 
 
a. The Trustee is advised that an acid sulfate soil investigation must be submitted for 

assessment by Council Environmental Planners and approval by the Minister if the 
proposed development will affect soils below 5mAHD and involves either: 

i The excavation of 100m3 or more of soil or sediment; or 
ii The filling of land involving 500m3 or more of material with an 

average depth of 0.5m or greater. 
 

b. The investigation sampling and analysis should be prepared in accordance with 
the Guidelines for Sampling & Analysis of Lowland Acid Sulfate Soils in 
Queensland Version 4 (October 1998, Ahern et at 1998) and Acid Sulfate Soil 
Laboratory Method Guidelines Version 2.1 (June 2004, Ahern et al 2004). The 
investigation should establish the following: 

i. The presence/absence of acid sulfate soils over the entire excavation area 
(ie. through soil investigations); 

ii. The degree (ie. concentration) of acid leachate generating potential of 
soils; 

iii. The required soil dosage rates and quantity of lime required to mitigate 
acid leachate; and 

iv. The potential impacts on surrounding environment features. 
 

c. If the investigation finds that treatment of acid sulfate soil will be required, an acid 
sulfate soil management plan directed towards enabling works to be undertaken in 
a safe and effective manner must be prepared in accordance with: 

i The Queensland Acid Sulfate Soil Technical Manual Version 3.8 
(November 2002, Dear et al); and 

ii Conditions of this approval. 

Prior to any works 
commencing on the 
site. 

48.  Treatment of oxidized acid sulfate soil 
 
As a result of works the subject of this approval any disturbed or oxidized acid sulfate soil 
must be treated and managed in accordance with the current Queensland Acid Sulfate 
Soil Technical Manual: Soil management guidelines, prepared by the Department of 
Science, Information Technology, Innovation and the Arts, 2014. 

During construction / 
building works. 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
49.  Construction management plan 

 
Part A  Construction Management Requirements 
 
a. The construction management plan must be submitted in accordance with the 

Application for Construction Management Plan form and Guidelines for Construction 
Management Plans available on Council’s website. 

b. The construction management plan must address all activities associated with 
construction (excluding noise and dust issues), including but not limited to: 

i Vehicle access (including responsibility for maintenance of the 
defined cartage route) during hours of construction; 

ii Traffic management (including loading and unloading); 
iii Parking of vehicles (including on site employees and delivery 

vehicles); 
iv Maintenance of safe pedestrian movement across the site’s 

frontage/s (including by people with disabilities); 
v Building waste / refuse disposal; 
vi Presentation of hoarding to the street;  
vii Tree management. 

c. The construction management plan must demonstrate that: 
i the general public will be adequately protected from construction 

activities; 

A construction 
management plan 
must be submitted 
to Council for the 
Minister’s approval 
prior to the issue of 
any development 
permit for the 
carrying out of 
building work. 
 

The approved 
construction 
management plan 
must be complied 
with and kept on-site 
at all times during 
construction works. 
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ii the building site will be kept clean and tidy to maintain public 

safety and amenity; and 
iii demand for occupation of the street and protection of Council assets 

will be well managed. 
d. The approved construction management plan must be complied with and kept on-

site at all times. 
 

Part B  Road/footpath Closure Requirements 
 
Where as a result of construction work or activities it is necessary to temporarily close a 
road/footpath under the control of Council the following requirements will apply. 
 
e. Where it is proposed to interfere with a road for any building or construction work 

such as a gantry, hoarding or skip bin, an application for temporary closure of a 
Council controlled road must be submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval, 
prior to the issue of any development permit for the carrying out of building work. 
Such application is to be lodged in conjunction with an application for approval of a 
construction management plan. 

f. Where it is required to interfere with a road for any building or construction related 
work for a period in excess of two (2) weeks, a Road Closure Work Zone permit is to 
be obtained from Council’s Traffic Management and Operations Branch. 

g. Where it is required to occupy any portion of the road reserve in conjunction with 
building or construction work, a permit to occupy is to be obtained from Council’s 
Property Section. 

50.  Transport of soil/fill/excavated material 
 

During the transportation of soil and other fill/excavated material: 
a. All trucks hauling soil, or fill/excavated material must have their loads secure and 

covered; 
b. Any spillage that falls from the trucks or their wheels must be collected and removed 

from the site and streets along which the trucks travel, on a daily basis; and 
c. Prior to vehicles exiting the site, measures must be taken to remove soil from the 

wheels of the vehicles to prevent soil and mud being deposited on public roads. 

At all times while 
works are occurring. 

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL 
51.  Erosion and sediment control 

 
a. Erosion, sediment and dust control measures must be designed, implemented and 

maintained in accordance with the Best Practice Erosion & Sediment Control 
(IECA Australasia, November 2008). 

b. Sediment control structures (e.g. sediment fence) must be placed at the base of all 
materials on-site to mitigate any sediment runoff. 

c. A perimeter bund and/or diversion drain must be constructed around the disturbed 
area to prevent any outside clean stormwater from mixing with polluted/ 
contaminated stormwater. 

d. To minimise unvegetated areas: 
i Construction activities must be staged; 
ii Filled areas must be turfed or seeded immediately on completion; 

and 
iii No area should remain exposed (unvegetated) for more than 2 

weeks unless construction work is being undertaken on that area. 
e. Immediately after completion of the construction of an open drain: 

i The open drain must be turfed, unless approved otherwise in a 
Council approved stormwater management plan; and 

ii A turf strip must be placed at 90 degrees to the invert every 10 
metres to prevent scouring along the turf edge. Reinforced turf 
must be used where invert grades exceed 5%. 

f. All polluted/contaminated water from the site, including dewatering discharge, must 
be treated to achieve the water quality objectives in Table 8.2.1 of the Queensland 
Water Quality Guidelines (DERM, September 2009) prior to discharging from the 

During construction / 
building works. 
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site. 

g. The following inspection program must be carried out before the site is fully 
rehabilitated: 

i. Regular inspections to ensure that adequate erosion control measures are 
in place and in good condition both during and after construction; and 

ii. Inspections after each storm event to assess the adequacy of the erosion 
control measures. The Trustee must make good any damage or non- 
performing erosion control devices and clean up any sediment that has left 
the site or is on the roads within and external to the site. 

h. Water quality must be monitored in accordance with Section 7.5 of the Best 
Practice Erosion & Control (IECA Australasia, November 2008) and compared with 
water quality objectives. A monitoring report must be prepared and retained at the 
site office and made  available to Council’s inspectors upon request. The Trustee 
must notify Council’s Contributed Assets Section and Department of Environment 
and Heritage Protection of any non-compliance to water quality objectives and the 
corrective actions taken by the Trustee within 48 hours of the non-compliance. 

52.  Construction of sediment basin 
 
a. The sediment basin(s) proposed for the construction phase must be designed in 

accordance with Appendix B of the Best Practice Erosion & Sediment Control (IECA 
Australasia, November 2008). 

b. Each sediment basin must have the capacity to treat flows to current best practice 
standards and as a minimum must be designed to contain all the stormwater runoff 
from the 85th percentile 5 day rainfall depth and in addition be designed and 
maintained to store 2 months sediment from the receiving catchment, as 
determined using the Revised Universal Soil Loss Equation. 

c. Sediment basins must be dewatered within 5 days after each rainfall event. 
d. Sediment basins and associated structures such as inlets, outlets and spillways 

must be designed and constructed to be structurally sound for a 10 year ARI rainfall 
event under normal circumstances. 

e. A high-flow bypass system must be included (if necessary) to prevent any potential 
re-suspension of accumulated sediment from the basin during major storm events. 

f. Accumulated sediment from basins and other controls must be removed within two 
months and disposed of appropriately without causing water contamination. 

During construction / 
building works. 

53.  Inspections and reporting 
 
a. All erosion and sediment control measures must be inspected in accordance with 

Section 7 of the Best Practice Erosion & Sediment Control (IECA Australasia, 
November 2008) on a weekly basis and following runoff events until the 
rehabilitation works of the site is completed to the satisfaction of the Chief Executive 
Officer of Council. 

b. All drainage control structures such as diversion banks, diversion channels and 
temporary culvert protections must be inspected daily to ensure they have not been 
damaged by machinery and are serviceable in readiness for the next rainfall event. 

c. Where inspection indicates a non-conformance, a Non- Conformance Report must 
be generated. This report must include but not be limited to the following: 

i. Details of the nature and cause of non- conformance; and 
ii. Details of the required corrective actions. 

Corrective actions must be carried out within 24 hours where practicable or as    
agreed with the Construction Superintendent. 

d. A monthly summary of Erosion and Sediment Control (ESC) performances must be 
compiled and retained at the site office and made available to Council’s inspectors 
upon request. This report must include but not be limited to the following: 

i Filled in ESC inspection checklist of Best Practice Erosion & 
Sediment Control, Section 7, Site Inspection Checklist (IECA 
Australasia, November 2008); 

ii Description of any incidents of non-conformance and corrective 
actions; 

iii Results of corrective actions; and 

During construction / 
building works. 
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iv Revisions to the Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (ESCP). 

54.  Prevent release of sediment to tidal waters 
 
Erosion and sediment control measures are to be installed and maintained for any works 
resulting in disturbed soils to prevent the release of sediment to tidal waters. 

During construction / 
building works. 

HYDRAULICS AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
55.  No loss of floodplain storage 

 
The proposed development shall result in no loss of floodplain storage up to the 100 year 
ARI regional flood event. 

At all times. 

56.  No worsening of hydraulic conditions 
 
The development must be designed and constructed so as to result in: 
a. No increase in peak flow rates downstream from the site; 
b. No increase in flood levels external to the site; and 
c. No increase in duration of inundation external to the site that could cause loss or 

damage. 

At all times. 

57.  Alteration of overland flow paths 
 
Overland flow paths on the site must not be altered in a way that inhibits or alters the 
characteristics of existing overland flows on other properties or that creates an increase in 
flood damage on other properties. 

At all times. 

58.  Certification of earthworks compliance with hydraulic report 
 
The Trustee must submit to Council and the Minister a certification from a Registered 
Professional Engineer Queensland (RPEQ) specialising in hydraulics stating that the 
bulk earthworks comply with the approved hydraulic report, being “Destination Gold 
Coast Consortium – Stage 2 Development Flooding and Hydraulic Impact Assessment, 
Revision 05” dated 22 September 2017 prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd, 
and no loss of flood plain storage has occurred as a result of the earthworks. The 
certification must be accompanied by calculations and as constructed data that: 
 
a. Includes existing and proposed triangulated surface meshes which can be produced 

by computer terrain modelling software packages such as Civil-Cad, 12D or KEAYS; 
and 

b. Has been compared with the pre-development surface levels to ensure that no loss 
of floodplain storage has occurred. 

The certification must 
be submitted to 
Council and the 
Minister immediately 
after completion of 
the bulk earthworks. 

59.  Stormwater management plan to be complied with 
The Trustee must submit to Council and the Minister certification from a Registered 
Professional Engineer Queensland (RPEQ) specialised in stormwater management 
confirming that all works have been carried out and completed in accordance with the 
approved stormwater management plan, being “Destination Gold Coast Consortium – 
Stage 2 Development Site Based Stormwater Management Plan, Revision 05” dated 26 
September 2017 prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd. 

The certification must 
be submitted to 
Council and the 
Minister prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises. 

60.  GPT in basement car park 
 
a. A gross pollutant trap (hydrocarbon and litter separator) must be installed within the 

car park areas to treat water prior to discharging to the existing Council stormwater 
network. 

At all times. 
 
 
 
 

 b. Any designated carwash bay will require a trade waste approval prior to the 
discharge from the premises of any trade waste to Council’s sewerage system. 

Compliance with (b) 
to occur prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises. 

61.  Agreement to remove hydrocarbons for GPT 
 

a. The Trustee must ensure that: 
i Hydrocarbons and other waste captured by the gross pollutant 

trap are regularly removed by an appropriately licensed waste 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises and then 

RTI 200256 File01 - Page 142



# Condition Timing 
removal entity; and 

ii The gross pollutant trap is maintained so that it functions for its 
intended purpose. 

b. The Trustee must submit to Council and the Minister evidence that an agreement has 
been entered into with a licensed waste removal entity for the removal of 
hydrocarbons/waste in accordance with this condition. 

maintained at all 
times. 

62.  Certification of performance of the treatment train 
 
The Trustee shall provide a certification to Council and the Minister signed by 
a qualified professional engineer (RPEQ or equivalent) confirming the following: 
 
a. The proposed treatment train including the proprietary device will achieve pollutants 

removal efficiency to satisfy Council’s water quality objectives as outlined in the Land 
Development Guidelines. 

b. The signing person must acknowledge that he/she is aware that the Council of the 
City of Gold Coast relies upon his/her certification in approving the above stormwater 
management plan and associated treatment train including the proprietary device. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
any works on-site for 
the relevant stage of 
the development. 

63.  Monitoring of the proprietary treatment devices 
 
The owner or the legal entity of the development must carry out monitoring of the 
performance of the proprietary stormwater treatment devices as adopted in the 
approved stormwater management plan for two years at no cost to Council. Annual 
report of the monitoring and subsequent results shall be prepared by a suitably qualified 
professional (RPEQ or equivalent) specialised in stormwater and must be submitted to 
Council and the Minister for record keeping purposes. 
 
Alternatively, the proponent shall submit a certification or endorsement letter from an 
independent expert / peer reviewer based on the testing / monitoring results of the 
proprietary devices confirming the performance of the devices in relation to Council’s 
adopted protocol (August 2015) requirements, to discontinue the ongoing monitoring. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

64.  Maintenance of stormwater management devices 
 
a. Prior to commencement of the use of the premises, a site-specific stormwater quality 

improvement devices (SQID) maintenance management plan (MMP) must be 
prepared by a suitably qualified professional, consistent with the maintenance 
requirements of the devices in the proposed treatment train, and submitted to 
Council for the Minister’s approval. The approved MMP must be included in the Body 
Corporate by-laws or Community Management Plan. The MMP must address the 
following: 

i The MMP must include all associated costs related to the device 
(e.g., installation, inspection and replacement/maintenance, 
certifications, reporting, health and safety plans, training, area of 
land required to install the device etc.); 

ii The MMP must include the lifecycle costs of the proposed 
treatment devices; 

b. The owner/body corporate must ensure the long-term maintenance of the storm 
water management device/s for the life of the development. A copy of any 
maintenance agreement entered into with the proprietor or an appropriate entity 
must be submitted to Council and the Minister for record prior to commencement of 
the use of the premises; 

c. The body corporate/legal authority shall submit to Council certification from a 
Registered Professional Engineer Queensland (RPEQ) every year for the life of the 
development confirming that the cartridges have been replaced and functioning as 
designed. 

d. The body corporate and/or legal authority of the development shall be responsible 
for monitoring and maintaining the stormwater management devices during both 
construction and operational phases at no cost to the Council. 

e. In case of failure to achieve the designed pollutant load reduction target during the 
operational phase of the development, the owner/body corporate must be 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 
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responsible to replace the proprietary device (e.g. filter cartridges) with an 
appropriate treatment system in accordance with Council’s WSUD guidelines 
(Section SC6.9.3 of the City Plan policy - Land development guidelines) at no cost to 
Council. 

 
Advisory Note: Failure of achieving the water quality objectives during the construction 
and operational phase of the development may trigger significant penalty under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1994. 

65.  Dewatering management plan 
 
A dewatering management plan must be submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval. 
The dewatering management plan must be prepared by a suitably qualified professional 
engineer (RPEQ) in accordance with the Guidelines for Dewatering Management Plan 
(CoGC, May 2016) and include (but not be limited to) the following: 
 
a. Purpose of dewatering (i.e. an explanation of why dewatering is necessary); 
b. Dewatering technique (i.e. wellpoint, deep well, open hole etc.); 
c. Anticipated dewatering flow rate and total dewatering duration; 
d. Controls (i.e. settling tank, turbidity curtain etc.) and method of effluent discharge; 
e. Measures and techniques to manage noise, vibration and odour issues; 
f. Measures and techniques to manage geotechnical stability issues; 
g. Contingency plan in case of emergency situation;   
h. If dewatering conducted in a contaminated area, engineering specifications for 

dewatering effluent treatment (i.e. air-stripper, carbon filtration, etc.) and details for 
an analytical monitoring program to ensure effluent will meet water quality release 
standards described in Tables 1 & 2 of the Guidelines; 

i. A monitoring program to ensure that effluent will comply with applicable water quality 
release standards described in Tables 1 & 2 of the Guidelines; 

j. Baseline assessment of the existing environment (i.e. fauna, water quality) that will 
receive the discharge; 

k. A strategy for monitoring and managing any impacts during the life and after the 
closure of the project; 

l. The point of discharge to the storm water system and to any waterway or water 
body; 

m. A hydrogeological and hydrological assessment of the project area to estimate 
quantity and quality of water to be discharged; 

n. Verification that the quality of discharge water will comply with the receiving water 
duration and frequency of the discharge; 

o. Seasonal variability of the receiving water quality; 
p. Assessment of the viability of treating or recycling the wastewater. 

 
All recommendations within the dewatering management plan must utilise enforceable, 
non-ambiguous terms such as ‘must be’ and ‘shall be’. All works must be carried out in 
accordance with the approved dewatering management plan. 

The Trustee must 
submit the 
dewatering 
management plan to 
Council and obtain 
the Minister’s 
approval prior to the 
building approval or 
commencement of 
works whichever 
occurs first. 

BEACH REPLENSIHMENT 
66.  Excavated sand 

 
All excess sand excavated from the site and suitable for placement onto the ocean 
beach must be managed in accordance with the following requirements: 
 
a. The Trustee must submit a sand management plan to Council for the Minister’s 

approval. The sand management plan must outline appropriate actions to ensure 
excavated sand is appropriately cleaned, treated, placed, levelled and stabilised. 

b. The sand must be sieved to remove all material having a dimension greater than 20 
millimetres. 

c. The sieved sand must be placed onto the ocean beach, profiled and stabilised in 
accordance with the approved sand management plan, prior to the issue of a 
certification of classification/final inspection certificate. 

The sand 
management plan 
must be submitted 
to Council for the 
Minister’s approval 
prior to 
commencement of 
works on site. 
 

All other 
requirements of the 
condition must be 
complied with at all 
times. 
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d. If the sand to be excavated will exceed 2,000 cubic metres, a supervisor, appointed 

by Council, must be employed at the Trustee’s cost for the duration of the sand 
excavation and deposition and the supervisor must: 

i Undertake the physical collection of any waste material deposited 
on the beach as a result of the sand deposition; and 

ii Ensure that the total excess clean sand is deposited, profiled and 
stabilised as directed by Council. 

CRIME PREVENTION AND PEDESTRIAN SAFETY 
67.  Lighting to promote pedestrian safety 

 
Install and maintain lighting for all outdoor pedestrian connections within the 
development, at no cost to Council. The design and construction of the lighting 
system must: 

 
a. Achieve a minimum illuminance level in accordance with Australian Standard 

AS/NZS1158.3.1 Pedestrian area (Category P) lighting; and 
b. Include vandal resistant fixtures. 

Install prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and maintain 
at all times. 

68.  Pedestrian safety during construction 
 
Safe pedestrian movement must be maintained during the construction phase and clear 
directional signage provided.  Any construction barriers must be positioned to ensure they 
do not create concealment spots or potential entrapment zones. 

At all times during 
construction. 
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THE STAR GOLD COAST REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 2 

ADVISORY NOTES 

ADVISORY NOTES: COUNCIL 
A Conditions contained within the Decision Notice 

 
Where applicable, conditions of approval in this Decision Notice have a separate timing 
component to clarify when compliance with the condition must be achieved. This timing 
component forms part of the condition itself. 

B Trustee’s responsibilities  
 
The Trustee is responsible for securing all necessary approvals and tenure, providing 
statutory notifications and complying with all relevant laws. 
 
Nothing in this decision notice alleviates the need for the Trustee to comply with all 
relevant local, State and Commonwealth laws and to ensure appropriate tenure 
arrangements have been made where the use of/reliance upon land other than that 
owned by the Trustee is involved. Without limiting this obligation, the Trustee is 
responsible for: 
 
a. Obtaining all other/further necessary approvals, licences, permits, resource entitlements 

etc by whatever name called required by law before the development the subject of this 
approval can be lawfully commenced and to carry out the activity for its duration; 

b. Providing any notifications required by law (by way of example only, to notify the 
administering authority pursuant to the Environmental Protection Act 1994 of 
environmental harm being caused/threatened by the activity, and upon becoming aware 
the premises is being used for a ‘notifiable activity’); 

c. Securing tenure/permission from the relevant owner to use private or public land not 
owned by the Trustee (including for access required by conditions of approval); 

d. Ensuring the correct siting of structures on the land. An identification survey 
demonstrating correct siting and setbacks of structures may be requested of the 
Trustee to ensure compliance with this decision notice and applicable codes; 

e. Providing Council with proof of payment of the Portable Long Service Leave building 
construction levy (or proof of appropriate exemption) where the value of the Operational 
Works exceeds $150,000. Acceptable proof of payment is a Q.Leave – Notification and 
Payment Form approved by the Authority. Proof of payment must be provided before 
Council can issue a development permit for the Operational Works. This is a 
requirement of section 77(1) of the Building and Construction Industry (Portable Long 
Service Leave) Act 1991; and 

f. Making payment of any outstanding Council rates and charges applicable to the 
development site prior to the lodgement of subdivision plans. 

C Indigenous cultural heritage legislation and duty of care requirement 
 

The Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 (‘AHCA’) is administered by the Department of 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander and Multicultural Affairs (DATSIMA). The AHCA 
establishes a duty of care to take all reasonable and practicable measures to ensure any 
activity does not harm Aboriginal cultural heritage. This duty of care: 
 
a. Is not negated by the issuing of this development approval;  
b. Applies on all land and water, including freehold land; 
c. Lies with the person or entity conducting an activity; and  
d. If breached, is subject to criminal offence penalties. 

 
Those proposing an activity involving surface disturbance beyond that which has 
already occurred at the proposed site must observe this duty of care. 
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Details of how to fulfil this duty of care are outlined in the duty of care guidelines 
gazetted with the AHCA. 
 
The Trustee should contact DATSIMA’s Cultural Heritage Coordination Unit on (07) 3405 
3050 for further information on the responsibilities of developers under the AHCA. 

D Gold Coast Airport Pty Ltd 
 
The CASA Manual of Standards (MOS) Part 139 - Aerodromes, Chapter 7, Sub-section 
7.1.5.2 provides that any structure extending to a height of 150 metres or more above ground 
level (including construction cranes or other temporary equipment) is to be regarded as an 
obstacle unless assessed by CASA to be otherwise.  The Trustee shall supply details of the 
proposed height and position of any such building or structure to Gold Coast Airport Pty Ltd 
for consideration by aviation agencies. 

E No open trenching of the road pavement for water connections across/in roadways 
 

Conduits must be installed to service the proposed development by thrust boring the road 
(open cutting of the road is not permitted) to connect to Council’s potable water supply 
network. In certain circumstances approval of open trenching of the road may be allowed, 
subject to Council approval. 
 
Refer to Gold Coast Water and Waste Network Modifications, Extension and Connections 
Policy Procedures, available on Council’s website: http://www.cityofgoldcoast.com.au 

F Further development permits/compliance permits 
 

Further development permits and/or compliance permits from Council are required to 
facilitate the development of the approved works identified in this decision notice. These 
include: 
 

Gold Coast Water and Waste 
Application to work on the City’s Infrastructure 
Operational works - infrastructure 

 
A copy of this decision notice and accompanying stamped drawings/plans must be submitted 
with any subsequent application identified above. 

G Separate service connection points 
 
Should a volumetric subdivision be pursued, separate water supply services will need to be 
designed and constructed to each of the different uses (e.g. commercial/residential), or to 
each of the volumetric lots created, so as to ensure that all lots within the site have separate 
service connection points. Internal services will need to be managed through the Building 
Management Statement. 

H Connections to, alteration or realignment of Council infrastructure 
 
Where development works require the connection to, alteration, removal or realignment of 
Council infrastructure or impact on other public utility infrastructure (e.g. 
telecommunications, electricity and gas), the Trustee must obtain the necessary approvals 
from the relevant public utility authority prior to works commencing. 
 
Connection to, alteration, removal or realignment of Council infrastructure includes (but is not 
limited to) fire hydrants, water service meters, sewer maintenance hole covers, stormwater 
drainage infrastructure, reinstatement of maintenance hole covers, stormwater drainage 
infrastructure, crossovers, footpaths, road pavement, kerb and channel, kerb ramps, 
medians, traffic islands, road furniture, signage and line-marking. 

I Gold Coast Highway / Elizabeth Avenue / New Development Access 
 
The maximum green time on the western leg (new development access) of the Gold Coast 
Highway / Elizabeth Avenue intersection will be limited to 12 seconds to minimise the 
development’s impact on the Gold Coast Highway through-traffic and light rail operation at 
the intersection. 
 

RTI 200256 File01 - Page 147



ADVISORY NOTES: DTMR 
Further development permits, compliance permits or compliance certificates 
 
A Works in State-controlled road reserve (WSCRR) 

Works to modify Casino Drive and Hooker Boulevard (Nerang-Broadbeach Rd) Egress 
 
Under section 33 of the Transport Infrastructure Act 1994, written approval is required from 
the Department of Transport and Main Roads to carry out road works on a State-controlled 
road or interfere with a State-controlled road or its operation. This may include where road 
works to a Council road interferes with a State-controlled road or its operations. 
 
No works are to commence within the State-controlled road reserve until approval of the 
plan/s showing the proposed works is issued by the Department of Transport and Main 
Roads in accordance with section 33 of the Transport Infrastructure Act 1994. 
 
The approval process may require the approval of engineering designs of the proposed 
works, certified by a Registered Professional Engineer of Queensland (RPEQ).This approval 
may be subject to conditions related to the works construction process. Please contact the 
department (South Coast Region) on (07) 5563 6600 or at SouthCoast@tmr.qld.gov.au to 
make an application for works in the State-controlled road reserve (WSCRR). Link: 
https://www.tmr.qld.gov.au/Community-and-environment/Planning-and-development/Other-
matters-requiring-approval#roadworks 

B Road Corridor Permit 
Grade Separated Active Transport Bridge over Hooker Boulevard (Nerang-
Broadbeach Rd) between The Star Broadbeach and Broadbeach South Light Rail 
Station 
 
Under section 50 of the Transport Infrastructure Act 1994, written approval is required from 
the Department of Transport and Main Roads to undertake ancillary works and 
encroachments under the Act. 
 
The approval process may require the approval of engineering designs of the proposed 
works, certified by a Registered Professional Engineer of Queensland (RPEQ). This approval 
may be subject to conditions related to the works construction process. Please contact the 
department (South Coast Region) on (07) 5563 6600 or at SouthCoast@tmr.qld.gov.au to 
make an application for works. 
 
For information on the process and forms, see Link: https://www.tmr.qld.gov.au/Community-
and-environment/Planning-and-development/Othermatters-requiring-approval/Road-
Corridor-Permit.aspx 
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ADVISORY NOTES: MINISTERIAL 
A Further information regarding these conditions 

 
Further information regarding the context of the enclosed conditions can be obtained from 
the relevant detailed reports prepared by each of the involved public sector entities and as 
provided to the Trustee. Should there be a conflict between the contents of a report and the 
provisions of the enclosed conditions, the terms of the conditions will prevail unless 
otherwise expressly stated.  
 
The involved public sector entities are:  
• Council of the City of Gold Coast (Council) 
• Department of Transport and Main Roads (DTMR) 
• Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning 

(DSDMIP), coordinating the Department of Agriculture and Fisheries (DAF) and the 
Department of Environment and Science (DES) 

• Department of Justice and Attorney-General, including the Office of Liquor and Gaming 
Regulation (OLGR).  
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The Star Gold Coast Redevelopment – Stage 2 
 

List of Development Application Material 
 

(Not attached but available upon request from OLGR) 
 
 

Destination Gold Coast Consortium for Jupiters Custodian Pty Ltd (Trustee) 
 

• Development Application – prepared by DBI Design Pty Ltd, dated 30 June 2017 
 

• Stage 2 Development Planning Report – prepared by Urbis Pty Ltd, dated 30 June 
2017 

 
• Landscape Report – prepared by Urbis Pty Ltd, dated 30 June 2017 

 
• 03 Podium Edge – prepared by DBI Design Pty Ltd, dated September 2017 

 
• 04 Sub-Tropical Design – prepared by DBI Design Pty Ltd, dated September 2017 

 
• Stage 2 Development Application Traffic Engineering Report – prepared by SLR 

Consulting Australia Pty Ltd, dated 30 June 2017 
 

• Stage 2 Development Environment Noise Assessment Report (Acoustic Consulting) – 
prepared by TTM Consulting Pty Ltd, dated 30 June 2017 
 

• Stage 2 Development Application Waste Management Plan – prepared by Arcadis 
Australia Pacific Pty Limited, dated 30 June 2017 
 

• Stage 2 Development Application Waste Management Plan – prepared by Arcadis 
Australia Pacific Pty Limited, dated 15 September 2017 

 
• Flooding and Hydraulics impact Assessment – prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific 

Pty Limited, dated 30 June 2017 
 

• Flooding and Hydraulics impact Assessment – prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific 
Pty Limited, dated 22 September 2017 

 
• Site Based Stormwater Management Plan –  prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty 

Limited, dated 30 June 2017 
 

• Site Based Stormwater Management Plan –  prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty 
Limited, dated 25 September 2017 

 
• Sewer Network Capacity Assessment – prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty 

Limited, dated 30 June 2017 
 

• Water Network Capacity Assessment – prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty 
Limited, dated 30 June 2017 
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26 September 2018 

 
Mr Mike Sarquis 
Executive Director 
Office of Liquor & Gaming Regulation 
 
By email: mike.sarquis@justice.qld.gov.au 
 
 
Dear Mr Sarquis 
 
The Star Entertainment Qld Limited  
2018 Directors’ Report and Financial Report  
 
For your information, please find enclosed the Director’s Report and Financial 
Report of The Star Entertainment Qld Limited (A.C.N. 010 741 045) for the 
year ended 30 June 2018. 
 
If you have any queries, please contact me directly on (07) 3228 0012. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Jennie Yuen  
Secretariat & Shareholder Relations Manager 
The Star Entertainment Group Limited 
 
Encl.
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24 September 2018 

Hon. Yvette D’Ath MP 
Attorney-General and Minister for Justice 
Department of Justice and Attorney-General 
State Law Building 
 
By email: Attorney@ministerial.qld.gov.au 
 
 
Dear Ms D’Ath 
 
The Star Entertainment Group Limited A.C.N. 149 629 023 
2018 Annual Report & Notice of Annual General Meeting  

 
Pursuant to Schedule 1 of the Echo Deed (Queensland) dated 20 May 2011 
between The State of Queensland, The Star Entertainment Group Limited 
(formerly Echo Entertainment Group Limited) and The Star Entertainment Qld 
Limited (formerly Jupiters Limited), please find enclosed the following 
documents: 
1. 2018 Annual Report 
2. Chairman’s letter and Notice of Annual General Meeting (including 
  Explanatory Memorandum) 
3. Voting Form 
4. Question Form 
 
The above documents are being sent by The Star Entertainment Group Limited 
to its shareholders on the same date as this letter. 
 
If you have any queries, please contact me directly on (07) 3228 0012. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
Jennie Yuen  
Secretariat & Shareholder Relations Manager 
The Star Entertainment Group Limited 
 
Encls. 
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21 February 2019 

 
Hon. Yvette D’Ath MP 
Attorney-General and Minister for Justice 
Department of Justice and Attorney-General 
State Law Building 
 
By email: Attorney@ministerial.qld.gov.au 
 
 
Dear Ms D’Ath 
 
The Star Entertainment Group Limited A.C.N. 149 629 023 
Directors’ Report and Financial Report for the half year ended  
31 December 2018 
 
For your information, please find enclosed the Director’s Report and Financial 
Report for The Star Entertainment Group Limited in respect of the half year 
ended 31 December 2018, provided pursuant to clause 8 in Schedule 1 of the 
Echo Deed (Queensland) between The State of Queensland, The Star 
Entertainment Group Limited (formerly Echo Entertainment Group Limited) and 
The Star Entertainment Qld Limited (formerly Jupiters Limited). 
 
If you have any queries, please contact me directly on (07) 3228 0012. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
Jennie Yuen  
Secretariat & Shareholder Relations Manager 
The Star Entertainment Group Limited 
 
Encl. 
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The Star Entertainment Group Limited

A.C.N. 149 629 023

ASX Code: SGR

and its controlled entities

Direc tors' Report and Financial Report

for the half year ended 31 December 2018
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Directors' Report
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors of The Star Entertainment Group Limited (the Company) submit their report for the consolidated entity
comprising the Company and its controlled entities (collectively referred to as the Group) in respect of the half year
ended 31 December 2018.

1. Directors  
The names and titles of the Company's Directors in office during the half year ended 31 December 2018 and until the
date of this report are set out below. Directors were in office for this entire period.

Directors
John O'Neill AO Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Matt Bekier Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Gerard Bradley Non-Executive Director

Ben Heap Non-Executive Director

Katie Lahey AM Non-Executive Director

Sally Pitkin Non-Executive Director

Richard Sheppard Non-Executive Director

Zlatko Todorcevski Non-Executive Director

2. Principal activities  
The principal activities of the Group are the management of integrated resorts with gaming, entertainment and
hospitality services.

The Group operates The Star Sydney (Sydney), The Star Gold Coast (Gold Coast) and Treasury Brisbane
(Brisbane). The Group also manages the Gold Coast Convention and Exhibition Centre on behalf of the Queensland
Government and invests in a number of strategic joint ventures.

3. Financial results and review of operations    
Gross revenue, before commissions, of $1,333.7 million was up 5.0% on the prior comparable period (pcp), due to
high quality, broad-based domestic revenue growth supported by a high win rate in the International VIP Rebate
business (1.62% versus 1.06% in the pcp). 

Normalised1 gross revenue decreased 6.1% in 1H FY2019 versus the pcp. Strong growth in the domestic business
has been offset by reduced normalised revenue in the International VIP Rebate business. The International VIP
Rebate business has been impacted by an abnormally low turn rate of 9.7x (lowest over last 5 years, 13.0x average),
given the high win rate.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) of $332.2 million was up 67.7% on the pcp.
Normalised EBITDA increased 2.6% to $297.1 million.

Operating costs were up 0.3% on the pcp, with domestic volume growth (gaming and non-gaming), higher wages and
higher interim service levels (newly commissioned Gold Coast assets, Sydney Sovereign Resorts transition) offset by
lower VIP volumes and continuing cost management.

Depreciation and amortisation expense of $106.9 million was up 19.3% on the pcp reflecting newly commissioned
assets as well as accelerated depreciation of $9.0m. Finance costs of $17.0 million were down 72.1% on the pcp. The
pcp included a $43 million (pre-tax) one-off loss relating to the restructure of the US Private Placement (USPP) note
program (disclosed as a significant item).

Net profit after tax (NPAT) was $148.5 million, 351.4% up on the pcp. Normalised NPAT, excluding significant items,
was $123.8 million, down 2.4% on the pcp. 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) were each 16.2 cents, up 305.0% on the pcp. An interim dividend of 10.5
cents fully franked was declared which equals to a payout ratio of 78% of normalised NPAT and 65% of statutory
NPAT, reflecting positive momentum in the business.

1 Normalised results reflect the underlying performance of the business as they remove the inherent win rate volatility of the
International VIP Rebate business. Normalised results are adjusted using an average win rate of 1.35% on actual turnover and
commissions.
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Net overdue International VIP Rebate business receivables of $76.2 million were up from $28.7 million at June 2018.
Receivables remain well managed, with the increase reflecting the high win rate.

Net debt2 was $791.3 million (30 June 2018: $678.0 million) with $463 million in undrawn facilities and an average
drawn debt maturity of 4.3 years. Gearing levels remain conservative at 1.3 times (net debt to the last 12 months
trailing EBITDA) positioning the Group well to continue to support planned investments. Operating cash flow from
operations was $247.5 million (31 December 2017: $195.2 million) with an EBITDA to cash conversion ratio of 86%
(31 December 2017: 129%).

Trade and other payables of $296.3 million were down 19.0% from June 2018 as a result of lower gaming related
payables, representing players' funds deposited and chips in circulation at 31 December 2018.
  
The Group comprises the following three operating segments:
• Sydney;
• Gold Coast; and
• Brisbane.

Refer to note A1 to the Financial Report for more details of the financial performance of the Company’s operating
segments. The activities and drivers of the results for these operations are discussed below.

Sydney
Gross revenue was $802.5 million, down 7.3% on the pcp and EBITDA was $170.9 million, up 59.0% on the pcp. The
increase is due to domestic growth and a higher win rate in the International VIP Rebate business.

Normalised gross revenue decreased 15.4% on the pcp to $811.6 million with normalised EBITDA decreasing 6.3% to
$190.3 million on the pcp, with the reduction driven by reduced turnover in the International VIP Rebate business. 

Domestic revenue growth of 5.4% on the pcp reflected broad-based growth in domestic gaming. Electronic gaming
market share increased to a record 9.4% versus 9.0% in the pcp.

The Sydney property is a Leadership Partner of City of Sydney's Chinese New Year Festival, a proud sponsor and
participant in the Sydney Gay and Lesbian Mardi Gras, and a Foundation Partner of the Australian Turf Club, in
addition to participating in The Everest horse race. The Sydney property is also a sponsor of the Sydney Swans, New
South Wales Rugby League (NSW Blues) and Sydney FC. 

The property also contributed to various charities during the period, including Barnardos Australia and Taronga
Conservation Society Australia.

Queensland (Gold Coast and Brisbane)
Gross revenue was $531.2 million, up 31.3% on the pcp and EBITDA was $160.3 million, up 74.0% on the pcp. The
increase is largely due to growth in all domestic business segments, supported by a higher win rate of 2.32% versus
1.45% in the pcp in the International VIP Rebate business.

Normalised gross revenue grew 16.1% on the pcp to $465.5 million and normalised EBITDA, increased 23.5% to
$106.8 million due to a 90.9% increase in International VIP Rebate turnover.

Domestic revenue grew 6.1% on the pcp reflecting both strong growth in gaming and non-gaming segments and
positive responses by guests to recently completed investments. Electronic gaming market share for 1H FY2019 was
up 1.1% versus the pcp. 

The Gold Coast property is the sponsor of the iconic Magic Millions Raceday and Carnival. The Brisbane property was
a sponsor of the Brisbane Festival. 

The Queensland properties also contribute to various charities and not-for-profit organisations including Surf Life
Saving Queensland and Cerebral Palsy League Queensland.

International VIP Rebate business
Results for the International VIP Rebate business are included in the property performance overviews above.

International VIP Rebate business turnover of $20.7 billion was down 33.0% on pcp. International VIP Rebate
business gross revenue increased 2.5% to $336.6 million on pcp assisted by a high win rate of 1.62% (1.06% in pcp).
Normalised gross revenue decreased 33.0% on pcp to $280.0 million, impacted by low turns following the high win
rate.

2 Net debt is shown as interest bearing liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents, less net position of derivative financial instruments.
Derivative financial instruments reflect the position of currency swaps and interest rate hedges entered into for the USPP debt.
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4. Earnings per share (EPS)  
Basic and Diluted EPS for the period were both 16.2 cents (31 December 2017: 4.0 cents), up 305.0% on the pcp.

5. Dividends  
5.1. Interim dividend   

Since the end of the half year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have declared an interim dividend of 10.5 cents
per ordinary share, fully franked (31 December 2017: 7.5 cents).

The aggregate amount of the interim dividend expected to be paid on 3 April 2019 out of retained earnings at 31
December 2018, but not recognised as a liability at the end of the half year, is approximately $96.2 million.

5.2. Dividend reinvestment plan (DRP)   
The Company’s DRP is in operation for the interim dividend. The last date for receipt of election notices to enable
participation for the interim dividend is 28 February 2019. The price at which shares are allocated under the DRP is the
daily volume weighted average market price of the Company's shares sold in the ordinary course of trading on the ASX
over a period of 10 trading days beginning on (and including) the fourth trading day after the Record Date (27 February
2019). Shares allocated under the DRP will rank equally with the Company's existing fully paid ordinary shares.

6. Significant events after the end of the half year  
Other than those events that have already been disclosed in this report or elsewhere in the Financial Report, there
have been no other significant events occurring after 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report that have
materially affected or may materially affect the Group’s operations, the results of those operations or the Group’s state
of affairs.

7. Rounding of amounts  
The Star Entertainment Group Limited is a company of the kind specified in the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission’s ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191. In accordance with
that Instrument, amounts in the Financial Report and the Directors’ Report have been rounded to the nearest hundred
thousand dollars unless specifically stated to be otherwise.

8. Auditor's independence declaration  
Attached is a copy of the auditor's independence declaration provided under section 307C of the Corporations Act
2001 (Cth) in relation to the review of the Financial Report for the half year ended 31 December 2018. The auditor's
independence declaration forms part of this Directors’ Report.

This report has been signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

John O'Neill AO
Chairman
Sydney
21 February 2019
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

 
 

 

Ernst & Young 
200 George Street 
Sydney  NSW  2000 Australia 
GPO Box 2646 Sydney  NSW  2001 

 Tel: +61 2 9248 5555 
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959 
ey.com/au 

 

Auditor�s Independence Declaration to the Directors of The Star 

Entertainment Group Limited 

 

As lead auditor for the review of The Star Entertainment Group Limited for the half1year ended 31 
December 2018, I declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 
 

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in 
relation to the review; and   

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the review. 
 
This declaration is in respect of The Star Entertainment Group Limited and the entities it controlled 
during the financial period. 
 
 

 
Ernst & Young 
 

 
Megan Wilson 
Partner 
21 February 2019 
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Note

December

2018

$m

December

2017

Restated*

$m

Revenue A2,E 1,150.1 1,001.2

Other income 11.0 0.1
Government taxes and levies (284.2) (268.6)

Employment costs (338.8) (334.7)

Depreciation and amortisation (106.9) (89.6)

Cost of sales (47.8) (45.7)

Property costs (40.8) (38.9)

Advertising and promotions (55.5) (58.4)

Other expenses (62.3) (57.9)

Share of net profit of associate and joint venture entities accounted
for using the equity method

D2 0.5 1.0

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 225.3 108.5

Net finance costs (17.0) (60.9)

Profit before income tax (PBT) 208.3 47.6

Income tax expense (59.8) (14.7)

Net profit after tax (NPAT) 148.5 32.9

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges taken to equity, net of tax 2.0 0.3

Total comprehensive income for the period 150.5 33.2

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share 16.2 cents 4.0 cents

Diluted earnings per share 16.2 cents 4.0 cents

Fully franked dividend per share A3 10.5 cents 7.5 cents

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

* December 2017 comparatives have been restated as part of the transition to AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Refer to
note E(i) for further information. 
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Note

December

2018

$m

June

2018

$m

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 109.2 110.3

Trade and other receivables 173.0 221.5

Inventories 17.7 15.5

Derivative financial instruments B1 5.5 3.9

Other assets 48.8 44.8

Total current assets 354.2 396.0

Property, plant and equipment 2,723.2 2,658.6

Intangible assets 1,857.8 1,858.7

Derivative financial instruments B1 75.5 57.4

Investment in associate and joint venture entities D2 321.5 288.9

Other assets 46.9 11.2

Total non current assets 5,024.9 4,874.8

TOTAL ASSETS 5,379.1 5,270.8

LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 296.3 365.8

Interest bearing liabilities 16.6 133.8

Income tax payable 17.0 0.3

Provisions 66.3 64.5

Derivative financial instruments B1 4.1 4.2

Other liabilities 20.0 20.3

Total current liabilities 420.3 588.9

Interest bearing liabilities 954.0 686.2

Deferred tax liabilities 180.0 175.9

Provisions 14.8 12.9

Derivative financial instruments B1 6.8 25.4

Other liabilities 7.3 -

Total non current liabilities 1,162.9 900.4

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,583.2 1,489.3

NET ASSETS 3,795.9 3,781.5

EQUITY
Share capital 3,063.0 3,070.2

Retained earnings 740.4 718.3

Reserves (7.5) (7.0)

TOTAL EQUITY 3,795.9 3,781.5

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Note

December

2018

$m

December

2017

Restated *

$m

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash receipts from customers (inclusive of GST) 1,153.0 1,027.2

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST) (600.0) (539.1)

Payment of government levies, gaming taxes and GST (268.8) (232.4)

Interest received 0.3 0.5

Income taxes paid (37.0) (61.0)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 247.5 195.2

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant, equipment and intangibles (174.4) (265.3)

Payments for investment in associate and joint venture entities D2 (40.6) (33.0)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (215.0) (298.3)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from interest bearing liabilities 200.0 793.5

Repayment of interest bearing liabilities (83.0) (616.2)

Proceeds from settlement of derivative financial instruments - 98.8

Dividends paid A3 (119.2) (70.2)

Finance costs (24.2) (27.9)

Purchase of treasury shares (6.7) -

Issuance fees on purchase of shares (0.5) -

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (33.6) 178.0

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1.1) 74.9

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 110.3 113.7

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 109.2 188.6

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

* December 2017 comparatives have been restated as part of the transition to AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Refer to
note E(i) for further information. 
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Note

Ordinary
shares

$m

Treasury
shares

$m

Retained
earnings

$m

Hedging
reserve

$m

Share based
payment
reserve

$m

Total

$m

2019

Balance at 1 July 2018 3,070.2 - 718.3 (17.2) 10.2 3,781.5
Profit for the year - - 148.5 - - 148.5
Other comprehensive income - - - 2.0 - 2.0

Total comprehensive income - - 148.5 2.0 - 150.5
Dividends paid A3 - - (119.2) - - (119.2)
Purchase of treasury shares B2 - (6.7) - - - (6.7)
Transition to AASB 9 Debtors provision opening adjustment - - (7.2) - - (7.2)
Issuance fees (0.5) - - - - (0.5)
Employee share based payments - - - - (2.5) (2.5)

Balance at  31 December 2018 3,069.7 (6.7) 740.4 (15.2) 7.7 3,795.9

2018

Balance at 1 July 2017 2,580.5 - 702.3 (13.8) 6.6 3,275.6

Profit for the year - - 32.9 - - 32.9

Other comprehensive income - - - 0.3 - 0.3

Total comprehensive income - - 32.9 0.3 - 33.2

Dividends paid A3 - - (70.2) - - (70.2)

Employee share based payments - - - - 0.8 0.8

Balance at  31 December 2017 2,580.5 - 665.0 (13.5) 7.4 3,239.4

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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A Key income statement disclosures  
A1 Segment information  

The Group's operating segments have been determined based on the internal management reporting structure and the
nature of products and services provided by the Group. They reflect the business level at which financial information is
provided to the executive decision makers, being the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and the Group
Chief Financial Officer, for decision making regarding resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has three reportable segments:

Sydney Comprises The Star Sydney's casino operations, including hotels, apartment complex, restaurants
and bars.

Gold Coast Comprises The Star Gold Coast's casino operations, including hotel, theatre, restaurants and bars.

Brisbane Comprises Treasury's casino operations, including hotel, restaurants and bars.

For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Sydney

$m

Gold Coast

$m

Brisbane

$m

Total

$m

Gross revenues - VIP a 179.2 152.6 4.8 336.6

Gross revenues - domestic a 623.3 196.1 177.7 997.1

Segment revenue  802.5 348.7 182.5 1,333.7

Segment earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation and significant
items 170.9 107.1 53.2 331.2

Depreciation and amortisation 65.8 26.8 14.3 106.9

Capital expenditure 110.2 51.8 13.9 175.9

For the half year ended 31 December 2017
Sydney

$m

Gold Coast

$m

Brisbane

$m

Total

$m

Gross revenues - VIP a 275.9 48.1 4.5 328.5

Gross revenues - domestic a 589.9 185.5 166.6 942.0

Total gross revenue 865.8 233.6 171.1 1,270.5

Segment earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation and significant items 107.5 52.4 39.7 199.6

Depreciation and amortisation 55.1 19.3 15.2 89.6

Capital expenditure 78.4 183.4 19.7 281.5

a Gross revenue is presented as the gross gaming win before player rebates and promotional allowances of $183.6m (2017:
$82.3m).
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December
2018

$m

December
2017

$m
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit to profit before income tax
Segment earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and
significant items 331.2 199.6

Depreciation and amortisation (106.9) (89.6)

Significant items (refer to note A4) 0.5 (45.5)

Unallocated items:
- net finance costs (17.0) (17.9)

- share of net profit of associate and joint venture accounted for using the
equity method

0.5 1.0

Profit before income tax (PBT) 208.3 47.6

A2 Revenue  
December

2018

$m

December 
2017

Restated*
$m

Domestic gaming 698.5 664.4

International VIP Rebate 167.7 72.0

Non-gaming 277.9 260.8

Other 6.0 4.0

Total revenue 1,150.1 1,001.2

* December 2017 comparatives have been restated as part of the transition to AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Refer to note E(i) for further information. 

A3 Dividends  
Cents per

share
Cents per

share
Dividends per share
Interim dividend 10.5 7.5

$m $m
Dividends declared and paid during the half year on ordinary shares
Final dividend paid during the half year in respect of the year ended 30 June a 119.2 70.2

a A final dividend of 13.0 cents per share fully franked for the year ended 30 June 2018 (30 June 2017: 8.5 cents) was declared
on 23 August 2018 and paid on 4 October 2018 (2017: declared on 22 August 2017 and paid on 26 September 2017).

Dividends declared after the end of the half year
Interim dividend declared for the half year ended 31 December b 96.2 61.9

b Since the end of the half year, the Directors have declared an interim dividend of 10.5 cents per ordinary share (31 December
2017: 7.5 cents), fully franked. The aggregate amount is expected to be paid on 3 April 2019 out of retained earnings at 31
December 2018, but not recognised as a liability at the end of the half year.
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A4 Significant items  
Profit before income tax (PBT) is stated after charging the following significant items:

December

2018

$m

December

2017

$m

Gain on disposal of land a (9.7) -

Restructuring costs b 9.2 -

Finance costs relating to US Private Placement tender and reissue c - 43.0

Pre opening expenses d - 2.5

Net significant items (gain)/loss  (0.5) 45.5

Tax (benefit)/expense on significant items (4.1) (13.7)

Significant items (gain)/loss net of tax (4.6) 31.8

a Gain on disposal of Gold Coast land to the Destination Gold Coast Consortium joint venture for construction of the first
residential, hotel and retail tower.

b One-off restructuring costs relating to the operating model project.

c In August 2017, the Group completed a tender and reissue offer in relation to 73% of the Group’s US Private Placement
borrowings. This was undertaken to extend the Group’s tenor on average drawn debt maturity by 3 years to 5.2 years, reduce
finance costs on a like for like basis and lower refinancing requirements for the Group. The average blended cost of debt on all
US Private Placement notes following the issue was 5% (down from over 9% on previous notes). The transaction resulted in a
one-off loss relating to the crystallisation of an existing obligation for the related out of the money interest rate swaps and other
costs.  

d Consistent with previous accounting treatment, pre opening expenses such as marketing, operating and training expenses
incurred prior to the opening of The Darling Gold Coast, have been treated as significant due to their size and non-recurring
nature.
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B Key balance sheet disclosures  
B1 Derivative financial instruments  

Swaps
Fair value is calculated using discounted future cash flow techniques, where estimated cash flows and estimated
discount rates are based on market data at the balance sheet date.

Forward currency contracts
Fair value is calculated using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

US Private Placement (USPP)
Fair value is calculated using discounted future cash flow techniques, where estimated cash flows and estimated
discount rates are based on market data at the balance sheet date, in combination with restatement to current foreign
exchange rates.

December 2018
$m

June 2018
$m

Current assets
Cross currency swaps 5.5 3.6

Forward currency contracts - 0.3

5.5 3.9
Non current assets
Cross currency swaps 75.5 57.4

75.5 57.4

Current liabilities
Cross currency swaps - 0.3

Interest rate swaps 4.1 3.9

4.1 4.2

Non current liabilities
Cross currency swaps - 18.4

Interest rate swaps 6.8 7.0

6.8 25.4

Net financial assets 70.1 31.7

Net derivative assets up $38.4 million due to a decline in the AUD:USD exchange rate from 30 June 2018 to 31
December 2018. 

Valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments
The valuation of derivatives and financial instruments is based on market conditions at the balance sheet date. The
value of the instrument fluctuates on a daily basis and the actual amounts realised may differ materially from their
value at the balance sheet date.

Financial Instruments - fair value hierarchy
There are various methods available in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument. 
The methods comprise:

Level 1 the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2 the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3 the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.

All of the Group's derivative financial instruments are valued using the Level 2 valuation techniques, being observable
inputs. There have been no transfers between levels during the period. 
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B2 Treasury shares  
Number of

shares $m

1 July 2018 - -

Treasury shares purchased 1,458,361 6.7

31 December 2018 1,458,361 6.7

During the period, the Group purchased 1,458,361 of its own shares for use to settle future employee share based
payment schemes.

C Commitments, contingencies and subsequent events  
C1 Commitments and contingent liabilities  

Other commitments a

December

2018

$m

June

2018

$m

Not later than one year 157.0 64.3

Later than one year but not later than five years 25.6 1.3

Later than five years - -

182.6 65.6

a Other commitments as at 31 December 2018 mainly include capital construction and related costs in connection with the
redevelopment in Sydney.

The Group has capital commitments of approximately $1.1 billion into Destination Brisbane Consortium (DBC) to fund
the construction of the Integrated Resort which is expected to open in 2022 (subject to various approvals, including
Board approvals of the proposed detailed design).

The Group has capital commitments of approximately $105.0 million into Destination Gold Coast Consortium (DGCC)
to fund the construction of the first residential, hotel and retail tower, which is expected to open in 2022.

Other commitments include the redevelopment of the Gold Coast and Sydney properties, both of which are well
underway.  

C2 Subsequent events  
Since 31 December 2018, the Directors have declared a dividend of 10.5 cents per ordinary share. The total amount of
the dividend is approximately $96.2 million. This has not been provided for in the financial statements for the half year
ended 31 December 2018 (refer to note A3). 

Other than those events disclosed in the Directors' Report or elsewhere in these half year financial statements, there
have been no other significant events occurring after the balance sheet date and up to the date of this report, which
may materially affect either the Group's operations or results of those operations or the Group's state of affairs.
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D Group structure  
D1 Related party disclosure  

Investments in controlled entities   
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the Company's controlled entities
in accordance with the accounting policy described in the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2018. The
financial years of all controlled entities are the same as that of the Company.

The Company incorporated the following Australian entities in the period up to 31 December 2018: 

Name of controlled entities
Country of
incorporation Equity type

Equity interest
at 31

December
2018

%

Equity
interest at 30

June
2018

%

The Star Entertainment Pyrmont Holdings Pty Ltd a Australia ordinary shares 100.0 0.0

The Star Entertainment Pyrmont Investments No.1
Pty Ltd

a
Australia ordinary shares 100.0 0.0

a Incorporated on 10 October 2018.

D2 Investment in associate and joint venture entities  
Set out below are the investments of the Group as at 31 December 2018 which, in the opinion of the Directors, are
material to the Group. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held
by the Group. The country of incorporation is also their principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership
interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Name of  entity
Country of
incorporation

% of
ownership

Nature of
ownership

Measurement
method

Carrying
amount

$m

Destination Brisbane Consortium Integrated
Resort Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 50 Associate Equity method 257.7

Festival Car Park Pty Ltd Australia 50 Joint venture Equity method 14.0

Destination Gold Coast Investments Pty Ltd Australia 50 Joint venture Equity method 43.9

Destination Gold Coast Consortium Pty Ltd Australia 33.3 Joint venture Equity method 5.9

Total equity accounted investments 321.5

The carrying amount of the equity-accounted investments has changed in the six months to 31 December 2018, as
follows:

Name of entity

Balance at 1
July 2018

$m

Net
movement

$m 

Profit/(loss)
for the period

$m

Eliminations *

$m

Balance at 31
December 2018

$m

Destination Brisbane Consortium Integrated
Resort Holdings Pty Ltd 223.7 34.5 (0.5) - 257.7

Festival Car Park Pty Ltd 13.8 - 0.2 - 14.0

Destination Gold Coast Investments Pty Ltd 44.6 (1.6) 0.9 - 43.9

Destination Gold Coast Consortium Pty Ltd 6.8 7.7 (0.1) (8.5) 5.9

288.9 40.6 0.5 (8.5) 321.5

* Elimination of one third of the gain on sale of land (see note A4a) for the Group's share of profit relating to its equity interest in the
joint venture.

Commitments and contingent liabilities
DBC has current capital commitments of approximately $2.1 billion to fund the construction of the Integrated Resort,
which is expected to open in 2022 (subject to various approvals, including Board approvals of the proposed detailed
design).

DGCC has current capital commitments of approximately $320.0 million to fund the construction of the first residential,
hotel and retail tower, which is expected to open in 2022.  
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For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Summarised financial information  
E Accounting policies and corporate information  

Corporate Information  
The Star Entertainment Group Limited (the Company) is a company incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The
Financial Report of the Company for the half year ended 31 December 2018 comprises the Company and its
controlled entities (collectively referred to as the Group). The Company's registered office is Level 3, 159 William
Street, Brisbane QLD 4000.

The Company is of the kind specified in Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) Instrument
2016/191. In accordance with that Instrument, amounts in the Financial Report and the Directors' Report have been
rounded to the nearest hundred thousand dollars, unless specifically stated to be otherwise. All amounts are in
Australian dollars ($). The Company is a for profit organisation.

The half year Financial Report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 21 February 2019.

Basis of preparation of the half year report  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this half year Financial Report are consistent with those
applied in the annual Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 31 December 2018 have been
prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting.

The half year Financial Report does not include all the notes of the type normally included in an annual Financial
Report. Accordingly, this report is to be read in conjunction with the audited Financial Report for the year ended 30
June 2018, and any public announcements made by the Company during the interim reporting period in accordance
with its continuous disclosure obligations under ASX listing rules.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions  
Preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards and IFRS, requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their carrying value as at the
balance sheet date.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
− Asset useful lives and residual values;
− Impairment of assets;
− Valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments (refer note B1);
− Provision for impairment of trade receivables;
− Significant items (refer note A4); and
− Provisions.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset or liability in future periods.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures  
The Group has adopted the following new and amended accounting standards, which became applicable from 1 July
2018: 

Reference Title

(i) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(ii) AASB 9 Financial Instruments
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(i) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Group applies, for the first time in FY2019, AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, replacing the
previous guidance applied under AASB 118 Revenue and IFRIC 13 – Customer Loyalty Programmes. 

AASB 15 establishes a single comprehensive model that applies to accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. The core principle of AASB 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue equating to the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. The principles in AASB 15 provide a more structured approach to
measuring and recognising revenue. 

The Group has adopted the new standard using the full retrospective method of adoption. The major changes as a
result of the adoption of the new standard are as follows:

− Under the new revenue standard, the stand-alone selling price of complimentary services (including hotel room
nights, food and beverage, and other services) that are provided to casino guests as incentives related to gaming
play are recorded as revenues related to the respective goods or services as they are provided to the patron.
Historically, these amounts were recorded as gaming revenue along with the original gaming transaction. The
allocation of revenue to non-gaming activities is measured based on the stand-alone selling price of the goods and
services provided. After allocation of revenue to non-gaming, the residual amount is recorded as gaming revenue.
This change primarily results in a decrease in gaming revenue and an increase in non-gaming revenues related to
the respective goods or services provided to the customer. 

− A portion of commissions and rebates paid to gaming promoters, representing the estimated incentives that were
returned to customers, were previously reported as reductions in revenues, with the balance of commission
expenses reflected as casino expenses. As a result of the adoption of the new standard, all commissions and
rebates paid to gaming promoters are reflected as reductions in casino revenues. This change primarily results in a
decrease in casino expenses and a corresponding decrease in casino revenues. 

The amounts of affected financial statement line items in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the prior period before and after the adoption of the new revenue standard are as follows:

December

2017

Reported

$m

Adjustments
for AASB 15

$m

Reclassified c 

$m

December

2017

Restated

$m

Consolidated income statement
Domestic gaming a 796.8 (132.4) - 664.4

International VIP Rebate a 328.5 (256.5) - 72.0

Non-gaming b 141.2 119.6 - 260.8

Other b 4.0 - - 4.0

Gross Revenue 1,270.5 (269.3)
Players rebates and promotional allowances (82.3) 82.3

Revenue 1,188.2 (187.0) - 1,001.2
Commissions and fees (197.7) 187.0 10.7 -

Advertising and promotions (47.7) - (10.7) (58.4)

942.8 - - 942.8

Consolidated statement of cash flows
Net cash receipts from customers (inclusive of
GST) 1,214.2 (187.0) - 1,027.2

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive
of GST) (726.1) 187.0 - (539.1)

488.1 - - 488.1

a  Domestic gaming and International VIP Rebate were previously disclosed together as Gaming.
b  Non-gaming and Other were previously disclosed together. 
c  Incentives previously included in Commissions and fees have moved to Advertising and promotions. 
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Revenue
Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies its obligations in relation to the provision of goods and services to its
customers in the ordinary course of business. Revenue is measured at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for performing these obligations. Revenue comprises net gaming
win, less player and gaming promoter rebates and promotional allowances, as well as other non-gaming revenue from
hotels, restaurants and bars. 

(ii) AASB 9 Financial Instruments
The accounting standard replaces ‘AASB 139 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ that relates to
the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.
The adoption of AASB 9, including an election for hedging, from 1 July 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In accordance with the transition provisions in
AASB 9 (7.2.15), comparative figures have not been restated. 
The effect of the changes on retained earnings is as follows:

2018

$m

Closing retained earnings as of 30 June 2018 718.3

Increase in provision for impairment (7.2)

Opening retained earnings as of 1 July 2018 711.1

Impairment of financial assets
The Group’s financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables that are
subsequently recognised at amortised cost. The Group applies the AASB 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses, using a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. Cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment requirements of AASB 9 however due to their nature the expected loss allowance is
immaterial.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and days past due. The provision for impairment of trade receivables applying lifetime expected credit
loss as compared to the incurred loss model of AASB 139 resulted in a $7.2 million adjustment to opening retained
earnings as of 1 July 2018.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at face value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash
balances and call deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original settlement amount less a provision for expected credit loss
impaired, where applicable. Bad debts are written off when they are known to be uncollectible. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to the income statement. Other receivables are carried at amortised
costs less impairment. 

Derivative financial instruments
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks
arising from operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its Treasury Policy, the Group does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. However, derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised immediately in the income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting,
the effective portion of the gain or loss is deferred in equity while the ineffective portion is recognised in the income
statement.
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The fair value of interest rate swap, cross currency swap and forward currency contracts is determined by reference to
market values for similar instruments. Derivative assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if, and only if:

− There is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amount; and;
− There is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Hedging
Cash flow hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that are
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction,
the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in equity. When the
forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non financial asset or liability, the associated
cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non
financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or financial liability, then
the associated gains and losses that were recognised directly in equity are reclassified into the income statement in
the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects the income statement (i.e.
when interest income or expense is recognised). For cash flow hedges, the effective part of any gain or loss on the
derivative financial instrument is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement. The ineffective part of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, or the designation of the hedge relationship is
revoked but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains
in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above when the transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no
longer expected to take place, then the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Fair value hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the exposure to variability in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability, any change in the fair value of the hedge is recognised in the income statement as a
finance cost. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the
carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the income statement as a finance cost.

Standards and amendments issued but not yet effective  
The Group has not applied Australian Accounting Standards and IFRS that were issued or amended but not yet
effective. The Standard is:

Reference Title Application date
AASB 16 Leases 1 January 2019

Under AASB 16, the distinction between finance and operating leases is eliminated for lessees (with the exception of
short-term and low value leases). Both finance leases and operating leases will result in the recognition a right-of-use
(“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability on the balance sheet. The liability is initially measured at the present
value of future lease payments for the lease term and the ROU asset reflects the lease liability and initial direct costs,
less any lease incentives and amounts required for dismantling. 

AASB 16 must be implemented retrospectively, however the Group has the option as to whether restate comparatives
or have the cumulative impact of application recognised in opening retained earnings on 1 July 2019 ("modified
retrospective approach").

The standard could have a material impact on the Group's consolidated balance sheet and income statement.  The
ROU asset and lease liability could be material for the Group's current lease portfolio, including long-term leases for
the Sydney and Brisbane properties. The transition to AASB 16 will result in a change in presentation in the
consolidated income statement. Rental expenses currently disclosed under property costs will be replaced by an
interest expense attributable to the lease liability and a depreciation charge for the ROU asset.

The Group will continue to assess the impact of the standard with the next steps including a detailed review of all
agreements.
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Directors' Declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of The Star Entertainment Group Limited (the Company):

(a) the financial statements and notes of the Group are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Group's consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2018 and of its
performance for the half year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with the Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Group will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

John O'Neill AO
Chairman
Sydney
21 February 2019
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 � 

Ernst & Young 
200 George Street 
Sydney  NSW  2000 Australia 
GPO Box 2646 Sydney  NSW  2001 

 Tel: +61 2 9248 5555 
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959 
ey.com/au 

 

Independent Auditor's Review Report to the Members of The Star 

Entertainment Group Limited 

Report on the Half�Year Financial Report 

Conclusion 

We have reviewed the accompanying half0year financial report of The Star Entertainment Group 
Limited (the 3Group4), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2018, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the half0year ended on that date, notes 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the 
directors; declaration. 

Based on our review, which is not an audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the half0year financial report of the Group is not in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including: 

a)� giving a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 
2018 and of its consolidated financial performance for the half0year ended on that date; and 

b)� complying with Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations 

Regulations 2001. 

Directors� Responsibility for the Half�Year Financial Report  

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the half0year financial report that 
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations 

Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the half0year financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  

Auditor�s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the half0year financial report based on our review. We 
conducted our review in accordance with Auditing Standard on Review Engagements ASRE 2410 
Review of a Financial Report Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity, in order to state 
whether, on the basis of the procedures described, anything has come to our attention that causes us 
to believe that the half0year financial report is not in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 
including: giving a true and fair view of the Group;s consolidated financial position as at 31 December 
2017 and its consolidated financial performance for the half0year ended on that date; and complying 
with Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations Regulations 

2001. As the auditor of the Group, ASRE 2410 requires that we comply with the ethical requirements 
relevant to the audit of the annual financial report.  

A review of a half0year financial report consists of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible 
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards 
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant 
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.  
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 � 

Independence 

In conducting our review, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations 

Act 2001.  

 

 
Ernst & Young 
 

 
Megan Wilson 
Partner 
Sydney 
21 February 2019 
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21 February 2019 

 
Hon. Yvette D’Ath MP 
Attorney-General and Minister for Justice 
Department of Justice and Attorney-General 
State Law Building 
 
By email: Attorney@ministerial.qld.gov.au 
 
 
Dear Ms D’Ath 
 
The Star Entertainment Group Limited A.C.N. 149 629 023 
Directors’ Report and Financial Report for the half year ended  
31 December 2018 
 
For your information, please find enclosed the Director’s Report and Financial 
Report for The Star Entertainment Group Limited in respect of the half year 
ended 31 December 2018, provided pursuant to clause 8 in Schedule 1 of the 
Echo Deed (Queensland) between The State of Queensland, The Star 
Entertainment Group Limited (formerly Echo Entertainment Group Limited) and 
The Star Entertainment Qld Limited (formerly Jupiters Limited). 
 
If you have any queries, please contact me directly on (07) 3228 0012. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
Jennie Yuen  
Secretariat & Shareholder Relations Manager 
The Star Entertainment Group Limited 
 
Encl. 
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Directors' Report
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors of The Star Entertainment Group Limited (the Company) submit their report for the consolidated entity
comprising the Company and its controlled entities (collectively referred to as the Group) in respect of the half year
ended 31 December 2018.

1. Directors  
The names and titles of the Company's Directors in office during the half year ended 31 December 2018 and until the
date of this report are set out below. Directors were in office for this entire period.

Directors
John O'Neill AO Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Matt Bekier Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Gerard Bradley Non-Executive Director

Ben Heap Non-Executive Director

Katie Lahey AM Non-Executive Director

Sally Pitkin Non-Executive Director

Richard Sheppard Non-Executive Director

Zlatko Todorcevski Non-Executive Director

2. Principal activities  
The principal activities of the Group are the management of integrated resorts with gaming, entertainment and
hospitality services.

The Group operates The Star Sydney (Sydney), The Star Gold Coast (Gold Coast) and Treasury Brisbane
(Brisbane). The Group also manages the Gold Coast Convention and Exhibition Centre on behalf of the Queensland
Government and invests in a number of strategic joint ventures.

3. Financial results and review of operations    
Gross revenue, before commissions, of $1,333.7 million was up 5.0% on the prior comparable period (pcp), due to
high quality, broad-based domestic revenue growth supported by a high win rate in the International VIP Rebate
business (1.62% versus 1.06% in the pcp). 

Normalised1 gross revenue decreased 6.1% in 1H FY2019 versus the pcp. Strong growth in the domestic business
has been offset by reduced normalised revenue in the International VIP Rebate business. The International VIP
Rebate business has been impacted by an abnormally low turn rate of 9.7x (lowest over last 5 years, 13.0x average),
given the high win rate.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) of $332.2 million was up 67.7% on the pcp.
Normalised EBITDA increased 2.6% to $297.1 million.

Operating costs were up 0.3% on the pcp, with domestic volume growth (gaming and non-gaming), higher wages and
higher interim service levels (newly commissioned Gold Coast assets, Sydney Sovereign Resorts transition) offset by
lower VIP volumes and continuing cost management.

Depreciation and amortisation expense of $106.9 million was up 19.3% on the pcp reflecting newly commissioned
assets as well as accelerated depreciation of $9.0m. Finance costs of $17.0 million were down 72.1% on the pcp. The
pcp included a $43 million (pre-tax) one-off loss relating to the restructure of the US Private Placement (USPP) note
program (disclosed as a significant item).

Net profit after tax (NPAT) was $148.5 million, 351.4% up on the pcp. Normalised NPAT, excluding significant items,
was $123.8 million, down 2.4% on the pcp. 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) were each 16.2 cents, up 305.0% on the pcp. An interim dividend of 10.5
cents fully franked was declared which equals to a payout ratio of 78% of normalised NPAT and 65% of statutory
NPAT, reflecting positive momentum in the business.

1 Normalised results reflect the underlying performance of the business as they remove the inherent win rate volatility of the
International VIP Rebate business. Normalised results are adjusted using an average win rate of 1.35% on actual turnover and
commissions.

1
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Net overdue International VIP Rebate business receivables of $76.2 million were up from $28.7 million at June 2018.
Receivables remain well managed, with the increase reflecting the high win rate.

Net debt2 was $791.3 million (30 June 2018: $678.0 million) with $463 million in undrawn facilities and an average
drawn debt maturity of 4.3 years. Gearing levels remain conservative at 1.3 times (net debt to the last 12 months
trailing EBITDA) positioning the Group well to continue to support planned investments. Operating cash flow from
operations was $247.5 million (31 December 2017: $195.2 million) with an EBITDA to cash conversion ratio of 86%
(31 December 2017: 129%).

Trade and other payables of $296.3 million were down 19.0% from June 2018 as a result of lower gaming related
payables, representing players' funds deposited and chips in circulation at 31 December 2018.
  
The Group comprises the following three operating segments:
• Sydney;
• Gold Coast; and
• Brisbane.

Refer to note A1 to the Financial Report for more details of the financial performance of the Company’s operating
segments. The activities and drivers of the results for these operations are discussed below.

Sydney
Gross revenue was $802.5 million, down 7.3% on the pcp and EBITDA was $170.9 million, up 59.0% on the pcp. The
increase is due to domestic growth and a higher win rate in the International VIP Rebate business.

Normalised gross revenue decreased 15.4% on the pcp to $811.6 million with normalised EBITDA decreasing 6.3% to
$190.3 million on the pcp, with the reduction driven by reduced turnover in the International VIP Rebate business. 

Domestic revenue growth of 5.4% on the pcp reflected broad-based growth in domestic gaming. Electronic gaming
market share increased to a record 9.4% versus 9.0% in the pcp.

The Sydney property is a Leadership Partner of City of Sydney's Chinese New Year Festival, a proud sponsor and
participant in the Sydney Gay and Lesbian Mardi Gras, and a Foundation Partner of the Australian Turf Club, in
addition to participating in The Everest horse race. The Sydney property is also a sponsor of the Sydney Swans, New
South Wales Rugby League (NSW Blues) and Sydney FC. 

The property also contributed to various charities during the period, including Barnardos Australia and Taronga
Conservation Society Australia.

Queensland (Gold Coast and Brisbane)
Gross revenue was $531.2 million, up 31.3% on the pcp and EBITDA was $160.3 million, up 74.0% on the pcp. The
increase is largely due to growth in all domestic business segments, supported by a higher win rate of 2.32% versus
1.45% in the pcp in the International VIP Rebate business.

Normalised gross revenue grew 16.1% on the pcp to $465.5 million and normalised EBITDA, increased 23.5% to
$106.8 million due to a 90.9% increase in International VIP Rebate turnover.

Domestic revenue grew 6.1% on the pcp reflecting both strong growth in gaming and non-gaming segments and
positive responses by guests to recently completed investments. Electronic gaming market share for 1H FY2019 was
up 1.1% versus the pcp. 

The Gold Coast property is the sponsor of the iconic Magic Millions Raceday and Carnival. The Brisbane property was
a sponsor of the Brisbane Festival. 

The Queensland properties also contribute to various charities and not-for-profit organisations including Surf Life
Saving Queensland and Cerebral Palsy League Queensland.

International VIP Rebate business
Results for the International VIP Rebate business are included in the property performance overviews above.

International VIP Rebate business turnover of $20.7 billion was down 33.0% on pcp. International VIP Rebate
business gross revenue increased 2.5% to $336.6 million on pcp assisted by a high win rate of 1.62% (1.06% in pcp).
Normalised gross revenue decreased 33.0% on pcp to $280.0 million, impacted by low turns following the high win
rate.

2 Net debt is shown as interest bearing liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents, less net position of derivative financial instruments.
Derivative financial instruments reflect the position of currency swaps and interest rate hedges entered into for the USPP debt.
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4. Earnings per share (EPS)  
Basic and Diluted EPS for the period were both 16.2 cents (31 December 2017: 4.0 cents), up 305.0% on the pcp.

5. Dividends  
5.1. Interim dividend   

Since the end of the half year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have declared an interim dividend of 10.5 cents
per ordinary share, fully franked (31 December 2017: 7.5 cents).

The aggregate amount of the interim dividend expected to be paid on 3 April 2019 out of retained earnings at 31
December 2018, but not recognised as a liability at the end of the half year, is approximately $96.2 million.

5.2. Dividend reinvestment plan (DRP)   
The Company’s DRP is in operation for the interim dividend. The last date for receipt of election notices to enable
participation for the interim dividend is 28 February 2019. The price at which shares are allocated under the DRP is the
daily volume weighted average market price of the Company's shares sold in the ordinary course of trading on the ASX
over a period of 10 trading days beginning on (and including) the fourth trading day after the Record Date (27 February
2019). Shares allocated under the DRP will rank equally with the Company's existing fully paid ordinary shares.

6. Significant events after the end of the half year  
Other than those events that have already been disclosed in this report or elsewhere in the Financial Report, there
have been no other significant events occurring after 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report that have
materially affected or may materially affect the Group’s operations, the results of those operations or the Group’s state
of affairs.

7. Rounding of amounts  
The Star Entertainment Group Limited is a company of the kind specified in the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission’s ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191. In accordance with
that Instrument, amounts in the Financial Report and the Directors’ Report have been rounded to the nearest hundred
thousand dollars unless specifically stated to be otherwise.

8. Auditor's independence declaration  
Attached is a copy of the auditor's independence declaration provided under section 307C of the Corporations Act
2001 (Cth) in relation to the review of the Financial Report for the half year ended 31 December 2018. The auditor's
independence declaration forms part of this Directors’ Report.

This report has been signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

John O'Neill AO
Chairman
Sydney
21 February 2019
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Ernst & Young 
200 George Street 
Sydney  NSW  2000 Australia 
GPO Box 2646 Sydney  NSW  2001 

 Tel: +61 2 9248 5555 
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959 
ey.com/au 

 

Auditor�s Independence Declaration to the Directors of The Star 

Entertainment Group Limited 

 

As lead auditor for the review of The Star Entertainment Group Limited for the half1year ended 31 
December 2018, I declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 
 

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in 
relation to the review; and   

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the review. 
 
This declaration is in respect of The Star Entertainment Group Limited and the entities it controlled 
during the financial period. 
 
 

 
Ernst & Young 
 

 
Megan Wilson 
Partner 
21 February 2019 
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Financial Report
Consolidated income statement
For the half year ended 31 December 2018  

Note

December

2018

$m

December

2017

Restated*

$m

Revenue A2,E 1,150.1 1,001.2

Other income 11.0 0.1
Government taxes and levies (284.2) (268.6)

Employment costs (338.8) (334.7)

Depreciation and amortisation (106.9) (89.6)

Cost of sales (47.8) (45.7)

Property costs (40.8) (38.9)

Advertising and promotions (55.5) (58.4)

Other expenses (62.3) (57.9)

Share of net profit of associate and joint venture entities accounted
for using the equity method

D2 0.5 1.0

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 225.3 108.5

Net finance costs (17.0) (60.9)

Profit before income tax (PBT) 208.3 47.6

Income tax expense (59.8) (14.7)

Net profit after tax (NPAT) 148.5 32.9

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges taken to equity, net of tax 2.0 0.3

Total comprehensive income for the period 150.5 33.2

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share 16.2 cents 4.0 cents

Diluted earnings per share 16.2 cents 4.0 cents

Fully franked dividend per share A3 10.5 cents 7.5 cents

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

* December 2017 comparatives have been restated as part of the transition to AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Refer to
note E(i) for further information. 
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Consolidated balance sheet
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Note

December

2018

$m

June

2018

$m

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 109.2 110.3

Trade and other receivables 173.0 221.5

Inventories 17.7 15.5

Derivative financial instruments B1 5.5 3.9

Other assets 48.8 44.8

Total current assets 354.2 396.0

Property, plant and equipment 2,723.2 2,658.6

Intangible assets 1,857.8 1,858.7

Derivative financial instruments B1 75.5 57.4

Investment in associate and joint venture entities D2 321.5 288.9

Other assets 46.9 11.2

Total non current assets 5,024.9 4,874.8

TOTAL ASSETS 5,379.1 5,270.8

LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 296.3 365.8

Interest bearing liabilities 16.6 133.8

Income tax payable 17.0 0.3

Provisions 66.3 64.5

Derivative financial instruments B1 4.1 4.2

Other liabilities 20.0 20.3

Total current liabilities 420.3 588.9

Interest bearing liabilities 954.0 686.2

Deferred tax liabilities 180.0 175.9

Provisions 14.8 12.9

Derivative financial instruments B1 6.8 25.4

Other liabilities 7.3 -

Total non current liabilities 1,162.9 900.4

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,583.2 1,489.3

NET ASSETS 3,795.9 3,781.5

EQUITY
Share capital 3,063.0 3,070.2

Retained earnings 740.4 718.3

Reserves (7.5) (7.0)

TOTAL EQUITY 3,795.9 3,781.5

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Note

December

2018

$m

December

2017

Restated *

$m

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash receipts from customers (inclusive of GST) 1,153.0 1,027.2

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST) (600.0) (539.1)

Payment of government levies, gaming taxes and GST (268.8) (232.4)

Interest received 0.3 0.5

Income taxes paid (37.0) (61.0)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 247.5 195.2

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant, equipment and intangibles (174.4) (265.3)

Payments for investment in associate and joint venture entities D2 (40.6) (33.0)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (215.0) (298.3)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from interest bearing liabilities 200.0 793.5

Repayment of interest bearing liabilities (83.0) (616.2)

Proceeds from settlement of derivative financial instruments - 98.8

Dividends paid A3 (119.2) (70.2)

Finance costs (24.2) (27.9)

Purchase of treasury shares (6.7) -

Issuance fees on purchase of shares (0.5) -

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (33.6) 178.0

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1.1) 74.9

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 110.3 113.7

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 109.2 188.6

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

* December 2017 comparatives have been restated as part of the transition to AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Refer to
note E(i) for further information. 
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Note

Ordinary
shares

$m

Treasury
shares

$m

Retained
earnings

$m

Hedging
reserve

$m

Share based
payment
reserve

$m

Total

$m

2019

Balance at 1 July 2018 3,070.2 - 718.3 (17.2) 10.2 3,781.5
Profit for the year - - 148.5 - - 148.5
Other comprehensive income - - - 2.0 - 2.0

Total comprehensive income - - 148.5 2.0 - 150.5
Dividends paid A3 - - (119.2) - - (119.2)
Purchase of treasury shares B2 - (6.7) - - - (6.7)
Transition to AASB 9 Debtors provision opening adjustment - - (7.2) - - (7.2)
Issuance fees (0.5) - - - - (0.5)
Employee share based payments - - - - (2.5) (2.5)

Balance at  31 December 2018 3,069.7 (6.7) 740.4 (15.2) 7.7 3,795.9

2018

Balance at 1 July 2017 2,580.5 - 702.3 (13.8) 6.6 3,275.6

Profit for the year - - 32.9 - - 32.9

Other comprehensive income - - - 0.3 - 0.3

Total comprehensive income - - 32.9 0.3 - 33.2

Dividends paid A3 - - (70.2) - - (70.2)

Employee share based payments - - - - 0.8 0.8

Balance at  31 December 2017 2,580.5 - 665.0 (13.5) 7.4 3,239.4

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

A Key income statement disclosures  
A1 Segment information  

The Group's operating segments have been determined based on the internal management reporting structure and the
nature of products and services provided by the Group. They reflect the business level at which financial information is
provided to the executive decision makers, being the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and the Group
Chief Financial Officer, for decision making regarding resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has three reportable segments:

Sydney Comprises The Star Sydney's casino operations, including hotels, apartment complex, restaurants
and bars.

Gold Coast Comprises The Star Gold Coast's casino operations, including hotel, theatre, restaurants and bars.

Brisbane Comprises Treasury's casino operations, including hotel, restaurants and bars.

For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Sydney

$m

Gold Coast

$m

Brisbane

$m

Total

$m

Gross revenues - VIP a 179.2 152.6 4.8 336.6

Gross revenues - domestic a 623.3 196.1 177.7 997.1

Segment revenue  802.5 348.7 182.5 1,333.7

Segment earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation and significant
items 170.9 107.1 53.2 331.2

Depreciation and amortisation 65.8 26.8 14.3 106.9

Capital expenditure 110.2 51.8 13.9 175.9

For the half year ended 31 December 2017
Sydney

$m

Gold Coast

$m

Brisbane

$m

Total

$m

Gross revenues - VIP a 275.9 48.1 4.5 328.5

Gross revenues - domestic a 589.9 185.5 166.6 942.0

Total gross revenue 865.8 233.6 171.1 1,270.5

Segment earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation and significant items 107.5 52.4 39.7 199.6

Depreciation and amortisation 55.1 19.3 15.2 89.6

Capital expenditure 78.4 183.4 19.7 281.5

a Gross revenue is presented as the gross gaming win before player rebates and promotional allowances of $183.6m (2017:
$82.3m).

9

RTI 200256 File01 - Page 279



Notes to the financial statements
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

December
2018

$m

December
2017

$m
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit to profit before income tax
Segment earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and
significant items 331.2 199.6

Depreciation and amortisation (106.9) (89.6)

Significant items (refer to note A4) 0.5 (45.5)

Unallocated items:
- net finance costs (17.0) (17.9)

- share of net profit of associate and joint venture accounted for using the
equity method

0.5 1.0

Profit before income tax (PBT) 208.3 47.6

A2 Revenue  
December

2018

$m

December 
2017

Restated*
$m

Domestic gaming 698.5 664.4

International VIP Rebate 167.7 72.0

Non-gaming 277.9 260.8

Other 6.0 4.0

Total revenue 1,150.1 1,001.2

* December 2017 comparatives have been restated as part of the transition to AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Refer to note E(i) for further information. 

A3 Dividends  
Cents per

share
Cents per

share
Dividends per share
Interim dividend 10.5 7.5

$m $m
Dividends declared and paid during the half year on ordinary shares
Final dividend paid during the half year in respect of the year ended 30 June a 119.2 70.2

a A final dividend of 13.0 cents per share fully franked for the year ended 30 June 2018 (30 June 2017: 8.5 cents) was declared
on 23 August 2018 and paid on 4 October 2018 (2017: declared on 22 August 2017 and paid on 26 September 2017).

Dividends declared after the end of the half year
Interim dividend declared for the half year ended 31 December b 96.2 61.9

b Since the end of the half year, the Directors have declared an interim dividend of 10.5 cents per ordinary share (31 December
2017: 7.5 cents), fully franked. The aggregate amount is expected to be paid on 3 April 2019 out of retained earnings at 31
December 2018, but not recognised as a liability at the end of the half year.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

A4 Significant items  
Profit before income tax (PBT) is stated after charging the following significant items:

December

2018

$m

December

2017

$m

Gain on disposal of land a (9.7) -

Restructuring costs b 9.2 -

Finance costs relating to US Private Placement tender and reissue c - 43.0

Pre opening expenses d - 2.5

Net significant items (gain)/loss  (0.5) 45.5

Tax (benefit)/expense on significant items (4.1) (13.7)

Significant items (gain)/loss net of tax (4.6) 31.8

a Gain on disposal of Gold Coast land to the Destination Gold Coast Consortium joint venture for construction of the first
residential, hotel and retail tower.

b One-off restructuring costs relating to the operating model project.

c In August 2017, the Group completed a tender and reissue offer in relation to 73% of the Group’s US Private Placement
borrowings. This was undertaken to extend the Group’s tenor on average drawn debt maturity by 3 years to 5.2 years, reduce
finance costs on a like for like basis and lower refinancing requirements for the Group. The average blended cost of debt on all
US Private Placement notes following the issue was 5% (down from over 9% on previous notes). The transaction resulted in a
one-off loss relating to the crystallisation of an existing obligation for the related out of the money interest rate swaps and other
costs.  

d Consistent with previous accounting treatment, pre opening expenses such as marketing, operating and training expenses
incurred prior to the opening of The Darling Gold Coast, have been treated as significant due to their size and non-recurring
nature.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

B Key balance sheet disclosures  
B1 Derivative financial instruments  

Swaps
Fair value is calculated using discounted future cash flow techniques, where estimated cash flows and estimated
discount rates are based on market data at the balance sheet date.

Forward currency contracts
Fair value is calculated using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

US Private Placement (USPP)
Fair value is calculated using discounted future cash flow techniques, where estimated cash flows and estimated
discount rates are based on market data at the balance sheet date, in combination with restatement to current foreign
exchange rates.

December 2018
$m

June 2018
$m

Current assets
Cross currency swaps 5.5 3.6

Forward currency contracts - 0.3

5.5 3.9
Non current assets
Cross currency swaps 75.5 57.4

75.5 57.4

Current liabilities
Cross currency swaps - 0.3

Interest rate swaps 4.1 3.9

4.1 4.2

Non current liabilities
Cross currency swaps - 18.4

Interest rate swaps 6.8 7.0

6.8 25.4

Net financial assets 70.1 31.7

Net derivative assets up $38.4 million due to a decline in the AUD:USD exchange rate from 30 June 2018 to 31
December 2018. 

Valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments
The valuation of derivatives and financial instruments is based on market conditions at the balance sheet date. The
value of the instrument fluctuates on a daily basis and the actual amounts realised may differ materially from their
value at the balance sheet date.

Financial Instruments - fair value hierarchy
There are various methods available in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument. 
The methods comprise:

Level 1 the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2 the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3 the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.

All of the Group's derivative financial instruments are valued using the Level 2 valuation techniques, being observable
inputs. There have been no transfers between levels during the period. 
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Notes to the financial statements
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

B2 Treasury shares  
Number of

shares $m

1 July 2018 - -

Treasury shares purchased 1,458,361 6.7

31 December 2018 1,458,361 6.7

During the period, the Group purchased 1,458,361 of its own shares for use to settle future employee share based
payment schemes.

C Commitments, contingencies and subsequent events  
C1 Commitments and contingent liabilities  

Other commitments a

December

2018

$m

June

2018

$m

Not later than one year 157.0 64.3

Later than one year but not later than five years 25.6 1.3

Later than five years - -

182.6 65.6

a Other commitments as at 31 December 2018 mainly include capital construction and related costs in connection with the
redevelopment in Sydney.

The Group has capital commitments of approximately $1.1 billion into Destination Brisbane Consortium (DBC) to fund
the construction of the Integrated Resort which is expected to open in 2022 (subject to various approvals, including
Board approvals of the proposed detailed design).

The Group has capital commitments of approximately $105.0 million into Destination Gold Coast Consortium (DGCC)
to fund the construction of the first residential, hotel and retail tower, which is expected to open in 2022.

Other commitments include the redevelopment of the Gold Coast and Sydney properties, both of which are well
underway.  

C2 Subsequent events  
Since 31 December 2018, the Directors have declared a dividend of 10.5 cents per ordinary share. The total amount of
the dividend is approximately $96.2 million. This has not been provided for in the financial statements for the half year
ended 31 December 2018 (refer to note A3). 

Other than those events disclosed in the Directors' Report or elsewhere in these half year financial statements, there
have been no other significant events occurring after the balance sheet date and up to the date of this report, which
may materially affect either the Group's operations or results of those operations or the Group's state of affairs.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

D Group structure  
D1 Related party disclosure  

Investments in controlled entities   
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the Company's controlled entities
in accordance with the accounting policy described in the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2018. The
financial years of all controlled entities are the same as that of the Company.

The Company incorporated the following Australian entities in the period up to 31 December 2018: 

Name of controlled entities
Country of
incorporation Equity type

Equity interest
at 31

December
2018

%

Equity
interest at 30

June
2018

%

The Star Entertainment Pyrmont Holdings Pty Ltd a Australia ordinary shares 100.0 0.0

The Star Entertainment Pyrmont Investments No.1
Pty Ltd

a
Australia ordinary shares 100.0 0.0

a Incorporated on 10 October 2018.

D2 Investment in associate and joint venture entities  
Set out below are the investments of the Group as at 31 December 2018 which, in the opinion of the Directors, are
material to the Group. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held
by the Group. The country of incorporation is also their principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership
interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Name of  entity
Country of
incorporation

% of
ownership

Nature of
ownership

Measurement
method

Carrying
amount

$m

Destination Brisbane Consortium Integrated
Resort Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 50 Associate Equity method 257.7

Festival Car Park Pty Ltd Australia 50 Joint venture Equity method 14.0

Destination Gold Coast Investments Pty Ltd Australia 50 Joint venture Equity method 43.9

Destination Gold Coast Consortium Pty Ltd Australia 33.3 Joint venture Equity method 5.9

Total equity accounted investments 321.5

The carrying amount of the equity-accounted investments has changed in the six months to 31 December 2018, as
follows:

Name of entity

Balance at 1
July 2018

$m

Net
movement

$m 

Profit/(loss)
for the period

$m

Eliminations *

$m

Balance at 31
December 2018

$m

Destination Brisbane Consortium Integrated
Resort Holdings Pty Ltd 223.7 34.5 (0.5) - 257.7

Festival Car Park Pty Ltd 13.8 - 0.2 - 14.0

Destination Gold Coast Investments Pty Ltd 44.6 (1.6) 0.9 - 43.9

Destination Gold Coast Consortium Pty Ltd 6.8 7.7 (0.1) (8.5) 5.9

288.9 40.6 0.5 (8.5) 321.5

* Elimination of one third of the gain on sale of land (see note A4a) for the Group's share of profit relating to its equity interest in the
joint venture.

Commitments and contingent liabilities
DBC has current capital commitments of approximately $2.1 billion to fund the construction of the Integrated Resort,
which is expected to open in 2022 (subject to various approvals, including Board approvals of the proposed detailed
design).

DGCC has current capital commitments of approximately $320.0 million to fund the construction of the first residential,
hotel and retail tower, which is expected to open in 2022.  
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Notes to the financial statements
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Summarised financial information  
E Accounting policies and corporate information  

Corporate Information  
The Star Entertainment Group Limited (the Company) is a company incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The
Financial Report of the Company for the half year ended 31 December 2018 comprises the Company and its
controlled entities (collectively referred to as the Group). The Company's registered office is Level 3, 159 William
Street, Brisbane QLD 4000.

The Company is of the kind specified in Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) Instrument
2016/191. In accordance with that Instrument, amounts in the Financial Report and the Directors' Report have been
rounded to the nearest hundred thousand dollars, unless specifically stated to be otherwise. All amounts are in
Australian dollars ($). The Company is a for profit organisation.

The half year Financial Report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 21 February 2019.

Basis of preparation of the half year report  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this half year Financial Report are consistent with those
applied in the annual Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 31 December 2018 have been
prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting.

The half year Financial Report does not include all the notes of the type normally included in an annual Financial
Report. Accordingly, this report is to be read in conjunction with the audited Financial Report for the year ended 30
June 2018, and any public announcements made by the Company during the interim reporting period in accordance
with its continuous disclosure obligations under ASX listing rules.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions  
Preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards and IFRS, requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their carrying value as at the
balance sheet date.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
− Asset useful lives and residual values;
− Impairment of assets;
− Valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments (refer note B1);
− Provision for impairment of trade receivables;
− Significant items (refer note A4); and
− Provisions.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset or liability in future periods.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures  
The Group has adopted the following new and amended accounting standards, which became applicable from 1 July
2018: 

Reference Title

(i) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(ii) AASB 9 Financial Instruments
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Notes to the financial statements
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

(i) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Group applies, for the first time in FY2019, AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, replacing the
previous guidance applied under AASB 118 Revenue and IFRIC 13 – Customer Loyalty Programmes. 

AASB 15 establishes a single comprehensive model that applies to accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. The core principle of AASB 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue equating to the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. The principles in AASB 15 provide a more structured approach to
measuring and recognising revenue. 

The Group has adopted the new standard using the full retrospective method of adoption. The major changes as a
result of the adoption of the new standard are as follows:

− Under the new revenue standard, the stand-alone selling price of complimentary services (including hotel room
nights, food and beverage, and other services) that are provided to casino guests as incentives related to gaming
play are recorded as revenues related to the respective goods or services as they are provided to the patron.
Historically, these amounts were recorded as gaming revenue along with the original gaming transaction. The
allocation of revenue to non-gaming activities is measured based on the stand-alone selling price of the goods and
services provided. After allocation of revenue to non-gaming, the residual amount is recorded as gaming revenue.
This change primarily results in a decrease in gaming revenue and an increase in non-gaming revenues related to
the respective goods or services provided to the customer. 

− A portion of commissions and rebates paid to gaming promoters, representing the estimated incentives that were
returned to customers, were previously reported as reductions in revenues, with the balance of commission
expenses reflected as casino expenses. As a result of the adoption of the new standard, all commissions and
rebates paid to gaming promoters are reflected as reductions in casino revenues. This change primarily results in a
decrease in casino expenses and a corresponding decrease in casino revenues. 

The amounts of affected financial statement line items in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the prior period before and after the adoption of the new revenue standard are as follows:

December

2017

Reported

$m

Adjustments
for AASB 15

$m

Reclassified c 

$m

December

2017

Restated

$m

Consolidated income statement
Domestic gaming a 796.8 (132.4) - 664.4

International VIP Rebate a 328.5 (256.5) - 72.0

Non-gaming b 141.2 119.6 - 260.8

Other b 4.0 - - 4.0

Gross Revenue 1,270.5 (269.3)
Players rebates and promotional allowances (82.3) 82.3

Revenue 1,188.2 (187.0) - 1,001.2
Commissions and fees (197.7) 187.0 10.7 -

Advertising and promotions (47.7) - (10.7) (58.4)

942.8 - - 942.8

Consolidated statement of cash flows
Net cash receipts from customers (inclusive of
GST) 1,214.2 (187.0) - 1,027.2

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive
of GST) (726.1) 187.0 - (539.1)

488.1 - - 488.1

a  Domestic gaming and International VIP Rebate were previously disclosed together as Gaming.
b  Non-gaming and Other were previously disclosed together. 
c  Incentives previously included in Commissions and fees have moved to Advertising and promotions. 
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Notes to the financial statements
For the half year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue
Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies its obligations in relation to the provision of goods and services to its
customers in the ordinary course of business. Revenue is measured at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for performing these obligations. Revenue comprises net gaming
win, less player and gaming promoter rebates and promotional allowances, as well as other non-gaming revenue from
hotels, restaurants and bars. 

(ii) AASB 9 Financial Instruments
The accounting standard replaces ‘AASB 139 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ that relates to
the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.
The adoption of AASB 9, including an election for hedging, from 1 July 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In accordance with the transition provisions in
AASB 9 (7.2.15), comparative figures have not been restated. 
The effect of the changes on retained earnings is as follows:

2018

$m

Closing retained earnings as of 30 June 2018 718.3

Increase in provision for impairment (7.2)

Opening retained earnings as of 1 July 2018 711.1

Impairment of financial assets
The Group’s financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables that are
subsequently recognised at amortised cost. The Group applies the AASB 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses, using a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. Cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment requirements of AASB 9 however due to their nature the expected loss allowance is
immaterial.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and days past due. The provision for impairment of trade receivables applying lifetime expected credit
loss as compared to the incurred loss model of AASB 139 resulted in a $7.2 million adjustment to opening retained
earnings as of 1 July 2018.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at face value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash
balances and call deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original settlement amount less a provision for expected credit loss
impaired, where applicable. Bad debts are written off when they are known to be uncollectible. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to the income statement. Other receivables are carried at amortised
costs less impairment. 

Derivative financial instruments
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks
arising from operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its Treasury Policy, the Group does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. However, derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised immediately in the income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting,
the effective portion of the gain or loss is deferred in equity while the ineffective portion is recognised in the income
statement.
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The fair value of interest rate swap, cross currency swap and forward currency contracts is determined by reference to
market values for similar instruments. Derivative assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if, and only if:

− There is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amount; and;
− There is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Hedging
Cash flow hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that are
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction,
the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in equity. When the
forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non financial asset or liability, the associated
cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non
financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or financial liability, then
the associated gains and losses that were recognised directly in equity are reclassified into the income statement in
the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects the income statement (i.e.
when interest income or expense is recognised). For cash flow hedges, the effective part of any gain or loss on the
derivative financial instrument is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement. The ineffective part of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, or the designation of the hedge relationship is
revoked but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains
in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above when the transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no
longer expected to take place, then the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Fair value hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the exposure to variability in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability, any change in the fair value of the hedge is recognised in the income statement as a
finance cost. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the
carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the income statement as a finance cost.

Standards and amendments issued but not yet effective  
The Group has not applied Australian Accounting Standards and IFRS that were issued or amended but not yet
effective. The Standard is:

Reference Title Application date
AASB 16 Leases 1 January 2019

Under AASB 16, the distinction between finance and operating leases is eliminated for lessees (with the exception of
short-term and low value leases). Both finance leases and operating leases will result in the recognition a right-of-use
(“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability on the balance sheet. The liability is initially measured at the present
value of future lease payments for the lease term and the ROU asset reflects the lease liability and initial direct costs,
less any lease incentives and amounts required for dismantling. 

AASB 16 must be implemented retrospectively, however the Group has the option as to whether restate comparatives
or have the cumulative impact of application recognised in opening retained earnings on 1 July 2019 ("modified
retrospective approach").

The standard could have a material impact on the Group's consolidated balance sheet and income statement.  The
ROU asset and lease liability could be material for the Group's current lease portfolio, including long-term leases for
the Sydney and Brisbane properties. The transition to AASB 16 will result in a change in presentation in the
consolidated income statement. Rental expenses currently disclosed under property costs will be replaced by an
interest expense attributable to the lease liability and a depreciation charge for the ROU asset.

The Group will continue to assess the impact of the standard with the next steps including a detailed review of all
agreements.
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Directors' Declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of The Star Entertainment Group Limited (the Company):

(a) the financial statements and notes of the Group are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Group's consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2018 and of its
performance for the half year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with the Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Group will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

John O'Neill AO
Chairman
Sydney
21 February 2019

19
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 � 

Ernst & Young 
200 George Street 
Sydney  NSW  2000 Australia 
GPO Box 2646 Sydney  NSW  2001 

 Tel: +61 2 9248 5555 
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959 
ey.com/au 

 

Independent Auditor's Review Report to the Members of The Star 

Entertainment Group Limited 

Report on the Half�Year Financial Report 

Conclusion 

We have reviewed the accompanying half0year financial report of The Star Entertainment Group 
Limited (the 3Group4), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2018, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the half0year ended on that date, notes 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the 
directors; declaration. 

Based on our review, which is not an audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the half0year financial report of the Group is not in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including: 

a)� giving a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 
2018 and of its consolidated financial performance for the half0year ended on that date; and 

b)� complying with Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations 

Regulations 2001. 

Directors� Responsibility for the Half�Year Financial Report  

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the half0year financial report that 
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations 

Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the half0year financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  

Auditor�s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the half0year financial report based on our review. We 
conducted our review in accordance with Auditing Standard on Review Engagements ASRE 2410 
Review of a Financial Report Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity, in order to state 
whether, on the basis of the procedures described, anything has come to our attention that causes us 
to believe that the half0year financial report is not in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 
including: giving a true and fair view of the Group;s consolidated financial position as at 31 December 
2017 and its consolidated financial performance for the half0year ended on that date; and complying 
with Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations Regulations 

2001. As the auditor of the Group, ASRE 2410 requires that we comply with the ethical requirements 
relevant to the audit of the annual financial report.  

A review of a half0year financial report consists of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible 
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards 
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant 
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.  
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 � 

Independence 

In conducting our review, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations 

Act 2001.  

 

 
Ernst & Young 
 

 
Megan Wilson 
Partner 
Sydney 
21 February 2019 
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DESTINATION GOLD COAST MASTER PLAN - STAGE 1 CONDITIONS OF 

APPROVAL  

(INCLUDING AMENDMENTS APPROVED 29/1/18 and 10/07/19) 

# Condition Timing 
GENERAL MATTERS 

1.  Development to be generally in accordance with specified plans/drawings 
 
The development must be carried out generally in accordance with the plans/drawings 
prepared by Cottee Parker Architects listed below:  
 

# Plan no.  Rev.  Title Date 
1 SD1.1002 03 Site Plan 09/01/19 
2 SD1.2010 02 Floor Plan - Level 00 09/01/19 
3 SD1.2010.1 04 Floor Plan – Level 01  

(Part 1) 
09/01/19 

4 SD1.2010.2 04 Floor Plan – Level 01  
(Part 2) 

09/01/19 

5 SD1.2011.M 04 Floor Plan – Level 01 
Mezzanine 

09/01/19 

6 SD1.2012 04 Floor Plan - Level 02 09/01/19 
7 SD1.2012.M 02 Floor Plan - Level 02 

Mezzanine 
09/01/19 

8 SD1.2013 03 Floor Plan – Level 03 09/01/19 
9 SD1.2014 04 Floor Plan - Level 04 09/01/19 
10 SD1.2015 04 Floor Plan - Level 05 09/01/19 
11 SD1.2018 03 Floor Plan - Level 06 

Podium 
09/01/19 

12 SD1.2019 03 Floor Plan - Level 07 09/01/19 
13 SD1.2033 03 Floor Plan - Level 08 - 18 

Typical Hotel Floor 
09/01/19 

14 SD1.2035 05 Floor Plan - Level 19 09/01/19 
15 SD1.2067 04 Floor Plan - Level 20  

Rec Deck 
09/01/19 

16 SD1.2068 04 Floor Plan - Level 21 09/01/19 
17 SD1.2069 01 Floor Plan – Level 22 – 29 

Typical Apartment Floor 
09/01/19 

18 SD1.2070 01 Floor Plan – Level 30 – 39 
Typical Apartment Floor 

09/01/19 

19 SD1.2071 03 Floor Plan - Level 40 – 53 
Typical Apartment Floor 

09/01/19 

20 SD1.2072 02 Floor Plan - Level 54  
Roof Deck 

09/01/19 

21 SD1.3001 05 Tower Elevations 09/01/19 
22 SD1.3002 05 Tower Elevations 09/01/19 
23 SD1.3003 04 Podium Elevations 09/01/19 
24 SD1.3004 04 Podium Elevations 09/01/19 
25 SD1.3101 03 Section 09/01/19 
26 SD1.3102 03 Podium Sections 09/01/19 
27 SD1.3103 03 Podium Sections 09/01/19 
28 SD1.3107 03 Podium Section Through 

Facade 
09/01/19 

 

At all times. 
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# Condition Timing 
The conditions of this approval are to be read in conjunction with these plans. Where a 
conflict occurs between the conditions of this approval and the plans/drawings, the 
conditions of this approval shall take precedence.  
 

2.  Notice of Works Timetable - Council 
 
The Trustee must give Council written notice of the following: 

a. application number;  
b. site address; 
c. name and telephone number (work and after hours) of the project manager and 

the site owner;  
d. works intended to be carried out; 
e. the proposed timetable associated with the works, including expected 

commencement, duration and completion date.  
 
The notification is to be sent to Council’s Development Compliance Section (fax: 07 
5582 8080 or by email to Devcom_Operational@goldcoast.qld.gov.au). This notification 
is in addition to any other notifications required by other conditions of this or other 
development approvals.  
 
A form is available to assist in providing the information relating to Notice of 
Works/Commencement requirements. The form can be obtained at Council Offices 
(Nerang, Bundall and Coolangatta). It also can be found on Council’s website at 
http://www.goldcoast.qld.gov.au/forms-applications.html.  

After succession 
completion of any 
pre-start inspections 
required by 
conditions of this or 
other development 
approvals and at 
least 5 business 
days prior to 
commencement of 
any works on the 
site.  

3.  Notice of Works Timetable – OLGR 
 
The Trustee must provide the OLGR with a copy of the Notice of Works Timetable as 
outlined in condition 2 of these conditions at the same time that a copy is provided to 
Council.  
 
The notification is to be sent to OLGR’s Gaming Services Branch Operations Unit (fax: 
(07) 3220 0279 or by email to gaming.operations@justice.qld.gov.au).  
 
This notification is in addition to any other notifications required by other conditions of 
this or other development approvals. 

At the same time as 
notification is 
provided for 
condition 2.  

4.  Reporting to public sector entities 
 
The Trustee must provide any further reports or documentation, or updates to any 
reports or documentation, relating to the Stage 1 development upon request by each of 
the public sector entities, as would otherwise be lawfully required under local, state and 
federal legislation.  

As specified in the 
condition.  

5.  Access to the site 
 
a. Public sector entities will require access to the Jupiters Hotel and Casino Site during 

the construction phase to conduct site inspections, observe project delivery, review 
planned construction activities, assess and monitor compliance with these conditions 
of approval, and for any related purposes to the Stage 1 development. 

 
b. The Trustee must facilitate the necessary access to the Jupiters Hotel and Casino 

Site. The Trustee must grant and continuously grant to each public sector entity, its 
contractors, subcontractors, agents, employees and invitees, the non-exclusive 
licence of rights of use and access to the Site and the works, subject to compliance 
with reasonable workplace safety requirements of the Trustee.  

At all time during the 
construction phase.  

6.  Notification of Incidents 
 
The Trustee must immediately notify the Minister, by providing written notice to the 
OLGR, of the occurrence of any of the following matters throughout the undertaking of 
works associated with this development approval, as well as any proposed action(s) to 
address:  
 

At all times.  
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# Condition Timing 
• any notifiable incident, as defined within the Work Health and Safety Act 2011; and  
• any industrial action, whether undertaken by an employee or employer on site, as 

defined within the Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth).  
7.  Development Costs 

 
The Trustee is responsible for all costs related to the planning, design, development, 
construction and delivery of works undertaken in accordance with the conditions of this 
approval, together with all other costs and expenses ancillary or incidental to the 
planning, design, development, construction and delivery of these works.  

At all times. 

8.  This condition has been deleted.   
 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING CONTRIBUTIONS 
9.  Infrastructure Contributions 

 
Pay to the Council of the City of Gold Coast (Council) a monetary contribution towards 
the cost of the provision of infrastructure in accordance with Council's Charges 
Resolution. 
 
The current applicable charge is: 
 
Total levied charge payable $8,798,648.31 

+ ANNUAL ADJUSTMENTS 
AND/OR REVIEWS 
 
The above charge will automatically increase by the lesser of the following: 
 
a. The difference between the levied charge and the maximum adopted charge the 

local government could have levied for the development when the charge is paid; 
and 

b. The increase for the PPI index for the period starting on the day the levied charge 
was levied and ending on the day it is paid, adjusted by reference to the 3-yearly PPI 
index average. 

 
‘3-yearly PPI index average’ and ‘PPI index’ have the meanings given in the Sustainable 
Planning Act 2009. 
 
As the levied charge amount is current at the date of issue, the total charges due at the 
date of payment may be greater. 

Total payable prior to 
the use commencing, 
issue of certificate of 
classification or final 
plumbing inspection, 
whichever occurs 
first.  

CAR PARKING AND ACCESS 
10.  Off-street car parking facilities 

 
a. Off-street car parking facilities must be designed, constructed and maintained in 

accordance with AS2890.1 (latest version). 
b. Off-street facilities for car parking must only be used for vehicle parking.  
c. A minimum of 318 additional off-street car parking spaces must be provided on-site 

in an unbundled arrangement.  
d. Off-street car parking facilities must be drained and line marked.  
 
Information Note: Any unbundled car parking unsold to a residential carpark allocation 
can be made available for use by all other activities within the integrated resort complex 
(i.e. residential apartments, hotel, casino and resort users). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

15.  Signs and line marking 
 
In addition to signs and line marking required by AS2890.1, the following must be 
installed and maintained:  
a. signs and line marking to identify persons with disabilities parking (AS2890.6); and 
b. signs and line marking to identify coach parking bays at ground level.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

16.  Bicycle parking  
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
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# Condition Timing 
a. Bicycle parking facilities must be provided to the satisfaction of the Minister, at no 

cost to Council and maintained in accordance with:  
i. a minimum of 106 x Class 2 bicycle parking spaces for residents; 
ii. a minimum of 36 x Class 3 bicycle parking spaces for visitors to be provided 

in a freely accessible location at ground level; and 
iii. AS2890.3.  

b. The bicycle parking spaces are to:  
i. enable wheels and frame to be located to the device without damaging the 

bicycle; 
ii. be located outside pedestrian movement paths; 
iii. be accessible from the road; 
iv. be arranged so that parking and unparking manoeuvres will not damage 

adjacent bicycles 
v. be protected from manoeuvring motor vehicles and opening car doors; 
vi. be as close as possible to the cyclists ultimate destination; 
vii. be well lit by appropriate existing or new lighting; and 
viii. be protected from the weather.  

the use and at all 
times.  

17.  Loading and unloading 
 
a. Loading and unloading of a vehicle servicing a development must be conducted 

wholly within the Site.  
b. A vehicle or vehicles waiting to be loaded or unloaded must stand entirely within the 

Site.  
c. All vehicles must enter and exit the Site in a forward gear.  

At all times.  

18.  Off-Street commercial vehicle facilities 
 
a. Off-street commercial vehicle facilities must be designed, constructed and 

maintained in accordance with AS2890.2-2002 (latest version). 
b. Off-street commercial vehicle facilities must only be used for loading and unloading.  
c. Off-street commercial vehicle facilities must be drained, sealed and line marked.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

19.  Car park directional signage  
 
Install and maintain an internal car park vehicle directional signage package that 
encourages vehicle egress movements to specific development access intersections 
when travelling to external locations. A directional signage concept plan is to be 
submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval of these works.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

ROADS AND TRAFFIC 
20.  Roadworks: T E Peters Drive / Casino Drive 

 
Design and construct works at the T E Peters Drive / Casino Drive intersection to 
achieve:  
 
a. an additional 20 metre long eastbound approach lane on T E Peters Drive;  
b. an additional eastbound circulating lane within the roundabout; and 
c. an additional 10 metre long northbound approach lane on Casino Drive.  
 
The works must be undertaken generally in accordance with Cardno Drawing 
V160335T-SK21 Revision B dated 26/08/2016 and SC6.9 City Plan Policy – Land 
Development Guidelines. All existing bicycle lanes must be maintained at the 
intersection.  
 
An operational works application is to be submitted to Council for approval of these 
works clearly detailing any proposed changes to infrastructure.  
 
Information note: this is considered non-trunk infrastructure.  
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
 

21.  Roadworks: Gold Coast Highway / T E Peters Drive / Victoria Avenue 
 
Design and construct works at the Gold Coast Highway / T E Peters Drive / Victoria 
Avenue intersection to achieve:  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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a. an extension of 20 metres to the existing westbound short left slip lane in T E Peters 

Drive; and 
b. an extension of 10 metres to the westbound short right turn lane in T E Peters Drive.  
 
The works must be undertaken generally in accordance with Cardno Drawing 
V160335T-SK21 Revision B dated 26/08/2016 and SC6.9 City Plan Policy – Land 
Development Guidelines. All existing bicycle lanes must be maintained at the 
intersection.  
 
An operational works application is to be submitted to Council for approval of these 
works clearly detailing any proposed changes to infrastructure.  
 
Information note: this is considered non-trunk infrastructure.  
 

22.  Roadworks: Gold Coast Highway / Elizabeth Avenue / New Development Access 
 
Design and construct works at the Gold Coast Highway / Elizabeth Avenue / New 
Development Access Intersection to achieve:  
 
a. addition of a left turn free flow facility for northbound left turning traffic exiting the 

site;  
b. modification of eastbound development egress line marking to incorporate a shared 

through/right left hand lane and a dedicated right hand right turn lane; and  
c. modification of the signal personality to remove the left turn late start for vehicles 

exiting the development.  
 
The works must be undertaken generally in accordance SC6.9 City Plan Policy – Land 
Development Guidelines. All existing bicycle lanes must be maintained at the 
intersection.  
 
An operational works application is to be submitted to Council for approval of these 
works clearly detailing any proposed changes to infrastructure.  
 
Information note: this is considered non-trunk infrastructure.  
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

23.  Roadworks: State-controlled roads 
 
Pursuant to the Trustee’s submitted Traffic Impact Assessment report prepared by 
Cardno (Qld) Pty Ltd dated 10 August 2016 and the Department of Transport and Main 
Roads Road Planning and Design Manual, the Trustee is to complete: 
 
Gold Coast Highway / Hooker Boulevard 
a. “Table 5-1 Proposed Mitigations Works - Stage 1” ID-D: Gold Coast Highway / 

Hooker Boulevard: a 20 metre extension of the right turn pockets on the northern 
Gold Coast Highway.  

 
Hooker Boulevard / Casino Drive 
b. “Table 5-1 Proposed Mitigations Works - Stage 1” ID-E: Hooker Boulevard / Casino 

Drive: reconfiguring the eastbound Nerang Broadbeach Road (Hooker Boulevard) 
left turn to Casino Drive to operate as a short auxiliary turn lane, and, the Casino 
Drive layout at the north end of the Little Tallebudgera Creek Bridge as per the 
submitted marked-up Cardno drawing titled “Swept Path Access Option B” dated 27 
July 2016 (ref: 494933-SK14; rev B). 

 
 
Gold Coast Highway / Elizabeth Avenue 
c. “Table 5-1 Proposed Mitigations Works - Stage 1” ‘ID-C’ Gold Coast Highway / 

Elizabeth Avenue. The department acknowledges this intersection does not 
immediately impact the State-controlled road network, however, this intersection 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of Stage 1. 
 
Note these works 
must not occur 
during the period 
from September 
2017 to June 2018 
(2018 
Commonwealth 
Games embargo 
period). 
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# Condition Timing 
does impact the Gold Coast Light Rail Corridor. The Department of Transport and 
Main Roads understands conditions will be imposed by Council to modify this 
intersection layout and the department will need to be directly involved with these 
mitigation works planned. 

 
The Department of Transport and Main Roads has a duty of care to maintain the safety 
and efficiency of the State-controlled road network. In accordance with Section 33 of the 
Transport Infrastructure Act 1994, the Trustee must have written approval to carry out 
road works on a State-controlled road. 
 
Please note: under sections 62 and 33 of the Transport Infrastructure Act 1994, written 
approval is required from the Department of Transport and Main Roads to obtain access 
to a State-controlled road and to carry out road access works within the State-controlled 
road reserve. An application for approval can be made by submitting the relevant forms 
and supporting information to scrcmallocations@tmr.qld.gov.au. 
 
Copies of the forms and additional information regarding this process can be obtained 
from http://www.tmr.qld.gov.au/Community-andenvironment/Planning-
anddevelopment/Other-matters-requiring-approval.aspx 

24.  Traffic survey monitoring 
 
The Trustee must monitor traffic generations onto and off the subject site and report 
these findings directly to the Department of Transport and Main Roads. 
 
Monitoring of the precinct must be undertaken to verify both the daily traffic use and 
peak intersection demands following or as soon as construction is completed for both the 
‘Suites Hotel’ and new intersection of Gold Coast Highway / Elizabeth Avenue. 
Monitoring of the new total amount of onsite car parking spaces is required. 
 

When the associated 
construction is 
completed for the 
‘Suites Hotel’ and 
new intersection of 
Gold Coast Highway 
/ Elizabeth Avenue, 
and, also to continue, 
when, the 
commencement of 
use / construction is 
completed for Stage 
1. 

25.  On-site construction 
 
The Trustee’s on-site construction activities for Stage 1 must not affect the ongoing 
operations of the safety and efficiency on State-controlled road network. 
 
The Department of Transport and Main Roads has a duty of care to maintain the safety 
and efficiency of the State-controlled road network.  

At all times.  

26.  Public Passenger Transport 
 
The Trustee will provide on-site pedestrian connections between the Stage 1 
development and the following public passenger transport facilities that are safe, legible, 
direct and accessible:  
 
a. Casino Drive bus stops; 
b. Broadbeach South Light Rail Station (via Elizabeth Avenue or Hooker Boulevard); 

and 
c. Onsite taxi facilities.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of Stage 1 
and to be maintained 
at all times. 
 

27.  Gold Coast Light Rail Corridor infrastructure and new road bridge 
 
At their own accord, the Trustee must further pursue and accordingly obtain State 
approval to start construction of their new Road Bridge Intersection that will traverse 
across the existing Gold Coast Light Rail Corridor. 
 
If required and at their own accord, the Trustee must also seek to make alterations to the 
relevant State Gold Coast Light Rail Corridor Infrastructure contracts. 
 
The department is willing to facilitate and assist the Trustee through the necessary State 
process. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of Stage 1 
and to be maintained 
at all times. 
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The Department of Transport and Main Roads has the authority to approve or refuse all 
works on the Gold Coast Light Rail Corridor (or seek compensation), pursuant to the 
Transport Infrastructure Act 1994 Chapter 10, sections 347 through to sections 383. 

28.  2018 Commonwealth Games Works embargo 
 
To avoid the 2018 Commonwealth Games restricted construction period, the Department 
of Transport and Main Roads are firmly advising of an embargo on any physical 
construction works along our State transport network due to the 2018 Commonwealth 
Games taking place on the Gold Coast in April 2018.  
 
All physical construction works on our State transport network must be completed by 29 
September 2017 and no works can commence again until after June 2018. This is due to 
fact that the intersection of the Gold Coast Highway / Hooker Boulevard, and, Gold 
Coast Highway / T.E. Peters Drive, will form part of the Games Route Network and test 
events for the games will be commencing in the Broadbeach area in October 2017. 
 

Between 29 
September 2017 and 
30 June 2018, 
inclusive.  

ELECTRICAL RETICULATION  
29.  Electricity supply to MCU developments and private estates 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister a copy of the ‘Certificate of 
Supply’ from an authorised electricity supplier (e.g. ENERGEX) as evidence that 
underground low-voltage electricity supply is available to the development site and all 
proposed lots/dwellings within the site (i.e. sufficient for the ultimate use of the site).  
 
In supplying power to the site, no additional poles and/or pole-mounted transformers are 
to be erected within the road reserve.  

Prior to the earlier of 
Council compliance 
assessment of 
subdivision plans or 
the commencement 
of the use.  

TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
30.  Telecommunications – MCU 

 
The Trustee must:  
 
a. Provide underground telecommunications to the subject building/s, lean-in conduits 

and equipment space/s in a suitable location within the building/s, to suit the carrier 
of choice. 

b. If new pit and pipe infrastructure is required to be installed within the road reserve 
fronting the site, it must be suitably sized to cater for future installation of fibre optic 
cables. 

c. Provide certification to Council and to the Minister, from the authorised 
telecommunications carrier/contractor, that the works and infrastructure required 
above have been undertaken and installed in accordance with telecommunications 
industry standards (e.g. Telstra standards).  

Prior to 
commencement of 
the use.  

WORKS - COMPLIANCE 
31.  Revetment wall 

 
The Trustee must have undertaken an inspection of the condition of the existing 
revetment wall. Such assessment must be undertaken by a registered professional 
engineer who specialises or who has expertise in retaining/revetment walls and must 
report on the existing condition of the wall and make any recommendations as to any 
required repairs or maintenance works necessary – whether or not such required works 
are as a consequence of the proposed works. A copy of the report is to be submitted to 
Council for Council’s record and to the Minister.  
 
Where repairs or maintenance works are recommended in the report, the property owner 
will be required to undertake the works prior to or in conjunction with building works. This 
requirement is imposed to protect the property in the long term. Certification from a 
registered engineer certifying that the required repairs or maintenance works have been 
carried out is to be submitted to Council for Council’s record and to the Minister.  

Prior to any building 
works commencing 
on site.  
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32.  Certification of Compliance 

 
All works must be certified by a suitably qualified professional as complying with the 
approved plans.  
 
For this condition, a ‘suitably qualified professional’ is a person with a tertiary 
qualification and a professional affiliation in the field of engineering or science relevant to 
the works and/or management plan who has at least two years’ experience in 
management in that field. Where the works and/or management plans involve different 
fields, a certification is required from a suitably qualified professional for each separate 
field.  

The Trustee must 
submit the 
certification prior to 
the earliest of 
compliance 
assessment of the 
subdivision plan, the 
commencement of 
the ‘on maintenance’ 
period or the 
commencement of 
the use.  

HYDRAULICS 
33.  No loss of floodplain storage 

 
The proposed development shall result in no loss of floodplain storage up to the 100 
year average recurrence interval (ARI) regional flood event.  

At all times.  

34.  No worsening of hydraulic conditions 
 
The development must be designed and constructed so as to result in:  
 
a. no increase in peak flow rates downstream from the site; 
b. no increase in flood levels external to the site; and 
c. no increase in duration of inundation external to the site that could cause loss or 

damage.  

At all times.  

35.  Alteration of overland flow paths 
 
Overland flow paths on the Site must not be altered in a way that inhibits or alters the 
characteristics of existing overland flows on other properties or that creates an increase 
in flood damage on other properties.  

At all times.  

36.  Flood hazard signage 
 
The Trustee must install flood markers and warning signs within the proposed 
development site informing occupants/visitors of the potential flood hazard. The flood 
markers and warning signs must be clearly visible to the occupants/visitors when 
entering the flood affected areas of the Site.  

The flood markers 
and warning signs 
must be installed 
prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

37.  Building floor levels 
 
a. Building floor levels of habitable rooms must be at least 300mm above the Council’s 

designated floor level. 
b. Building floor levels of garages and non-habitable rooms, constructed at 

approximately the same level as the main dwelling and attached to the main 
dwelling, must be at or above the designated flood level.  

At all times.  

38.  Flood management (evacuation & emergency situation) 
 
a. The owner/occupants shall take necessary measures to evacuate the 

residents/occupants of the property into a safe place during a range of flood events 
including and up to the designated flood event.  

b. The proposed development shall ensure no additional burden on SES and Council’s 
emergency service during the major flood events.  

 
 

At all times.  

39.  Certification of earthworks compliance with hydraulic report 
 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister a certification from a Registered 
Professional Engineer Queensland (RPEQ) specialising in hydraulics stating that the 
bulk earthworks comply with the approved hydraulic report, being “Destination Gold 
Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Flooding and Hydraulics Impact Assessment 

The certification must 
be submitted to 
Council immediately 
after completion of 
the bulk earthworks.  
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Revision 05’ (Report No: F0003-AA0090029-AAR dated 15 September 2017 prepared 
by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd) and no loss of flood plain storage has occurred as a 
result of the earthworks. The certification must be accompanied by calculations and as 
constructed data that:  
 
a. includes existing and proposed triangulated surface meshes which can be produced 

by computer terrain modelling software packages such as Civil-Cad, 12D or KEAYS; 
and 

b. has been compared with the pre-development surface levels to ensure that no loss 
of floodplain storage has occurred.  

40.  Certification confirming no adverse hydraulic impact due to Casino Drive 
extension 
 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister a certification from a qualified 
professional (RPEQ or equivalent) specialised in hydraulics confirming that the proposed 
extension (Ref Dwg No V160335T-SK21-B, dated 26/08/16 prepared by Cardno (Qld) 
Pty Ltd) of the Casino Drive will not result in:  
 
a. loss of floodplain storage; 
b. reduce the river flood conveyance capacity; and/or 
c. adverse hydraulic impact to any external properties.  
 
The certification must include all necessary calculations.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
any work on the Site.  

41.  Excavated Sand 
 
All excess sand excavated from the Site must be managed by the Trustee in accordance 
with the following requirements:  
 
a. The Trustee must submit a sand management plan to Council for the Minister’s 

approval. The sand management plan must outline appropriate actions to ensure 
excavated sand is appropriately cleaned, treated, placed, levelled and stabilised.  

b. The sand must be sieved to remove all material having a dimension greater than 20 
millimetres.  

c. The sieved sand must be placed onto the ocean beach, profiled and stabilised in 
accordance with the approved sand management plan, prior to the issue of a 
certification of classification/final inspection certificate.  

d. If the sand to be excavated will exceed 2,000 cubic metres, a supervisor, 
recommended by the Minister, must be employed at the Trustee’s cost for the 
duration of the sand excavation and deposition and the supervisor must:  

i. undertake the physical collection of any waste material deposited on the 
beach as a result of the sand deposition; and 

ii. ensure that the total excess clean sand is deposited, profiled and stabilised 
as indicated by Council and directed by the Minister.  

The sand 
management plan 
must be submitted to 
Council for approval 
prior to 
commencement of 
works on site.  
 
All other 
requirements of the 
condition must be 
complied with at all 
times. 

42.  Revetment wall requirements 
 
a. No structures shall be located within one metre of the top of the revetment wall to 

allow for maintenance and inspection of the revetment wall.  
b. In the event of failure of the revetment wall, the property owner and not Council shall 

be solely responsible for the reinstatement of the revetment wall to an adequate 
standard to withstand flood events up to and including the 100 year ARI flood event.  

c. The property owner, and not Council shall be responsible for the upkeep and 
maintenance of the revetment wall protecting the property for the life of the structure. 

 
  

At all times.  

STORMWATER AND WATER QUALITY 
43.  Stormwater management plan to be compiled with 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialised in stormwater management confirming that all works have been carried out 
and completed in accordance with the approved stormwater management plan being 

The certification must 
be submitted prior to 
the commencement 
of the use of the 
premises.  
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“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Site Based Stormwater 
Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 
prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd).  
 
Information note: this condition is non-trunk infrastructure.  

44.  Certification that stormwater management treatment train implemented 
 
The Trustee must provide to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialising in stormwater that the stormwater management treatment train in the 
approved stormwater management plan, “Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 
Development, Site Based Stormwater Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: 
F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty 
Ltd”), and associated design drawings has been installed on-site and is functioning as 
designed.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

45A Certification of performance of the treatment train 
 
The Trustee/owner must submit to Council and to the Minister certification signed by the 
qualified professional (RPEQ or equivalent) confirming the following: 
 
a. The proposed treatment train including the proprietary device will achieve pollutants 

removal efficiency to satisfy Council’s water quality objectives as outlined in the City 
Plan Policy - Land Development Guidelines.  

b. The signing person must acknowledge that he/she is aware that the Council of the 
City of Gold Coast relies upon his/her certification in approving the above stormwater 
management plan and associated treatment train including the proprietary device. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
works on-site.   

45B Monitoring of the proprietary treatment devices 
 
a. The Trustee/owner must carry out monitoring of the performance of the proprietary 

stormwater treatment devices as adopted in the approved stormwater management 
plan for two years at no cost to Council. Annual report of the monitoring and 
subsequent results shall be prepared by a suitably qualified professional (RPEQ or 
equivalent) specialised in stormwater and must be submitted to Council for record 
keeping purposes. 
 
Alternatively, the Trustee/owner shall submit a certification or endorsement letter from 
an independent expert / peer reviewer based on the testing / monitoring results of the 
proprietary devices confirming the performance of the devices in relation to Council’s 
adopted protocol (August 2015) requirements, to discontinue the ongoing monitoring. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

45C Maintenance of stormwater management devices 
 
a. Prior to commencement of the use of the premises, a site-specific stormwater quality 

improvement device (SQID) maintenance management plan (MMP) must be prepared 
by a suitably qualified professional, consistent with the maintenance requirements of 
the devices in the proposed treatment train, and submitted to Council in a satisfactory 
manner. The approved MMP must be included in the Trustee or Community 
Management Plan / Building Management Statement as required.  
 
The MMP must address the following: 
 

i. The MMP must include all associated cost related to the device (e.g. 
installation, inspection and replacement/maintenance, reporting, health and 
safety plans, training, area of land required to install the device etc.); 

ii. The MMP must include the lifecycle cost of the proposed treatment devices. 
 
b. The Trustee / legal authority must enter into a long-term maintenance agreement with 

the proprietor or an appropriate entity for the life of the development. A copy of the 
maintenance agreement must be submitted to council for record prior to 
commencement of the use of the premises; 
 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 
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c. The Trustee / legal authority shall submit to Council certification from a RPEQ every 

year for the life of the development confirming that the cartridges have been replaced 
and functioning as designed. 

 
d. The Trustee / legal authority of the development shall be responsible for monitoring 

and maintaining the stormwater management devices during both construction and 
operational phases at no cost to the Council. 
 

e. In case of failure to achieve the designed pollutant load reduction target during the 
operational phase of the development, the Trustee / legal authority must be 
responsible to replace the proprietary device (Stormwater360 StormFilter Cartridges) 
with an appropriate treatment system in accordance with Council’s WSUD guidelines 
(Section 13 of the Land Development Guidelines) at no cost to Council. 
 

Advisory Note: Failure of achieving the water quality objectives during construction and 
operational phase of the development may trigger significant penalty under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1994. 

WATERWAYS 
46.  Protection of marine plants 

 
Development authorised under this approval must ensure there is no removal, damage 
or destruction to marine plants, generally in accordance with Figure 2: Masterplan 
clearing extents prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd dated 03/05/16.  

At all times.  

47.  Reclamation of land 
 
The development must not involve reclamation of land from tidal water.  

For the duration of 
the works the subject 
of this approval.  

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL 
48.  Erosion and sediment control 

 
a. Erosion and sediment control measures are to be installed and maintained to 

prevent the release of sediment to tidal waters.  
b. Erosion, sediment and dust control measures must be implemented in accordance 

with the Best Practice Erosion and Sediment Control (International Erosion Control 
Association Australasia, November 2008). 

c. Sediment control structures (e.g. sediment fence) must be placed at the base of all 
materials imported on-site to mitigate any sediment runoff.  

d. A perimeter bund and/or diversion drain must be constructed around the disturbed 
area to prevent any outside clean stormwater from mixing with 
polluted/contaminated stormwater.  

e. All polluted/contaminated water from the Site, including dewatering discharge, must 
be treated to achieve the water quality objectives in Table 8.2.1 of the Queensland 
Water Quality Guidelines (Department of Environment and Heritage Protection, 
September 2009) prior to discharging from the Site.  

f. The following inspection program must be carried out before the Site is fully 
rehabilitated:  

i. regular inspections to ensure that adequate erosion control measures are in 
place and in good condition both during and after construction; and 

ii. inspections after each storm event to assess the adequacy of the erosion 
control measures. The Trustee must rectify any damage or non-performing 
erosion control devices and clean up any sediment that has left the Site or is 
on the roads within and external to the Site.  

For the duration of 
the works the subject 
of this approval.  
 
 

49.  Erosion and sediment control for works within waterways 
 
a. All works within waterways (including riparian areas) must be:  

i. undertaken during dry weather; 
ii. promptly rehabilitated conforming to the natural channel form, substrates 

and riparian vegetation as far as possible; and 
iii. undertaken in accordance with Best Practice Erosion & Sediment Control, 

Appendix I - Instream works, Sections 14 and 16 (IECA Australasia, 
November 2008).  

During 
operational/constructi
on works (works for 
infrastructure and/or 
change or ground 
level) 
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b. Temporary vehicular crossings of waterways must be designed and constructed to 

convey flows and remain stable for all rainfall events up to the 1 in 10 year ARI event 
of critical duration.  

AMENITY 
50.  Restricted paint colours 

 
Buildings and structures must not be painted in highly reflective, bright or obtrusive 
colours.  

At all times.  

51.  No nuisance from lighting 
 
All lighting devices must be positioned on the premises and shielded to the satisfaction 
of the Minister so as not to cause:  
 
a. glare or other nuisance to surrounding residents and motorists; and 
b. a navigation hazard on any nearby or adjacent waterway.  

At all times.  

BUILT FORM 
52.  Additional Documentation 

 
The following documentation must be submitted to Council’s City Architect and Council’s 
Chief Executive Officer for the Minister’s approval:  
 
a. A Public Art Proposal Report prepared by a qualified art consultant detailing the 

proposed artwork with background information on the proposed artists for the entire 
development and in accordance with the Gold Coast Public Art Policy.  

b. A Lighting Design Report prepared by a qualified lighting consultant demonstrating 
the exemplary use of special architectural lighting for the development and any 
public artwork.  

c. A Solar Light Reflectivity Study prepared by a qualified technical consultant 
confirming there is no adverse glare impact to surrounding buildings and vehicles. 
The report should also include the identification and confirmation of any proposed 
design changes arising as a result of the report findings.  

d. Confirmation that the proposal has been designed in accordance with and 
incorporates all mitigating design features identified in the Environmental Wind 
Report prepared by MEL Consultants and dated May 2016.  

e. Prior to the issue of a Certificate of Classification, and the development’s occupation 
and commencement of use, the Trustee must demonstrate through the Corporate 
Building Management Plan, that all aspects relating to public art work of this 
approval are maintained in perpetuity for the life of the development. 

Prior to the building 
works commencing.  

HEALTH AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
53.  Waste Management Plan 

 
The development must be designed and constructed generally in accordance with the 
approved Waste Management Plan (WMP) prepared by Arcadis dated 15 September 
2017 (Report No: AA009245-R01-054).  
 
Any proposed changes to the approved WMP must be submitted to Council for review 
prior to the implementation of any proposed structural changes. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

54.  Bulk bins – storage point – external 
 
The bulk bin storage points must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03). The design and construction of 
all storage points must comply with the following requirements:  
 
a. located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site; 
b. allow for at least an additional 0.5 metre clearance surrounding each container, or 

for the storage of multiple bins – one metre clearance around the combined bin area 
(whichever is the lesser); 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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c. sufficiently screened to ensure bins are not visible from a public place or sensitive 

land use; 
d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. roofed and designed to prevent entry to rainwater; 
f. graded to fall to a drainage point within the storage point; 
g. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; and 
h. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins. 

55.  Waste storage room – design and construction 
 
The waste storage room must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 Part 
01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and constructed in 
accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. air-locked; 
b. fly and vermin proofed; 
c. used solely for the storage of waste; 
d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. graded to fall to a drainage point; 
f. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; 
g. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins; 
h. fire rated and ventilated in accordance with the National Construction Code – 

Building Code of Australia; 
i. the doors must be wide enough to allow for the easy removal of the largest container 

to be stored; 
j. the walls, ceiling, floor and equipment of each waste storage room must be designed 

and constructed of impervious material with a smooth finish to allow for easy 
cleaning; 

k. adequate artificial lighting must be provided; and 
l. must permit unobstructed access for removal of the containers to the service point 

and for positioning of the containers correctly in relation to the waste chute. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

56.  Bulk bins – servicing point 
 
The bulk bin servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
front-lift waste collection vehicle, taking into consideration:  

i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions;  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable), and  
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

b. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 
access, and any other similar areas. 

c. Clear of speed control devices or similar provisions which inhibit direct access to the 
bins for servicing. 

d. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 
development or any adjoining site. 

e. Constructed hardstand with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent. 
f. Allow for at least an additional 0.5 metres clearance surrounding each container, or 

for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser.  

g. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 
vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

57.  Ro-Ro Bins – storage & servicing point – undercover area 
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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The Ro-Ro bins storage / servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan 
– Level 01 Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
b. Constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent that 

is of sufficient strength to support the loaded weight of the bin and the truck. 
c. Graded to fall to a drainage point/s, connected to sewer in accordance with trade 

waste requirements. 
d. Allow for at least an additional one (1) metre clearance surrounding each container, 

or for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

e. Allow additional space for compactor and bin-lifter equipment if applicable. 
f. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 

vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site. 
g. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 

access and other similar areas. 
h. Sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
waste bin collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 

i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions; 
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable); and  
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

58.  Waste chute – design and construction 
 
The waste chute must be located in accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 
2017 (Job No. 5370), and be designed and constructed in accordance with the following 
requirements:  
 
a. Adequate strength for its purpose, including additional reinforcing where necessary 

at joins, bends and hopper intersections. 
b. Insect and vermin proof. 
c. Constructed and installed to prevent the following during use and operation of the 

system:  
i. transmission of vibration to the structure of the premises; 
ii. excessive odour;  and 
iii. excessive noise to the occupants of the building. 

d. Installed in a fire rated duct and ventilated in compliance with building requirements 
of the National Construction Code – Building Code of Australia. 

e. Comply with the waste chute manufacturer’s technical specifications and /or 
operational limitations, including installation design features and ancillary equipment 
required to prevent blockages and noise disturbances. 

f. Fitted with a shutter at the base of the chute for closing off the chute manually during 
bin exchange and automatically in the case of fire. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

59.  Waste disposal points – design and construction 
 
A waste disposal point / hopper must be located on each residential floor in accordance 
with the approved plans dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 5370), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located to ensure the handle of the hopper is at least 1200 millimetres above 

finished floor level. 
b. Hopper door must automatically return to the closed position after use. 
c. Designed to permit free flow of waste into the chute. 
d. Constructed so that the diameter or largest dimension of the service opening (the 

diagonal of a rectangular opening) does not exceed three-quarters (3/4) of the 
diameter of the chute with which the hopper is connected. 

Prior to occupation.  
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e. The floor adjacent to the hopper to be constructed of a durable impervious material 

with a smooth finished surface. 
60.  Recyclable storage 

 
Adequate storage for recyclable water must be provided in a location that all users can 
safely and easily access.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

61.  Acoustics – design and construction 
 
The development must be designed and constructed generally in accordance with the 
recommendations outlined in the Environmental Noise Assessment Report, prepared by 
TTM Consulting Pty Ltd dated 3 May 2016 (Reference: 16SYA00001 R02_1 Stage 1).  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

62.  Acoustic compliance report 
 
An acoustic compliance report prepared by a suitably qualified person shall be submitted 
to Council for approval by the Minister. The report shall certify that the development has 
been designed and constructed in accordance with the established noise criteria and 
recommendations outlined in the Environmental Noise Assessment Report prepared by 
TTM Consulting Pty Ltd dated 3 May 2016 (Reference: 16SYA00001 R02_1 Stage 1).  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

63.  Driveway and carpark surfaces 
 
a. Driveway and carpark areas are to be finished with surface coatings that prevent tyre 

squeal (an uncoated surface is acceptable). 
b. Drainage grating placed over trafficable areas is to be well secured to prevent 

rattling.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

LANDSCAPE WORKS 
64.  Detailed landscape plan to be submitted for approval 

 
The Trustee must:  
 
a. Submit to Council for the Minister’s approval, detailed landscape plans prepared and 

certified by a suitably qualified Landscape Architect illustrating the extent of 
landscaping for the development and the overall site interface with the streetscape. 
The plans must:  

i. be prepared by a qualified landscape architect or similar landscape design 
professional;  

ii. be in general accordance with the Statement of Landscape Intent, being 
Dwg: RPT 03 160512, Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Plan of 
Development, Date: N/A, By: Urbis;  

iii. reflect the approved layout (including any amendments to that layout 
required by these conditions) and the conditions of this approval;  

iv. comply with City Plan Policy – Landscape Work;  
v. ensure landscaping maintains visibility along pathways and vehicle paths;  
vi. include species which are low maintenance and water-wise;  
vii. ensure species are selected taking into account the location of overhead 

and/or underground services – such services must be located clear of 
important landscape elements such as tree planting areas;  

viii. ensure the proposed trees and single trunked palms within the site are 
species with a form that is respectful of the planting location’s proximity to 
the building. A minimum of 10 trees within the private property must be 
minimum 200 litre bag size at time of planting; remaining trees must be 
minimum 100 litre. Plumeria, Pandanus & palm species must be minimum 3 
metres height at time of planting; Dracaena draco must be minimum 2 
metres height at time of planting;  

ix. include a maintenance management plan relating to the planter boxes on 
the external façade of the building. The maintenance management plan 
must:  

A. provide detailed information as to how these vegetative systems 
will be safely accessed for maintenance;  

B. stipulate a maintenance schedule for these systems;  

For a) - the 
landscape plans 
must be endorsed by 
Council prior to 
commencement of 
landscape works.  
 
For b) and c) - prior 
to the 
commencement of 
the approved use.  
 
For d) at all times.  
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C. provide details of the minimum standards to which these 

systems must be maintained; and  
D. describe actions to be taken if the systems should fail to 

function as intended; 
x. include details of the landscaping on Level 57;  
xi. prescribe the use of tree stock compliant with NATSPEC specifications;  
xii. identify opportunities for water infiltration to be maximised on-site through 

landscaped areas and permeable paving where possible; and  
xiii. include locations of, and a cross-sectional detail of the bio-retention systems 

that are required by the Stormwater Management Plan prepared for the site. 
The cross-sectional detail must identify the filter media depth and the 
surface treatment proposed for the systems. The detailed landscape plan 
must also incorporate an appropriate list of species in the plan schedule 
which are suitable for a bio-retention area. Planting densities within the bio-
retention area must match those specified in Council City Plan Policy – Land 
Development Guidelines. 

b. Construct the works in accordance with the certified plans required by part a) of this 
condition.  

c. On completion of the works, provide to Council written certification from a licensed 
and experienced Landscape Architect that the completed landscaping complies with 
part b) of this condition.  

d. Following installation of the landscaping in accordance with the certified plans, the 
landscaping within the site boundaries must be maintained in accordance with the 
certified landscape plans and all relevant Australian Standards to the satisfaction of 
the Minister. 

65.  Planter boxes 
 
a. The planter boxes on the podium where trees (including Pandanus) are proposed to 

be planted must be a minimum six (6) square metres in surface area. 
b. Each of the aforementioned planter boxes must be sized to provide a minimum 

800mm internal soil depth. The depth of planter boxes where trees are not proposed 
are to be as shown on the referenced Statement of Landscape Intent. 

c. An automatic irrigation system must be provided to all podium planting, including the 
planter boxes located on the external façade of the building.  

At all times.  

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
66.  Construction management plan 

 
Part A Construction Management Requirements  
 
a. A construction management plan must be submitted to Council for the Minister’s 

approval in accordance with the Application for Construction Management Plan form 
and Guidelines for Construction Management Plans which are available on Council’s 
website.  

b. The construction management plan must address all activities associated with 
construction (excluding noise and dust issues), including but not limited to:  

i. vehicle access (including responsibility for maintenance of the defined 
cartage route) during hours of construction;  

ii. traffic management (including loading and unloading);  
iii. parking of vehicles (including on site employees and delivery vehicles);  
iv. maintenance of safe pedestrian movement across the site’s frontage/s 

(including by people with disabilities);  
v. building waste / refuse disposal;  
vi. presentation of hoarding to the street; and 
vii. tree management.  

c. The construction management plan must demonstrate that:  
i. the general public will be adequately protected from construction activities;  
ii. the building site will be kept clean and tidy to maintain public safety and 

amenity; and  
iii. demand for occupation of the street and protection of Council assets will be 

well managed.  

A construction 
management plan 
must be submitted to 
Council and 
approved by, the 
Minister prior to the 
issue of any 
development permit 
for the carrying out of 
building work.  
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d. The construction management plan must be complied with and kept on-site at all 

times during construction works.  
 
Should the development be under construction during the period of the Gold Coast 
Commonwealth Games in April 2018, the Trustee will be required to undertake a specific 
Commonwealth Games Construction Management Plan to be submitted to Council for 
the Minister’s approval which will deal with impacts such as road closures and elevated 
expectations of the presentation of construction sites.  
 
Part B Road/footpath Closure Requirements  
 
Where, as a result of construction work or activities, it is necessary to temporarily close a 
road/footpath under the control of Council the following requirements will apply: 
 
e. Where it is proposed to interfere with a Council controlled road for any building or 

construction work such as a gantry, hoarding or skip bin, an application for 
temporary closure of a Council controlled road must be submitted to, and approved 
by, Council prior to the issue of any development permit for the carrying out of 
building work.  

f. Where it is required to interfere with a road for any building or construction related 
work for a period in excess of two (2) weeks, a Road Closure Work Zone permit is to 
be obtained from Council’s Traffic Management and Operations Branch.  

g. Where it is required to occupy any portion of the road reserve in conjunction with 
building or construction work, a permit to occupy is to be obtained from Council’s 
Property Section.  

67.  Noise management 
 
a. Noise from construction activities must not cause an ‘environmental nuisance’ (within 

the meaning of that term set out in the Environmental Protection Act 1994) at any 
sensitive receptor stated in schedule 1 of the Environmental Protection (Noise) 
Policy 2008.  

b. A noise management plan must be submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval 
prior to the issue of any development permit for the carrying out of building work.  

c. The noise management plan must:  
i. be prepared by a suitably qualified acoustic engineer;  
ii. provide details of expected noise sources;  
iii. include an assessment of the predicted noise levels from all proposed 

construction activities;  
iv. identify the measures and work practices that will be implemented to ensure 

that noise from construction activities does not cause an ‘environmental 
nuisance’ (within the meaning of that term set out in the Environmental 
Protection Act 1994) at any sensitive receptor stated in schedule 1 of the 
Environmental Protection (Noise) Policy 2008;  

v. identify the procedures to be adopted for monitoring of noise emissions;  
vi. provide details of complaint response procedures that will be adopted; and 
vii. identify the procedures to be adopted for revision and review of the noise 

management plan.  
d. The approved noise management plan must be complied with and kept on-site at all 

times. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition.  

68.  Dust management 
 
a. The release of dust and particulate matter from construction activities must not 

cause an ‘environmental nuisance’ (within the meaning of that term set out in the 
Environmental Protection Act 1994) at any sensitive receptor stated in schedule 1 of 
the Environmental Protection (Noise) Policy 2008.  

b. A dust management plan must be submitted to Council for the Minister’s approval 
prior to the issue of any development permit for the carrying out of building work.  

c. The dust management plan must:  
i. be prepared by a suitably qualified professional;  
ii. provide details of sources of dust and particulate emissions;  

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition.  
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iii. identify the measures and work practices that will be implemented to ensure 

that the release of dust and particulate matter from construction activities 
does not cause an ‘environmental nuisance’ (within the meaning of that term 
set out in the Environmental Protection Act 1994) at any sensitive receptor 
stated in schedule 1 of the Environmental Protection (Noise) Policy 2008;  

iv. identify the procedures to be adopted for monitoring and reporting of air 
emissions;  

v. provide details of complaint response procedures that will be adopted; and  
vi. identify the procedures to be adopted for revision and review of the dust 

management plan.  
d. The approved dust management plan must be complied with and kept on-site at all 

times. 
69.  Haulage access / site management 

 
a. Prior to the commencement of works, the Trustee must provide a vehicle barrier 

along the frontages of the land, to ensure that all vehicles only use approved 
crossovers.  

b. Loading/unloading operations must be conducted entirely within the site and 
vehicles waiting to be loaded/unloaded must also stand within the site.  

c. All reasonable methods are to be used to reduce nuisance from dust, noise, 
vibration, smoke and material tracked onto public roads as a result of hauling and 
filling operations. Upon receipt of a dust nuisance complaint or notification of a dust 
nuisance by the Council, the Trustee is to take reasonable and immediate action to 
remedy the dust problem to the satisfaction of the Minister.  

d. The site must be maintained in a clean and tidy state at all times. Satisfactory 
arrangements must be made for the collection, storage and disposal of all waste 
materials.  

e. Non-recyclable debris must be transported from the site and disposed of at an 
approved waste facility. Combustion of any material is not permitted on the subject 
site without prior approval from the Minister.  

f. The Trustee must ensure that gravel access areas to the site, transport dust covers 
and shake (hose) down areas are in place to control both on-site dust nuisance and 
contamination of external properties, roadways and receiving waterways.  

g. Any damage to property (including pavement damage) is to be rectified to the 
satisfaction of Council prior to the earlier of Council issuing a letter accepting the 
works on-maintenance or a request for compliance assessment of the subdivision 
plan. The surrounding carriageways are to be kept clean of any material carried onto 
the roadway by construction vehicles. Any work carried out by Council to remove 
material from the roadway will be at the Trustee’s expense and any such costs are 
payable prior to the earlier of acceptance of the works on-maintenance or a request 
for compliance assessment of the subdivision plan.  

 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition.  

70.  Transport of soil/fill/excavated material 
 
During the transportation of soil and other fill/excavated material:  
 
a. all trucks hauling soil, or fill/excavated material must have their loads secure and 

covered;  
b. any spillage that falls from the trucks or their wheels must be collected and removed 

from the site and streets along which the trucks travel, on a daily basis; and  
c. prior to vehicles exiting the site, measures must be taken to remove soil from the 

wheels of the vehicles to prevent soil and mud being deposited on public roads.  

At all times while 
works are occurring.  

71.  Water usage 
 
The use of potable water is not permitted in activities associated with road and pavement 
construction, the compaction of fill material or dust suppression. The use of recycled 
water is encouraged, especially where other alternative sources do not exist. Where 
recycled water is proposed to be used:  
 

At all times while 
works are occurring.  
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a. the use of the recycled water must be in accordance with the requirements of the 

Gold Coast Water Recycled Water Management Plan (RWMP), which sets out the 
requirements for transport and use of recycled water;  

b. A suitably qualified employee or contractor of the Trustee responsible for the use of 
recycled water during construction must first complete the Recycled Water User 
Operator Training with Gold Coast Water, in accordance with the RWMP. Proof of 
completion of the training course will be by issue of a valid certification card;  

c. the Trustee can only contract to use a recycled water carrier who is accredited and 
certified by Gold Coast Water. Accreditation requires a current authorised agreement 
between the water carrier and Gold Coast Water; and  

d. the water carrier is only allowed to employ certified tanker operator/drivers, who 
have completed the recycled-water training course with Gold Coast Water and hold 
a valid certification card.  

 
Information note:  
To obtain a copy of the management plan and also to obtain a list of approved water 
carrier operators, the Trustee should contact Gold Coast Water: Senior Officer Recycled 
Water ph. (07) 5582 8422 Gold Coast Water ph. 1300 366 692.  
 
Potable water is defined as water treated to drinking water standards (NHMRC 
guidelines 1996) and being available in Council’s normal reticulated potable water supply 
system. Recycled water is defined as treated sewage in class A+, A B or C in 
accordance with the Public Health Regulations (NO1) 2008. 

72.  Workplace health and safety 
 
The Workplace Health and Safety Act 2011 and AS 1742 Manual of Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices must be complied with in carrying out the works, including ensuring safe 
traffic control and safe public access in respect of works being conducted on a road.  
 

At all times while 
works are occurring.  

73.  Public safety to be ensured 
 
The Trustee must, at no cost to Council, ensure that all reasonable safeguards in and 
around the works are undertaken and maintained at all times to ensure the safety of the 
public. Such safeguards include, but are not limited to, erecting and maintaining 
barricades, guards, fencing and signs (and ensuring removal after completion of works) 
and watching and flagging traffic.  
 

At all times while 
works are occurring.  

ACID SULPHATE SOILS/GROUNDWATER 
74.  Excavation/filling requiring consideration of acid sulphate soil 

 
a. The proposed development incorporates significant excavations which will affect 

soils below 5m AHD that involves the excavation of 100m3 or more of soil or 
sediment. As such, the following conditions in relation to acid sulphate soil 
investigation, management plan preparation and submission of documents to 
Council must be complied with.  

b. Any disturbed or oxidised acid suphate soil must be treated and managed in 
accordance with the current Queensland Acid Sulfate Soul Technical Manual: Soil 
management guidelines, prepared by the Department of Science, Information 
Technology, Innovation and the Arts, 2014. 

At all times.  

75.  Acid sulphate soil investigation 
 
An acid sulphate soil investigation must be completed. The investigation sampling and 
analysis must be prepared in accordance with the Guidelines for Sampling & Analysis of 
Lowland Acid Sulphate Soils in Queensland Version 4 (October 1998, Ahern et al 1998) 
and Acid Sulphate Soil Laboratory Method Guidelines Version 2.1 (June 2004, Ahern et 
al 2004). The investigation must establish the following:  
 
a. the presence/absence of acid sulphate soils over the entire excavation area (ie. 

through soil investigations);  

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition.  
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b. the degree (ie. concentration) of acid leachate generating potential of soils;  
c. the required soil dosage rates and quantity of lime required to mitigate acid leachate; 

and  
d. the potential impacts on surrounding environment features.  
 

76.  Preparation of acid sulphate soil management plan 
 
At the completion of the investigation required by the above condition Acid sulphate soil 
investigation, and if found necessary, an acid sulphate soil management plan (ASSMP) 
directed towards enabling works to be undertaken in a safe and effective manner must 
be prepared in accordance with:  
 
a. the current Queensland Acid Sulfate Soul Technical Manual: Soil management 

guidelines, prepared by the Department of Science, Information Technology, 
Innovation and the Arts, 2014. 

b. the conditions of this approval.  

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

77.  The acid sulphate soil management plan (ASSMP) to be lodged with an 
Environmental Management Program (EMP) application 
 
The ASSMP is a document which must be submitted with an EMP application. The 
details of the acid sulphate soil investigation completed pursuant to the above condition 
Acid sulphate soil investigation (including borehole logs, laboratory results and chain of 
custody documentations) must be submitted with the ASSMP. An EMP application must 
be made for approving the ASSMP, in accordance with the following:  
 
Matters or things against which the document must be assessed  
• State Planning Policy 2014: State interest – water quality regarding Acid Sulfate 

Soils;  
• The planning scheme’s Change to Ground Level and Creation of New Waterways 

Code; and  
• City Plan Policy – Acid sulphate soils management.  
 
When the EMP application must be made  
Before the earlier of:  
• a development application for operational work; or  
• any works commencing on site.  
 
The EMP and ASSMP must be submitted to Council for approval by the Minister. The 
ASSMP is not an approved plan until the EMP approval has been issued in respect of it. 
 
  

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

78.  Appointment of acid sulphate treatment professional 
 
A suitably qualified and experienced professional with relevant experience in this field 
must be appointed to supervise:  
a. the treatment of all acid sulphate soils;  
b. stock piling;  
c. monitoring;  
d. verification testing of the soil; and  
e. other items as appropriate in accordance with the approved ASSMP.  

At all times during 
construction works.  

79.  Pre-start meeting – acid sulphate soil requirements 
 
The Trustee must arrange and attend an on-site pre-start meeting with Council 
Environmental Planners. The contact number is 5582 8938.  
 
The following items are to be submitted prior to the booking or undertaken in conjunction 
with the booking of the pre-start meeting:  
a. all applicable requirements of the approved ASSMP;  
b. the location of treatment pads are to be marked on site; and  

Prior to or in 
conjunction with the 
booking and 
undertaking of the 
pre-start meeting, 
and prior to any 
works commencing 
on site.  
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c. the emergency fine agricultural lime must be on site at the time of pre-start meeting 

in accordance with the approved ASSMP.  
 
In accordance with condition titled Appointment of acid sulphate treatment professional 
above, a suitably qualified and experienced professional in relation to the acid sulphate 
requirements must be present at the pre-start meeting and all contractors must be made 
aware of the requirement for works in relation to acid sulphate soils to be undertaken by 
the experienced professional nominated.  
 
Where an inspection is not passed, the Trustee must attend to all outstanding 
issues/unsatisfactory items and book a re-inspection with Council.  

PLUMBING AND DRAINAGE 
80.  Application for compliance permit for sewerage works required 

 
The Trustee must make an application to Council (Plumbing and Drainage Services) for 
a compliance permit for any compliance assessable sewerage works within the property. 
Without limiting the requirements of the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 with which the 
works must comply, the application must:  
 
a. be accompanied by a hydraulic design for all sewerage works within the property;  
b. comply with Council’s:  

i. Trade Waste Policy; and  
ii. Trade Waste Pre-treatment Policy and Guidelines; and  

c. comply with Council’s Solid Waste Management Guidelines for New Developments 
(2011).  

 
Information note:  
• Sewerage works must not be carried out until a compliance permit under the 

Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 has been issued by Council for the works.  
• Plumbing and drainage approval is not an approval to discharge trade waste to 

Council’s sewerage system. The generator of trade must complete an Application for 
Approval to Discharge Trade Waste to Council’s sewerage system (available on 
Council’s website) prior to discharging any trade waste.  

Prior to any on-site 
sewerage works 
occurring on site. 

81.  Application for compliance permit for water supply plumbing work required 
 
The Trustee must make an application to Council (Plumbing and Drainage Services) for 
a compliance permit for any compliance assessable water supply plumbing work within 
the property. Without limiting the requirements of the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 
with which the works must comply, the application must:  
 
a. be accompanied by a hydraulic design for all water services within the property; and  
b. comply with Section 5.2 of Council’s City Plan Policy.  
 
Information note:  
Water supply plumbing works must not be carried out until a compliance permit under 
the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 has been issued by Council for the works.  
 

Prior to works 
occurring.  

82.  Application for compliance permit for fire services plumbing work required 
 
The Trustee must make an application to Council (Plumbing and Drainage Services) for 
a compliance permit for all fire services plumbing work within the property. Without 
limiting the requirements of the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 with which the works 
must comply, the application must be accompanied by a hydraulic design for all fire 
services within the property.  
 
Information note:  
Plumbing works for fire services must not be carried out until a compliance permit under 
the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 has been issued by Council for the works.  

Prior to works 
occurring.  

SEWERAGE 
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83.  Sewer reticulation 

 
a. The development must be connected to Council’s sewer reticulation system at no 

cost to Council.  
b. The size of the sewer property service connection shall be a minimum 150mm in 

accordance with Section 4.5.4 of the South East Queensland Water Supply and 
Sewerage Design and Construction Code (SEQ D&C Code).  

 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

84.  Design, construction and standard of sewer reticulation 
 
The design, construction and standard of the required sewer reticulation infrastructure to 
be carried out by the Trustee must be in accordance with the SEQ D&C Code.  

At all times.  

85.  Connection point 
 
The existing sewer maintenance hole S029-00377M located near the Sunshine 
Boulevard intersection via the existing private rising main must be used as the 
connection point, unless otherwise approved by Gold Coast Water.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

86.  Redundant sewer property connections 
 
The Trustee must make an application for Gold Coast Water to remove or to seal and 
cap any redundant sewer property service connections, at the Trustee’s cost. 
Decommissioning of redundant assets must comply with Gold Coast Water Network 
Modifications, Extension and Connections Policy and Procedure.  

Prior to the earlier of 
acceptance of any 
works ‘On 
Maintenance’ or the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

87.  Connection and disconnection – arrangements with Gold Coast Water 
 
Any connections and disconnections to the existing sewerage network must be at the 
Trustee’s cost. The Trustee must obtain written approval for the connection and 
disconnection to the existing sewerage network from Gold Coast Water (phone 1300 694 
222).  

Prior to the 
connection and/or 
disconnection to 
existing 
infrastructure.  

88.  Ownership, operation and maintenance of private sewerage infrastructure 
 
The private pump station and private rising mains servicing the development site must 
be upgraded by the Trustee should Council’s existing sewerage network be altered by 
Council, at no cost to Council.  
 

At all times.  

89.  Emergency storage – sewerage works 
 
The Trustee must provide 53.5kL of emergency storage as follows. 
 
a. The Trustee must pay to Council additional trunk infrastructure costs in the amount 

of $362,856.69 as the development will require additional emergency storage at 
pump station SP26. Emergency Upgrade works are identified in Council’s Local 
Government Infrastructure Plan (LGIP).  

i. The additional establishment cost of providing the additional emergency 
storage using the following methodology:-  
Base cost emergency storage x (V^0.835) x adjustment factor x ((1+i)^n), 
where:  
V = 53.5 additional volume of emergency storage required (kL)  
Base unit cost of emergency storage = 7444.012 ($2016/kL rather than 
$2013/kL allowing for CPI) (Water and Sewerage Infrastructure Plan 2014 
Detailed Cost Analysis #45680604)  
Adjustment factor = 1.5 (overhead and contingency allowance)  
i = indexation (10 year average of ABS 6247 roads and bridges index 3101 
Queensland Table 17) currently 2.67 % pa  
n = 6 the number of years bought forward, beginning of cohort period 
infrastructure identified (2022) less the current year (2016).  

ii. The additional payment cost will be recalculated at time of payment to take 
into consideration changes to the unit cost rate for emergency storage, 

Prior to 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  
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indexation and number of years between the base establishment cost and 
the year of payment.  

b. the applicant may, instead of making the payment, elect to provide part or the entire 
trunk infrastructure. 

i. If the applicant elects to provide the trunk infrastructure the:- 
A. development requires the construction of additional emergency storage 

of 53.5 kL at SP26; 
B. construction must be coordinated with Gold Coast City Council, the 

LGIP identified emergency storage of 117 kL for SP26 in 2022 which will 
be constructed by the Council; and 

C. construction is to comply with the South East Queensland Water Supply 
and Sewerage Design and Construction Code; and 

D. works are required to be constructed prior to commencement of use of 
the premises. 

c. The applicant may, instead of making the payment or providing part of the entire 
trunk infrastructure, provide the emergency storage on site. 
 

Note 1: the Trustee will not be entitled to a refund of any part of the additional payment 
because the additional payment is for the additional emergency storage attributable to 
the Trustee only.  

WATER SUPPLY RETICULATION 
90.  Water supply reticulation (potable only) 

 
a. The development must be connected to Council’s potable water supply reticulation 

system at no cost to Council.  
b. The Trustee is responsible for any external works necessary to connect to Council’s 

potable water supply reticulation system.  

Prior to 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

91.  Design, construction and standard of water supply reticulation 
 
The design, construction and standard of the required water supply reticulation 
infrastructure to be carried out by the Trustee must be in accordance with the SEQ D&C 
Code.  

At all times.  

92.  Connection Point 
 
a. The existing potable water supply connection point to the existing 225 mm main in T 

E Peters Drive to the north of the development, via the existing water main 
traversing the island/site must be used, unless otherwise approved by Gold Coast 
Water; and  

b. A new potable water supply connection point to the existing 600 mm main in Hooker 
Boulevard via the proposed water main traversing the site must be used, unless 
otherwise approved by Gold Coast Water.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

93.  Installation of property service, water meter box and meter 
 
The Trustee must:  
 
a. Make application to Gold Coast Water for Gold Coast Water’s Asset Audit and 

Handover Section (phone 1300 694 222) to arrange the property service, water 
meter box and meter installation.  

i. The property service, water meter box and water meter shall be provided, at 
the boundary of the development site, in accordance with South East 
Queensland Design and Construction Code (SEQ D&C Code), Gold Coast 
Waters Network Modifications, Extension and Connections Policy and 
Procedure and/or any applicable COGC policies and procedures), at the 
Trustee’s cost;  

b. Make application for Gold Coast Water to remove any redundant water meters 
and/or services, at the Trustee’s cost. Removal must comply with Gold Coast Waters 
Network Modifications, Extension and Connections Policy and Procedure.  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

94.  Individual sub-metering to be provided 
 

At the time of 
lodgement of the 
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The Trustee shall provide individual sub-metering for all units within the complex 
including any common property, in accordance with Sub-metering Policy dated 1 
January 2008, as follows unless otherwise approved by Gold Coast Water.  
 
a. All meters and their locations shall be approved as part of the Plumbing and 

Drainage application.  
b. Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) technology shall be utilised where free access for 

meter reading cannot be provided.  
c. Must comply with Gold Coast Water Network Modifications, Extension and 

Connections Policy and Procedure.  

Plumbing and 
Drainage application. 

95.  Connection and disconnection – arrangements with Gold Coast Water 
 
Any connections and disconnections to the existing water network must be at the 
Trustee’s cost. The Trustee must obtain written approval for the connection and 
disconnection to the existing water network from Gold Coast Water (phone 1300 694 
222).  

Prior to connection 
and/or disconnection 
to existing 
infrastructure.  

96.  Supply standard 
 
The Trustee must provide water supply to the standard specified in Council’s Land 
Development Guidelines and Gold Coast Water Network Modifications, Extension and 
Connections Policy and Procedure.  

At all times.  

97.  Fire loading 
 
Fire loading must not exceed 30L/s for 4 hours duration.  

At all times.  
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

ADVISORY NOTES 

ADVISORY NOTES: COUNCIL 
A Conditions of approval 

 
Where applicable, the conditions of approval have a separate timing component to clarify 
when compliance with the condition must be achieved. This timing component forms part of 
the condition itself.  

B Trustee’s responsibilities  
 
The Trustee is responsible for securing all necessary approvals and tenure, providing 
statutory notifications and complying with all relevant laws.  
 
Nothing in this decision notice alleviates the need for the Trustee to comply with all relevant 
local, State and Commonwealth laws and to ensure appropriate tenure arrangements have 
been made where the use of/reliance upon land other than that owned by the Trustee is 
involved. Without limiting this obligation, the Trustee is responsible for:  
 
a. Obtaining all other/further necessary approvals, licences, permits, resource entitlements 

etc by whatever name called required by law before the development the subject of this 
approval can be lawfully commenced and to carry out the activity for its duration;  

b. Providing any notifications required by law (by way of example only, to notify the 
administering authority pursuant to the Environmental Protection Act 1994 of 
environmental harm being caused/threatened by the activity, and upon becoming aware 
the premises is being used for a ‘notifiable activity’);  

c. Securing tenure/permission from the relevant owner to use private or public land not 
owned by the Trustee (including for access required by conditions of approval);  

d. Ensuring the correct siting of structures on the land. An identification survey 
demonstrating correct siting and setbacks of structures may be requested of the 
Trustee to ensure compliance with the conditions of approval and applicable codes;  

e. Providing Council with proof of payment of the Portable Long Service Leave building 
construction levy (or proof of appropriate exemption) where the value of the Operational 
Works exceeds $150,000. Acceptable proof of payment is a Q.Leave – Notification and 
Payment Form approved by the Authority. Proof of payment must be provided before 
Council can issue a development permit for the Operational Works. This is a 
requirement of section 77(1) of the Building and Construction Industry (Portable Long 
Service Leave) Act 1991; and  

f. Making payment of any outstanding Council rates and charges applicable to the 
development site prior to the lodgement of subdivision plans.  

C Gold Coast Airport Pty Ltd 
 
a. The CASA Manual of Standards (MOS) Part 139 - Aerodromes, Chapter 7, Sub-section 

7.1.5.1 requires that any building or structure extending to a height of 110 metres or 
more above ground level (including construction cranes or other temporary equipment) 
must be notified to CASA. The Trustee shall supply details of the proposed height and 
position of any such building or structure to Gold Coast Airport Pty Ltd for consideration 
by aviation agencies.  

b. The CASA Manual of Standards (MOS) Part 139 - Aerodromes, Chapter 7, Sub-section 
7.1.5.2 provides that any structure extending to a height of 150 metres or more above 
ground level (including construction cranes or other temporary equipment) is to be 
regarded as an obstacle unless assessed by CASA to be otherwise. The Trustee shall 
supply details of the proposed height and position of any such building or structure to 
Gold Coast Airport Pty Ltd for consideration by aviation agencies.  
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D Greenhouse gas emissions 
 
As part of Council’s commitment to reducing greenhouse gas emissions Council is 
encouraging the expansion of the natural gas reticulation network. In particular, the use of 
natural gas hot water systems will result in significantly less greenhouse gas emissions than 
equivalent electric storage hot water systems.  
 
The Trustee should contact the local natural gas reticulator (APA Group) to arrange an 
assessment of the suitability of the proposed development for connection to the existing gas 
reticulation network. Please contact Ramon O’Keefe on 0438708798 or email: 
ramon.o’keefe@apa.com.au.  

E Indigenous cultural heritage legislation and duty of care requirement 
 
The Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 (AHCA) is administered by the Department of 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships (DATSIP). The AHCA establishes a duty 
of care to take all reasonable and practicable measures to ensure any activity does not 
harm Aboriginal cultural heritage. This duty of care:  
a. Is not negated by the issuing of this development approval;  
b. Applies on all land and water, including freehold land;  
c. Lies with the person or entity conducting an activity; and  
d. If breached, is subject to criminal offence penalties.  
 
Those proposing an activity involving surface disturbance beyond that which has already 
occurred at the proposed site must observe this duty of care.  
 
Details of how to fulfil this duty of care are outlined in the duty of care guidelines gazetted 
with the AHCA.  
 
The Trustee should contact DATSIP’s Cultural Heritage Unit on 1300 378 401 or 
cultural.heritage@datsip.qld.gov.au or further information on the responsibilities of 
developers under the AHCA.  

F Obligation to ensure electrical safety 
 
Under the Electrical Safety Act 2002 you have an obligation to ensure your business or 
undertaking is conducted in an electrically safe way, whether or not it is electrical work.  
 
If there is a reasonable likelihood that your work may cause a person, vehicle, operating 
plant or equipment to come into contact with an overhead electric line, you must consult 
with the person in control of powerlines.  
 
Persons, vehicles, operating plant or equipment must stay outside the defined exclusion 
zone applicable to the powerline.  
 
Information note:  
An exclusion zone sets the minimum safe approach distance to the powerline. Guidance on 
exclusion zones can be found in the Code of Practice - Working Near Exposed Live Parts 
issued by the Electrical Safety Office.  
 
For further information, including codes of practice and legislation, either check the 
Electrical Safety Office’s website  – www.worksafe.qld.gov.au/electricalsafety, or contact the 
Electrical Safety Office Info line – 1300 650 662.  

G Incorporation of Equitable Access at the Detailed Design Stage 
 
All public spaces and facilities within the development must provide equitable access, 
including continuous accessible paths of travel, in compliance with the Commonwealth 
Disability Discrimination Act (1992) and the Disability (Access to Premises – Buildings) 
Standards 2010.  
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H Trade Waste Approval 
 
A Trade Waste Approval is required for the discharge of trade waste to the sewer. The 
Trustee shall ensure that all discharges are in accordance with Gold Coast Water liquid 
waste requirements. Further information may be obtained from Gold Coast Water on 1300 
000 928.  

I Advice Note: Gold Coast Highway / Elizabeth Avenue 
 
The maximum green time on the western leg (new Jupiters access) of the Gold Coast 
Highway / Elizabeth Avenue will be limited to 12 seconds to minimise the development’s 
impact on the Gold Coast Highway through-traffic and light rail operation at the intersection.  
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ADVISORY NOTES: DTMR 
General Advice - Stage 1 
 
Ref: Public Passenger Transport: 
A Taxis 

 
The ‘porte cochere’ shown on Floor Plan Level 01 Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold 
Coast Consortium, Drawing No. SD1.2010.1 Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017should be 
designed and constructed to ensure that it is capable of accommodating at least one taxi 
suitable for use by people with disabilities in accordance with the following:  
• Disability Standards for Accessible Public Transport 2002 – subsection 31(1) of the 

Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth);  
• AS1428.1 – Design for Access and Mobility; and 
AS2890.6 – Parking Facilities, Part 6: Off-street parking for people with disabilities. 

B Private coaches/buses 
 
The coach parking in the ‘new hotel drop off and car park/driveway manoeuvring areas 
shown on Floor Plan –Level 01_Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold Coast Consortium, 
Drawing No. SD1.2010.1, Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017, should be designed to 
accommodate the maximum design vehicle anticipated on the development site. Advice is 
provided that single unit rigid buses of 14.5m in length are likely to access the site and the 
development should be designed to ensure that these vehicles can manoeuvre in forward 
gear at all times. The ’new hotel drop off’ should provide adequate setdown capacity for the 
anticipated demand for privately contracted buses, coaches, and shuttles/mini-buses. 

C Wayfinding/directional signage to public passenger transport 
 
Wayfinding and/or directional signage to public passenger transport (taxi facilities, bus stops 
and light rail stations) should be provided by the Trustee on and off the subject site. The 
Trustee should therefore install wayfinding signage throughout the development at key 
locations and along key pedestrian routes to direct pedestrians to nearby public passenger 
transport facilities, namely light rail station/s, bus stops and taxis. 
 
Please contact the Department of Transport and Main Roads’ TransLink Division on 
telephone number 07 3851 8700 or bus_stops@translink.com.au to discuss the location and 
provision of wayfinding/directional signage to public passenger transport as part of the 
detailed design process.  
 
Further guidance can be found in the Department of Transport and Main Roads Public 
Transport Infrastructure Manual 2015, Chapter 3 – Supporting access infrastructure 
(available at http://www.tmr.qld.gov.au/business-industry/Technical-standards-
publications/Public-transportinfrastructure-manuals.aspx) and requirements under Disability 
Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth). 

D Urban Bus Services  - Construction 
 
The existing bus routes 705 and N750 may be impacted on by the construction of Stage 1. 
Accordingly, if any temporary arrangements or adjustments to the existing bus route are 
required, the Trustee must reach agreement on suitable arrangements with the Department 
of Transport and Main Roads’ TransLink Division (07 3851 8700 or 
bus_stops@translink.com.au) prior to any construction or works commencing. 

General Advice – Plan of Development 
 
Ref: Public Passenger Transport:  
E Urban bus services 

 
Figure 20 – Vehicle Access of the Plan of Development, prepared by Urbis Pty Ltd, indicates 
that the staged development of the site will involve alterations to Casino Drive to 
accommodate ‘priority controlled T- junctions’. Casino Drive currently accommodates urban 
bus routes 705 and N750. The design of any roadworks along Casino Drive will need to 
ensure that an urban bus service can be accommodated, with no worsening of the current 
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situation. Consequently, the design of roadworks along Casino Drive should give 
consideration to the following.  
 
Traffic calming devices should not be incorporated into the design and construction of bus 
routes in accordance with Chapter 2 Planning and Design, Section 2.3.2 Bus Route 
Infrastructure of the Department of Transport and Main Roads’ TransLink Public Transport 
Infrastructure Manual 2015. The Public Transport Infrastructure Manual 2015 is available at: 
http://translink.com.au/abouttranslink/reports-and-publications. 
 
In the case where traffic calming devices are determined as being absolutely 
necessary, the Department of Transport and Main Roads’ TransLink Division should be 
consulted on the design and type of device proposed. Where road humps are installed 
on roads used for buses, the road humps should be designed in accordance with the Manual 
of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Guidance is available in the Manual of Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), Part 13: (1) Local Area Traffic Management, section 2.4 – 
Road Humps and (2) Supplement Part 13: Local Area Traffic Management – 2.4.2-1 Hump 
Profiles for Bus Routes. The Department of Transport and Main Roads’ TransLink Division 
can be contacted on 07 3851 8700 or bus_stops@translink.com.au. 
 
Although it is acknowledged that Casino Drive is not a public road reserve, further guidance 
on road design to accommodate buses can be obtained from the Schedule – Code for IDAS, 
Part 2 – Development Standards of the Transport Planning and Coordination Regulation 
2005 (www.legislation.qld.gov.au). Please be advised that traffic congestion along Casino 
Drive as a result of future development may undermine the efficiency of the existing bus 
route. 

F Taxis 
 
Any future development under the Plan of Development likely to generate taxi demand should 
give due consideration to the need to provide taxi parking facilities (taxi rank, drop-off/pick-up 
zone and/or porte cochere) with adequate capacity to accommodate this demand. In 
particular, this is an important consideration for uses such as short term visitor 
accommodation (Hotels) and entertainment precincts comprising bars/taverns, restaurants, 
theatres and the like. Please refer to Chapter 7 – Taxi Facilities of the Department of 
Transport and Main Roads’ TransLink Public Transport Infrastructure Manual 2015 available 
at: http://www.tmr.qld.gov.au/businessindustry/Technical-standards-publications/Public-
transport-infrastructure-manuals.aspx in relation to this matter. 

G Wayfinding/Directional Signage 
 
The Trustee should install wayfinding signage throughout the development at key locations 
and along key pedestrian routes to direct pedestrians to nearby public passenger transport 
facilities, namely light rail station/s, bus stops and taxis. 

H Private coaches/buses 
 
Any future development under the Plan of Development likely to generate demand for 
privately contracted buses, coaches and shuttles, should provide a suitably designed and 
located on-site setdown facility with appropriate capacity for the anticipated demand. The 
coach/bus setdown facilities and car park/driveway manoeuvring areas should be designed to 
accommodate the maximum design vehicle anticipated on the development site. Vehicles 
should be able to move in a forward direction at all times. 
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ADVISORY NOTES: MINISTERIAL 
A Further information regarding these conditions 

 
Further information regarding the context of the enclosed conditions can be obtained from 
the relevant detailed reports prepared by each of the involved public sector entities and as 
provided to the Trustee. Should there be a conflict between the contents of a report and the 
provisions of the enclosed conditions, the terms of the conditions will prevail unless 
otherwise expressly stated.  
 
The involved public sector entities are:  
• Council of the City of Gold Coast (Council) 
• Department of Transport and Main Roads (DTMR) 
• Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning (DILGP), coordinating the 

Department of Agriculture and Fisheries (DAF) and the Department of Environment and 
Heritage Protection (DEHP) 

• Department of Justice and Attorney-General, including the Office of Liquor and Gaming 
Regulation (OLGR).  
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

AMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

# Condition Timing 
GENERAL MATTERS 

1. 
 

Development to be generally in accordance with specified plans/drawings 
 
The development must be carried out generally in accordance with the plans/drawing 
prepared by Cottee Parker Architects listed below:  
 

# Plan no.  Rev.  Title Date 
1 SD1.1002 02 Site Plan 21/07/17 
2 SD1.2010 01 Floor Plan Level 00 21/07/17 
3 SD1.2010.1 03 Floor Plan Level 00 

Part 1 
21/07/17 

4 SD1.2010.2 03 Floor Plan Level 00 
Part 2 

21/07/17 

5 SD1.2011.M 03 Floor Plan Level 01M 21/07/17 
6 SD1.2012 03 Floor Plan Level 02 21/07/17 
7 SD1.2012.M 01 Floor Plan Level 02M 21/07/17 
8 SD1.2013 02 Floor Plan Level03 

Concourse 
21/07/17 

9 SD1.2014 03 Floor Plan Level 04 21/07/17 
10 SD1.2015 03 Floor Plan Level 05 21/07/17 
11 SD1.2016 03 Floor Plan Level 06 21/07/17 
12 SD1.2017 03 Floor Plan Level 07 21/07/17 
13 SD1.2018 02 Floor Plan Level 08 

Podium 
21/07/17 

14 SD1.2019 02 Floor Plan Level 9 21/07/17 
15 SD1.2033 02 Floor Plan Level 10-20 

Typical Hotel Floor 
21/07/17 

16 SD1.2035 04 Floor Plan Level 21 21/07/17 
17 SD1.2067 03 Floor Plan Level 22 

Rec Deck 
21/07/17 

18 SD1.2068 03 Floor Plan Level 23 21/07/17 
19 SD1.2071 02 Floor Plan Level 24-55 

Typical Apartment 
Floor 

21/07/17 

20 SD1.2072 01 Floor Plan Level 56 
Roof Deck 

21/07/17 

21 SD1.3001 04 Tower Elevations 21/07/17 
22 SD1.3002 04 Tower Elevations 21/07/17 
23 SD1.3003 03 Podium Elevations 21/07/17 
24 SD1.3004 03 Podium Elevations 21/07/17 
25 SD1.3101 02 Sections 21/07/17 
26 SD1.3102 02 Podium Sections 21/07/17 
27 SD1.3103 02 Podium Sections 21/07/17 
28 SD1.3107 02 Podium Section 

Through Facade 
21/07/17 

 
The conditions of this approval are to be read in conjunction with these plans. Where a 
conflict occurs between the conditions of this approval and the plans/drawings, the 
conditions of this approval shall take precedence.  
 
 
 

At all times. 
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# Condition Timing 
INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING CONTRIBUTIONS 

9. Infrastructure Contributions 
 
Pay to the Council of the City of Gold Coast (Council) a monetary contribution towards 
the cost of the provision of infrastructure in accordance with Council's Charges 
Resolution. 
 
The current applicable charge is: 
 
Total levied charge payable $8,554,032.90 

+ ANNUAL ADJUSTMENTS 
AND/OR REVIEWS 
 
The above charge will automatically increase by the lesser of the following: 
 
a. The difference between the levied charge and the maximum adopted charge the 

local government could have levied for the development when the charge is paid; 
and 

b. The increase for the PPI for the period starting on the day the levied charge was 
levied and ending on the day it is paid, adjusted by reference to the 3-yearly PPI 
average. 

 
‘3-yearly PPI average’ and ‘PPI’ have the meanings given in the Planning Act 2016. 
 
As the levied charge amount is current at the date of issue, the total charges due at the 
date of payment may be greater. 

Total payable prior to 
the use commencing, 
issue of certification 
of classification or 
final plumbing 
inspection, 
whichever occurs 
first.  

CAR PARKING AND ACCESS 
10. Off-street car parking facilities 

 
a. Off-street car parking facilities must be designed, constructed and maintained in 

accordance with AS2890.1 (latest version). 
b. Off-street facilities for car parking must only be used for vehicle parking.  
c. A minimum of 318 additional off-street car parking spaces must be provided on-site 

in an unbundled arrangement.  
d. Off-street car parking facilities must be drained and line marked.  
 
Information Note: Any unbundled car parking unsold to a residential carpark allocation 
can be made available for use by all other activities within the integrated resort 
complex (i.e residential apartments, hotel, casino and resort users). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

.  
 

 

   
  

 
. 

  
 

 

16. Bicycle parking  
 

a. Bicycle parking facilities must be provided to the satisfaction of the Minister, at no 
cost to Council and maintained in accordance with:  

i. a minimum of 106 x Class 2 bicycle parking spaces for residents; 
ii. a minimum of 36 x Class 3 bicycle parking spaces for visitors to be 

provided in a freely accessible location at ground level; and 
iii. AS2890.3.  

b. The bicycle parking spaces are to:  
i. enable wheels and frame to be located to the device without damaging the 

bicycle; 
ii. be located outside pedestrian movement paths; 
iii. be accessible from the road; 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

RTI 200256 File01 - Page 364



# Condition Timing 
iv. be arranged so that parking and unparking manoeuvres will not damage 

adjacent bicycles 
v. be protected from manoeuvring motor vehicles and opening car doors; 
vi. be as close as possible to the cyclists ultimate destination; 
vii. be well lit by appropriate existing or new lighting; and 
viii. be protected from the weather. 

HYDRAULICS 
39. Certification of earthworks compliance with hydraulic report 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister a certification from a 
Registered Professional Engineer Queensland (RPEQ) specialising in hydraulics 
stating that the bulk earthworks comply with the approved hydraulic report, being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Flooding and Hydraulics 
Impact Assessment Revision 05” (Report No: F0003-AA0090029-AAR dated 15 
September 2017prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd) and no loss of flood 
plain storage has occurred as a result of the earthworks. The certification must be 
accompanied by calculations and as constructed data that:  
 
a. includes existing and proposed triangulated surface meshes which can be 

produced by computer terrain modelling software packages such as Civil-Cad, 12D 
or KEAYS; and  

b. has been compared with the pre-development surface levels to ensure that no loss 
of floodplain storage has occurred.   

The certification must 
be submitted to 
Council immediately 
after completion of 
the bulk earthworks.  

STORMWATER AND WATER QUALITY 
43. Stormwater management plan to be complied with 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialised in stormwater management confirming that all works have been carried out 
and completed in accordance with the approved stormwater management plan being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Site Based Stormwater 
Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 
prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacitic Pty Ltd).  
 
Information note: this condition is non-trunk infrastructure. 
 

The certification must 
be submitted prior to 
the commencement 
of the use of the 
premises. 

44 Certification that stormwater management treatment train implemented 
 
The Trustee must provide to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialising in stormwater that the stormwater management treatment train in the 
approved stormwater management plan, “Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 
Development, Site Based Stormwater Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: 
F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty 
Ltd), and associated design drawings has been installed on-site and is functioning as 
designed. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

  
 

 

45A Certification of performance of the treatment train 
 
The Trustee/owner must submit to Council and to the Minister certification signed by the 
qualified professional (RPEQ or equivalent) confirming the following: 
 
a. The proposed treatment train including the proprietary device will achieve pollutants 

removal efficiency to satisfy Council’s water quality objectives as outlined in the City 
Plan Policy - Land Development Guidelines.  

b. The signing person must acknowledge that he/she is aware that the Council of the 
City of Gold Coast relies upon his/her certification in approving the above stormwater 
management plan and associated treatment train including the proprietary device. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
works on-site.   
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# Condition Timing 
45B Monitoring of the proprietary treatment devices 

 
a. The Trustee/owner must carry out monitoring of the performance of the proprietary 

stormwater treatment devices as adopted in the approved stormwater management 
plan for two years at no cost to Council. Annual report of the monitoring and 
subsequent results shall be prepared by a suitably qualified professional (RPEQ or 
equivalent) specialised in stormwater and must be submitted to Council for record 
keeping purposes. 
 
Alternatively, the Trustee/owner shall submit a certification or endorsement letter 
from an independent expert / peer reviewer based on the testing / monitoring results 
of the proprietary devices confirming the performance of the devices in relation to 
Council’s adopted protocol (August 2015) requirements, to discontinue the ongoing 
monitoring. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

45C Maintenance of stormwater management devices 
 
a. Prior to commencement of the use of the premises, a site-specific stormwater quality 

improvement device (SQID) maintenance management plan (MMP) must be 
prepared by a suitably qualified professional, consistent with the maintenance 
requirements of the devices in the proposed treatment train, and submitted to 
Council in a satisfactory manner. The approved MMP must be included in the 
Trustee or Community Management Plan / Building Management Statement as 
required.  
 
The MMP must address the following: 
 
i. The MMP must include all associated cost related to the device (e.g. installation, 
inspection and replacement/maintenance, reporting, health and safety plans, 
training, area of land required to install the device etc.); 
ii. The MMP must include the lifecycle cost of the proposed treatment devices. 
 

b. The Trustee / legal authority must enter into a long-term maintenance agreement 
with the proprietor or an appropriate entity for the life of the development. A copy of 
the maintenance agreement must be submitted to council for record prior to 
commencement of the use of the premises; 
 

c. The Trustee / legal authority shall submit to Council certification from a RPEQ every 
year for the life of the development confirming that the cartridges have been replaced 
and functioning as designed. 

 
d. The Trustee / legal authority of the development shall be responsible for monitoring 

and maintaining the stormwater management devices during both construction and 
operational phases at no cost to the Council. 
 

e. In case of failure to achieve the designed pollutant load reduction target during the 
operational phase of the development, the Trustee / legal authority must be 
responsible to replace the proprietary device (Stormwater360 StormFilter 
Cartridges) with an appropriate treatment system in accordance with Council’s 
WSUD guidelines (Section 13 of the Land Development Guidelines) at no cost to 
Council. 

 
Advisory Note: Failure of achieving the water quality objectives during construction and 
operational phase of the development may trigger significant penalty under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1994. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

HEALTH AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
53. Waste Management Plan 

 
The development must be designed and constructed generally in accordance with the 
approved Waste Management Plan (WMP) prepared by Acardis dated 15 September 
2017 (Report No: AA009245-R01-05). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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# Condition Timing 
Any proposed changes to the approved WMP must be submitted to Council for review 
prior to the implementation of any proposed structural changes. 
 

54 Bulk bins – storage point – external 
 
The bulk bin storage points must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03). The design and construction of 
all storage points must comply with the following requirements:  
 
a. located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site; 
b. allow for at least an additional 0.5 metre clearance surrounding each container, or 

for the storage of multiple bins – one metre clearance around the combined bin 
area (whichever is the lesser); 

c. sufficiently screened to ensure bins are not visible from a public place or sensitive 
land use; 

d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. roofed and designed to prevent entry to rainwater; 
f. graded to fall to a drainage point within the storage point; 
g. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; and  
h. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

55. Waste storage room – design and construction 
 
The waste storage room must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 Part 
01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and constructed in 
accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. air-locked; 
b. fly and vermin proofed; 
c. used solely for the storage of waste; 
d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. graded to fall to a drainage point; 
f. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; 
g. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins; 
h. fire rated and ventilated in accordance with the National Construction Code – 

Building Code of Australia; 
i. the doors must be wide enough to allow for the easy removal of the largest container 

to be stored; 
j. the walls, ceiling, floor and equipment of each waste storage room must be designed 

and constructed of impervious material with a finish to allow for easy cleaning; 
k. adequate artificial lighting must be provided; and 
l. must permit unobstructed access for removal of the containers to the service point 

and for positioning of the containers correctly in relation to the waste chute. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

56. Bulk bins – servicing point 
 
The bulk bin servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
front-lift waste collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable), and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

b. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 
access, and any other similar areas. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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# Condition Timing 
c. Clear of speed control devices or similar provisions which inhibit direct access to the 

bins for servicing. 
d. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
e. Constructed hardstand with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent. 
f. Allow for at least an additional 0.5 metres clearance surrounding each container, or 

for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

g. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 
vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site.  

57. Ro-Ro Bins – storage & servicing point - undercover area 
 
The Ro-Ro bins storage / servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan 
Level 01 Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
b. Constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent that 

is of sufficient strength to support the loaded weight of the bin and the truck. 
c. Graded to fall to a drainage point/s, connected to sewer in accordance with trade 

waste requirements. 
d. Allow for at least an additional one (1) metre clearance surrounding each container, 

or for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

e. Allow additional space for compactor and bin-lifter equipment if applicable. 
f. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 

vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site. 
g. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 

access and other similar areas. 
h. Sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
waste bin collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable),and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

58. Waste chute – design and construction 
 
The waste chute must be located in accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 
2017 (Job No. 5370) and be designed and constructed in accordance with the following 
requirements:  
 
a. Adequate strength for its purpose, including additional reinforcing where necessary 

at joins, bends and hopper intersections. 
b. Insect and vermin proof. 
c. Constructed and installed to prevent the following during use and operation of the 

system: 
i. Transmission of vibration to the structure of the premises; 
ii. Excessive odour; and 
iii. Excessive noise to the occupants of the building. 

d. Installed in a fire rated duct and ventilated in compliance with building requirements 
of the National Construction Code – Building Code of Australia. 

e. Comply with the waste chute manufacturer’s technical specifications and /or 
operational limitations, including installation design features and ancillary equipment 
required to prevent blockages and noise disturbances. 

f. Fitted with a shutter at the base of the chute for closing off the chute manually during 
bin exchange and automatically in the case of fire. 
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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# Condition Timing 
59. Waste disposal points – design and construction 

 
A waste disposal point / hopper must be located on each residential floor in 
accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 5370), and be 
designed and constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located to ensure the handle of the hopper is at least 1200 millimetres above 

finished floor level. 
b. Hopper door must automatically return to the closed position after use. 
c. Designed to permit free flow of waste into the chute 
d. Constructed so that the diameter or largest dimension of the service opening (the 

diagonal of a rectangular opening) does not exceed three-quarters (3/4) of the 
diameter of the chute with which the hopper is connected 

e. The floor adjacent to the hopper to be constructed of a durable impervious material 
with a smooth finished surface 

Prior to occupation.  
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

ADVISORY NOTES 

ADVISORY NOTES: DTMR 
General Advice - Stage 1 
 
Ref: Public Passenger Transport: 
A Taxis 

The ‘porte cochere’ shown on Floor Plan Level 01 Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold 
Coast Consortium, Drawing No. SD1.2010.1 Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017should be 
designed and constructed to ensure that it is capable of accommodating at least one taxi 
suitable for use by people with disabilities in accordance with the following:  
• Disability Standards for Accessible Public Transport 2002 – subsection 31(1) of the 

Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth);  
• AS1428.1 – Design for Access and Mobility; and 
• AS2890.6 – Parking Facilities, Part 6: Off-street parking for people with disabilities. 

B Private coaches/buses 
 
The coach parking in the ‘new hotel drop off and car park/driveway manoeuvring areas shown 
on Floor Plan –Level 01_Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold Coast Consortium, Drawing 
No. SD1.2010.1, Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017, should be designed to accommodate the 
maximum design vehicle anticipated on the development site. Advice is provided that single 
unit rigid buses of 14.5m in length are likely to access the site and the development should be 
designed to ensure that these vehicles can manoeuvre in forward gear at all times. The ’new 
hotel drop off’ should provide adequate setdown capacity for the anticipated demand for 
privately contracted buses, coaches, and shuttles/mini-buses.  
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

AMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

# Condition Timing 
GENERAL MATTERS 

1. 
 

Development to be generally in accordance with specified plans/drawings 
 
The development must be carried out generally in accordance with the plans/drawing 
prepared by Cottee Parker Architects listed below:  
 

# Plan no.  Rev.  Title Date 
1 SD1.1002 02 Site Plan 21/07/17 
2 SD1.2010 01 Floor Plan Level 00 21/07/17 
3 SD1.2010.1 03 Floor Plan Level 00 

Part 1 
21/07/17 

4 SD1.2010.2 03 Floor Plan Level 00 
Part 2 

21/07/17 

5 SD1.2011.M 03 Floor Plan Level 01M 21/07/17 
6 SD1.2012 03 Floor Plan Level 02 21/07/17 
7 SD1.2012.M 01 Floor Plan Level 02M 21/07/17 
8 SD1.2013 02 Floor Plan Level03 

Concourse 
21/07/17 

9 SD1.2014 03 Floor Plan Level 04 21/07/17 
10 SD1.2015 03 Floor Plan Level 05 21/07/17 
11 SD1.2016 03 Floor Plan Level 06 21/07/17 
12 SD1.2017 03 Floor Plan Level 07 21/07/17 
13 SD1.2018 02 Floor Plan Level 08 

Podium 
21/07/17 

14 SD1.2019 02 Floor Plan Level 9 21/07/17 
15 SD1.2033 02 Floor Plan Level 10-20 

Typical Hotel Floor 
21/07/17 

16 SD1.2035 04 Floor Plan Level 21 21/07/17 
17 SD1.2067 03 Floor Plan Level 22 

Rec Deck 
21/07/17 

18 SD1.2068 03 Floor Plan Level 23 21/07/17 
19 SD1.2071 02 Floor Plan Level 24-55 

Typical Apartment 
Floor 

21/07/17 

20 SD1.2072 01 Floor Plan Level 56 
Roof Deck 

21/07/17 

21 SD1.3001 04 Tower Elevations 21/07/17 
22 SD1.3002 04 Tower Elevations 21/07/17 
23 SD1.3003 03 Podium Elevations 21/07/17 
24 SD1.3004 03 Podium Elevations 21/07/17 
25 SD1.3101 02 Sections 21/07/17 
26 SD1.3102 02 Podium Sections 21/07/17 
27 SD1.3103 02 Podium Sections 21/07/17 
28 SD1.3107 02 Podium Section 

Through Facade 
21/07/17 

 
The conditions of this approval are to be read in conjunction with these plans. Where a 
conflict occurs between the conditions of this approval and the plans/drawings, the 
conditions of this approval shall take precedence.  
 
 
 

At all times. 
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INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING CONTRIBUTIONS 

9. Infrastructure Contributions 
 
Pay to the Council of the City of Gold Coast (Council) a monetary contribution towards 
the cost of the provision of infrastructure in accordance with Council's Charges 
Resolution. 
 
The current applicable charge is: 
 
Total levied charge payable $8,554,032.90 

+ ANNUAL ADJUSTMENTS 
AND/OR REVIEWS 
 
The above charge will automatically increase by the lesser of the following: 
 
a. The difference between the levied charge and the maximum adopted charge the 

local government could have levied for the development when the charge is paid; 
and 

b. The increase for the PPI for the period starting on the day the levied charge was 
levied and ending on the day it is paid, adjusted by reference to the 3-yearly PPI 
average. 

 
‘3-yearly PPI average’ and ‘PPI’ have the meanings given in the Planning Act 2016. 
 
As the levied charge amount is current at the date of issue, the total charges due at the 
date of payment may be greater. 

Total payable prior to 
the use commencing, 
issue of certification 
of classification or 
final plumbing 
inspection, 
whichever occurs 
first.  

CAR PARKING AND ACCESS 
10. Off-street car parking facilities 

 
a. Off-street car parking facilities must be designed, constructed and maintained in 

accordance with AS2890.1 (latest version). 
b. Off-street facilities for car parking must only be used for vehicle parking.  
c. A minimum of 318 additional off-street car parking spaces must be provided on-site 

in an unbundled arrangement.  
d. Off-street car parking facilities must be drained and line marked.  
 
Information Note: Any unbundled car parking unsold to a residential carpark allocation 
can be made available for use by all other activities within the integrated resort 
complex (i.e residential apartments, hotel, casino and resort users). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

.  
 

 

   
  

 
. 

  
 

 

16. Bicycle parking  
 

a. Bicycle parking facilities must be provided to the satisfaction of the Minister, at no 
cost to Council and maintained in accordance with:  

i. a minimum of 106 x Class 2 bicycle parking spaces for residents; 
ii. a minimum of 36 x Class 3 bicycle parking spaces for visitors to be 

provided in a freely accessible location at ground level; and 
iii. AS2890.3.  

b. The bicycle parking spaces are to:  
i. enable wheels and frame to be located to the device without damaging the 

bicycle; 
ii. be located outside pedestrian movement paths; 
iii. be accessible from the road; 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  
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iv. be arranged so that parking and unparking manoeuvres will not damage 

adjacent bicycles 
v. be protected from manoeuvring motor vehicles and opening car doors; 
vi. be as close as possible to the cyclists ultimate destination; 
vii. be well lit by appropriate existing or new lighting; and 
viii. be protected from the weather. 

HYDRAULICS 
39. Certification of earthworks compliance with hydraulic report 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister a certification from a 
Registered Professional Engineer Queensland (RPEQ) specialising in hydraulics 
stating that the bulk earthworks comply with the approved hydraulic report, being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Flooding and Hydraulics 
Impact Assessment Revision 05” (Report No: F0003-AA0090029-AAR dated 15 
September 2017prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd) and no loss of flood 
plain storage has occurred as a result of the earthworks. The certification must be 
accompanied by calculations and as constructed data that:  
 
a. includes existing and proposed triangulated surface meshes which can be 

produced by computer terrain modelling software packages such as Civil-Cad, 12D 
or KEAYS; and  

b. has been compared with the pre-development surface levels to ensure that no loss 
of floodplain storage has occurred.   

The certification must 
be submitted to 
Council immediately 
after completion of 
the bulk earthworks.  

STORMWATER AND WATER QUALITY 
43. Stormwater management plan to be complied with 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialised in stormwater management confirming that all works have been carried out 
and completed in accordance with the approved stormwater management plan being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Site Based Stormwater 
Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 
prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacitic Pty Ltd).  
 
Information note: this condition is non-trunk infrastructure. 
 

The certification must 
be submitted prior to 
the commencement 
of the use of the 
premises. 

44 Certification that stormwater management treatment train implemented 
 
The Trustee must provide to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialising in stormwater that the stormwater management treatment train in the 
approved stormwater management plan, “Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 
Development, Site Based Stormwater Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: 
F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty 
Ltd), and associated design drawings has been installed on-site and is functioning as 
designed. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

  
 

 

45A Certification of performance of the treatment train 
 
The Trustee/owner must submit to Council and to the Minister certification signed by the 
qualified professional (RPEQ or equivalent) confirming the following: 
 
a. The proposed treatment train including the proprietary device will achieve pollutants 

removal efficiency to satisfy Council’s water quality objectives as outlined in the City 
Plan Policy - Land Development Guidelines.  

b. The signing person must acknowledge that he/she is aware that the Council of the 
City of Gold Coast relies upon his/her certification in approving the above stormwater 
management plan and associated treatment train including the proprietary device. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
works on-site.   
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45B Monitoring of the proprietary treatment devices 

 
a. The Trustee/owner must carry out monitoring of the performance of the proprietary 

stormwater treatment devices as adopted in the approved stormwater management 
plan for two years at no cost to Council. Annual report of the monitoring and 
subsequent results shall be prepared by a suitably qualified professional (RPEQ or 
equivalent) specialised in stormwater and must be submitted to Council for record 
keeping purposes. 
 
Alternatively, the Trustee/owner shall submit a certification or endorsement letter 
from an independent expert / peer reviewer based on the testing / monitoring results 
of the proprietary devices confirming the performance of the devices in relation to 
Council’s adopted protocol (August 2015) requirements, to discontinue the ongoing 
monitoring. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

45C Maintenance of stormwater management devices 
 
a. Prior to commencement of the use of the premises, a site-specific stormwater quality 

improvement device (SQID) maintenance management plan (MMP) must be 
prepared by a suitably qualified professional, consistent with the maintenance 
requirements of the devices in the proposed treatment train, and submitted to 
Council in a satisfactory manner. The approved MMP must be included in the 
Trustee or Community Management Plan / Building Management Statement as 
required.  
 
The MMP must address the following: 
 
i. The MMP must include all associated cost related to the device (e.g. installation, 
inspection and replacement/maintenance, reporting, health and safety plans, 
training, area of land required to install the device etc.); 
ii. The MMP must include the lifecycle cost of the proposed treatment devices. 
 

b. The Trustee / legal authority must enter into a long-term maintenance agreement 
with the proprietor or an appropriate entity for the life of the development. A copy of 
the maintenance agreement must be submitted to council for record prior to 
commencement of the use of the premises; 
 

c. The Trustee / legal authority shall submit to Council certification from a RPEQ every 
year for the life of the development confirming that the cartridges have been replaced 
and functioning as designed. 

 
d. The Trustee / legal authority of the development shall be responsible for monitoring 

and maintaining the stormwater management devices during both construction and 
operational phases at no cost to the Council. 
 

e. In case of failure to achieve the designed pollutant load reduction target during the 
operational phase of the development, the Trustee / legal authority must be 
responsible to replace the proprietary device (Stormwater360 StormFilter 
Cartridges) with an appropriate treatment system in accordance with Council’s 
WSUD guidelines (Section 13 of the Land Development Guidelines) at no cost to 
Council. 

 
Advisory Note: Failure of achieving the water quality objectives during construction and 
operational phase of the development may trigger significant penalty under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1994. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

HEALTH AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
53. Waste Management Plan 

 
The development must be designed and constructed generally in accordance with the 
approved Waste Management Plan (WMP) prepared by Acardis dated 15 September 
2017 (Report No: AA009245-R01-05). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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Any proposed changes to the approved WMP must be submitted to Council for review 
prior to the implementation of any proposed structural changes. 
 

54 Bulk bins – storage point – external 
 
The bulk bin storage points must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03). The design and construction of 
all storage points must comply with the following requirements:  
 
a. located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site; 
b. allow for at least an additional 0.5 metre clearance surrounding each container, or 

for the storage of multiple bins – one metre clearance around the combined bin 
area (whichever is the lesser); 

c. sufficiently screened to ensure bins are not visible from a public place or sensitive 
land use; 

d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. roofed and designed to prevent entry to rainwater; 
f. graded to fall to a drainage point within the storage point; 
g. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; and  
h. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

55. Waste storage room – design and construction 
 
The waste storage room must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 Part 
01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and constructed in 
accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. air-locked; 
b. fly and vermin proofed; 
c. used solely for the storage of waste; 
d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. graded to fall to a drainage point; 
f. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; 
g. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins; 
h. fire rated and ventilated in accordance with the National Construction Code – 

Building Code of Australia; 
i. the doors must be wide enough to allow for the easy removal of the largest container 

to be stored; 
j. the walls, ceiling, floor and equipment of each waste storage room must be designed 

and constructed of impervious material with a finish to allow for easy cleaning; 
k. adequate artificial lighting must be provided; and 
l. must permit unobstructed access for removal of the containers to the service point 

and for positioning of the containers correctly in relation to the waste chute. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

56. Bulk bins – servicing point 
 
The bulk bin servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
front-lift waste collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable), and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

b. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 
access, and any other similar areas. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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c. Clear of speed control devices or similar provisions which inhibit direct access to the 

bins for servicing. 
d. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
e. Constructed hardstand with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent. 
f. Allow for at least an additional 0.5 metres clearance surrounding each container, or 

for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

g. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 
vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site.  

57. Ro-Ro Bins – storage & servicing point - undercover area 
 
The Ro-Ro bins storage / servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan 
Level 01 Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
b. Constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent that 

is of sufficient strength to support the loaded weight of the bin and the truck. 
c. Graded to fall to a drainage point/s, connected to sewer in accordance with trade 

waste requirements. 
d. Allow for at least an additional one (1) metre clearance surrounding each container, 

or for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

e. Allow additional space for compactor and bin-lifter equipment if applicable. 
f. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 

vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site. 
g. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 

access and other similar areas. 
h. Sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
waste bin collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable),and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

58. Waste chute – design and construction 
 
The waste chute must be located in accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 
2017 (Job No. 5370) and be designed and constructed in accordance with the following 
requirements:  
 
a. Adequate strength for its purpose, including additional reinforcing where necessary 

at joins, bends and hopper intersections. 
b. Insect and vermin proof. 
c. Constructed and installed to prevent the following during use and operation of the 

system: 
i. Transmission of vibration to the structure of the premises; 
ii. Excessive odour; and 
iii. Excessive noise to the occupants of the building. 

d. Installed in a fire rated duct and ventilated in compliance with building requirements 
of the National Construction Code – Building Code of Australia. 

e. Comply with the waste chute manufacturer’s technical specifications and /or 
operational limitations, including installation design features and ancillary equipment 
required to prevent blockages and noise disturbances. 

f. Fitted with a shutter at the base of the chute for closing off the chute manually during 
bin exchange and automatically in the case of fire. 
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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59. Waste disposal points – design and construction 

 
A waste disposal point / hopper must be located on each residential floor in 
accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 5370), and be 
designed and constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located to ensure the handle of the hopper is at least 1200 millimetres above 

finished floor level. 
b. Hopper door must automatically return to the closed position after use. 
c. Designed to permit free flow of waste into the chute 
d. Constructed so that the diameter or largest dimension of the service opening (the 

diagonal of a rectangular opening) does not exceed three-quarters (3/4) of the 
diameter of the chute with which the hopper is connected 

e. The floor adjacent to the hopper to be constructed of a durable impervious material 
with a smooth finished surface 

Prior to occupation.  
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

ADVISORY NOTES 

ADVISORY NOTES: DTMR 
General Advice - Stage 1 
 
Ref: Public Passenger Transport: 
A Taxis 

The ‘porte cochere’ shown on Floor Plan Level 01 Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold 
Coast Consortium, Drawing No. SD1.2010.1 Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017should be 
designed and constructed to ensure that it is capable of accommodating at least one taxi 
suitable for use by people with disabilities in accordance with the following:  
• Disability Standards for Accessible Public Transport 2002 – subsection 31(1) of the 

Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth);  
• AS1428.1 – Design for Access and Mobility; and 
• AS2890.6 – Parking Facilities, Part 6: Off-street parking for people with disabilities. 

B Private coaches/buses 
 
The coach parking in the ‘new hotel drop off and car park/driveway manoeuvring areas shown 
on Floor Plan –Level 01_Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold Coast Consortium, Drawing 
No. SD1.2010.1, Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017, should be designed to accommodate the 
maximum design vehicle anticipated on the development site. Advice is provided that single 
unit rigid buses of 14.5m in length are likely to access the site and the development should be 
designed to ensure that these vehicles can manoeuvre in forward gear at all times. The ’new 
hotel drop off’ should provide adequate setdown capacity for the anticipated demand for 
privately contracted buses, coaches, and shuttles/mini-buses.  
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

AMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

# Condition Timing 
GENERAL MATTERS 

1. 
 

Development to be generally in accordance with specified plans/drawings 
 
The development must be carried out generally in accordance with the plans/drawing 
prepared by Cottee Parker Architects listed below:  
 

# Plan no.  Rev.  Title Date 
1 SD1.1002 02 Site Plan 21/07/17 
2 SD1.2010 01 Floor Plan Level 00 21/07/17 
3 SD1.2010.1 03 Floor Plan Level 00 

Part 1 
21/07/17 

4 SD1.2010.2 03 Floor Plan Level 00 
Part 2 

21/07/17 

5 SD1.2011.M 03 Floor Plan Level 01M 21/07/17 
6 SD1.2012 03 Floor Plan Level 02 21/07/17 
7 SD1.2012.M 01 Floor Plan Level 02M 21/07/17 
8 SD1.2013 02 Floor Plan Level03 

Concourse 
21/07/17 

9 SD1.2014 03 Floor Plan Level 04 21/07/17 
10 SD1.2015 03 Floor Plan Level 05 21/07/17 
11 SD1.2016 03 Floor Plan Level 06 21/07/17 
12 SD1.2017 03 Floor Plan Level 07 21/07/17 
13 SD1.2018 02 Floor Plan Level 08 

Podium 
21/07/17 

14 SD1.2019 02 Floor Plan Level 9 21/07/17 
15 SD1.2033 02 Floor Plan Level 10-20 

Typical Hotel Floor 
21/07/17 

16 SD1.2035 04 Floor Plan Level 21 21/07/17 
17 SD1.2067 03 Floor Plan Level 22 

Rec Deck 
21/07/17 

18 SD1.2068 03 Floor Plan Level 23 21/07/17 
19 SD1.2071 02 Floor Plan Level 24-55 

Typical Apartment 
Floor 

21/07/17 

20 SD1.2072 01 Floor Plan Level 56 
Roof Deck 

21/07/17 

21 SD1.3001 04 Tower Elevations 21/07/17 
22 SD1.3002 04 Tower Elevations 21/07/17 
23 SD1.3003 03 Podium Elevations 21/07/17 
24 SD1.3004 03 Podium Elevations 21/07/17 
25 SD1.3101 02 Sections 21/07/17 
26 SD1.3102 02 Podium Sections 21/07/17 
27 SD1.3103 02 Podium Sections 21/07/17 
28 SD1.3107 02 Podium Section 

Through Facade 
21/07/17 

 
The conditions of this approval are to be read in conjunction with these plans. Where a 
conflict occurs between the conditions of this approval and the plans/drawings, the 
conditions of this approval shall take precedence.  
 
 
 

At all times. 
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INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING CONTRIBUTIONS 

9. Infrastructure Contributions 
 
Pay to the Council of the City of Gold Coast (Council) a monetary contribution towards 
the cost of the provision of infrastructure in accordance with Council's Charges 
Resolution. 
 
The current applicable charge is: 
 
Total levied charge payable $8,554,032.90 

+ ANNUAL ADJUSTMENTS 
AND/OR REVIEWS 
 
The above charge will automatically increase by the lesser of the following: 
 
a. The difference between the levied charge and the maximum adopted charge the 

local government could have levied for the development when the charge is paid; 
and 

b. The increase for the PPI for the period starting on the day the levied charge was 
levied and ending on the day it is paid, adjusted by reference to the 3-yearly PPI 
average. 

 
‘3-yearly PPI average’ and ‘PPI’ have the meanings given in the Planning Act 2016. 
 
As the levied charge amount is current at the date of issue, the total charges due at the 
date of payment may be greater. 

Total payable prior to 
the use commencing, 
issue of certification 
of classification or 
final plumbing 
inspection, 
whichever occurs 
first.  

CAR PARKING AND ACCESS 
10. Off-street car parking facilities 

 
a. Off-street car parking facilities must be designed, constructed and maintained in 

accordance with AS2890.1 (latest version). 
b. Off-street facilities for car parking must only be used for vehicle parking.  
c. A minimum of 318 additional off-street car parking spaces must be provided on-site 

in an unbundled arrangement.  
d. Off-street car parking facilities must be drained and line marked.  
 
Information Note: Any unbundled car parking unsold to a residential carpark allocation 
can be made available for use by all other activities within the integrated resort 
complex (i.e residential apartments, hotel, casino and resort users). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

.  
 

 

   
  

 
. 

  
 

 

16. Bicycle parking  
 

a. Bicycle parking facilities must be provided to the satisfaction of the Minister, at no 
cost to Council and maintained in accordance with:  

i. a minimum of 106 x Class 2 bicycle parking spaces for residents; 
ii. a minimum of 36 x Class 3 bicycle parking spaces for visitors to be 

provided in a freely accessible location at ground level; and 
iii. AS2890.3.  

b. The bicycle parking spaces are to:  
i. enable wheels and frame to be located to the device without damaging the 

bicycle; 
ii. be located outside pedestrian movement paths; 
iii. be accessible from the road; 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  
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iv. be arranged so that parking and unparking manoeuvres will not damage 

adjacent bicycles 
v. be protected from manoeuvring motor vehicles and opening car doors; 
vi. be as close as possible to the cyclists ultimate destination; 
vii. be well lit by appropriate existing or new lighting; and 
viii. be protected from the weather. 

HYDRAULICS 
39. Certification of earthworks compliance with hydraulic report 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister a certification from a 
Registered Professional Engineer Queensland (RPEQ) specialising in hydraulics 
stating that the bulk earthworks comply with the approved hydraulic report, being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Flooding and Hydraulics 
Impact Assessment Revision 05” (Report No: F0003-AA0090029-AAR dated 15 
September 2017prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd) and no loss of flood 
plain storage has occurred as a result of the earthworks. The certification must be 
accompanied by calculations and as constructed data that:  
 
a. includes existing and proposed triangulated surface meshes which can be 

produced by computer terrain modelling software packages such as Civil-Cad, 12D 
or KEAYS; and  

b. has been compared with the pre-development surface levels to ensure that no loss 
of floodplain storage has occurred.   

The certification must 
be submitted to 
Council immediately 
after completion of 
the bulk earthworks.  

STORMWATER AND WATER QUALITY 
43. Stormwater management plan to be complied with 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialised in stormwater management confirming that all works have been carried out 
and completed in accordance with the approved stormwater management plan being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Site Based Stormwater 
Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 
prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacitic Pty Ltd).  
 
Information note: this condition is non-trunk infrastructure. 
 

The certification must 
be submitted prior to 
the commencement 
of the use of the 
premises. 

44 Certification that stormwater management treatment train implemented 
 
The Trustee must provide to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialising in stormwater that the stormwater management treatment train in the 
approved stormwater management plan, “Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 
Development, Site Based Stormwater Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: 
F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty 
Ltd), and associated design drawings has been installed on-site and is functioning as 
designed. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

  
 

 

45A Certification of performance of the treatment train 
 
The Trustee/owner must submit to Council and to the Minister certification signed by the 
qualified professional (RPEQ or equivalent) confirming the following: 
 
a. The proposed treatment train including the proprietary device will achieve pollutants 

removal efficiency to satisfy Council’s water quality objectives as outlined in the City 
Plan Policy - Land Development Guidelines.  

b. The signing person must acknowledge that he/she is aware that the Council of the 
City of Gold Coast relies upon his/her certification in approving the above stormwater 
management plan and associated treatment train including the proprietary device. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
works on-site.   
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45B Monitoring of the proprietary treatment devices 

 
a. The Trustee/owner must carry out monitoring of the performance of the proprietary 

stormwater treatment devices as adopted in the approved stormwater management 
plan for two years at no cost to Council. Annual report of the monitoring and 
subsequent results shall be prepared by a suitably qualified professional (RPEQ or 
equivalent) specialised in stormwater and must be submitted to Council for record 
keeping purposes. 
 
Alternatively, the Trustee/owner shall submit a certification or endorsement letter 
from an independent expert / peer reviewer based on the testing / monitoring results 
of the proprietary devices confirming the performance of the devices in relation to 
Council’s adopted protocol (August 2015) requirements, to discontinue the ongoing 
monitoring. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

45C Maintenance of stormwater management devices 
 
a. Prior to commencement of the use of the premises, a site-specific stormwater quality 

improvement device (SQID) maintenance management plan (MMP) must be 
prepared by a suitably qualified professional, consistent with the maintenance 
requirements of the devices in the proposed treatment train, and submitted to 
Council in a satisfactory manner. The approved MMP must be included in the 
Trustee or Community Management Plan / Building Management Statement as 
required.  
 
The MMP must address the following: 
 
i. The MMP must include all associated cost related to the device (e.g. installation, 
inspection and replacement/maintenance, reporting, health and safety plans, 
training, area of land required to install the device etc.); 
ii. The MMP must include the lifecycle cost of the proposed treatment devices. 
 

b. The Trustee / legal authority must enter into a long-term maintenance agreement 
with the proprietor or an appropriate entity for the life of the development. A copy of 
the maintenance agreement must be submitted to council for record prior to 
commencement of the use of the premises; 
 

c. The Trustee / legal authority shall submit to Council certification from a RPEQ every 
year for the life of the development confirming that the cartridges have been replaced 
and functioning as designed. 

 
d. The Trustee / legal authority of the development shall be responsible for monitoring 

and maintaining the stormwater management devices during both construction and 
operational phases at no cost to the Council. 
 

e. In case of failure to achieve the designed pollutant load reduction target during the 
operational phase of the development, the Trustee / legal authority must be 
responsible to replace the proprietary device (Stormwater360 StormFilter 
Cartridges) with an appropriate treatment system in accordance with Council’s 
WSUD guidelines (Section 13 of the Land Development Guidelines) at no cost to 
Council. 

 
Advisory Note: Failure of achieving the water quality objectives during construction and 
operational phase of the development may trigger significant penalty under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1994. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

HEALTH AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
53. Waste Management Plan 

 
The development must be designed and constructed generally in accordance with the 
approved Waste Management Plan (WMP) prepared by Acardis dated 15 September 
2017 (Report No: AA009245-R01-05). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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Any proposed changes to the approved WMP must be submitted to Council for review 
prior to the implementation of any proposed structural changes. 
 

54 Bulk bins – storage point – external 
 
The bulk bin storage points must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03). The design and construction of 
all storage points must comply with the following requirements:  
 
a. located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site; 
b. allow for at least an additional 0.5 metre clearance surrounding each container, or 

for the storage of multiple bins – one metre clearance around the combined bin 
area (whichever is the lesser); 

c. sufficiently screened to ensure bins are not visible from a public place or sensitive 
land use; 

d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. roofed and designed to prevent entry to rainwater; 
f. graded to fall to a drainage point within the storage point; 
g. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; and  
h. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

55. Waste storage room – design and construction 
 
The waste storage room must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 Part 
01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and constructed in 
accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. air-locked; 
b. fly and vermin proofed; 
c. used solely for the storage of waste; 
d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. graded to fall to a drainage point; 
f. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; 
g. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins; 
h. fire rated and ventilated in accordance with the National Construction Code – 

Building Code of Australia; 
i. the doors must be wide enough to allow for the easy removal of the largest container 

to be stored; 
j. the walls, ceiling, floor and equipment of each waste storage room must be designed 

and constructed of impervious material with a finish to allow for easy cleaning; 
k. adequate artificial lighting must be provided; and 
l. must permit unobstructed access for removal of the containers to the service point 

and for positioning of the containers correctly in relation to the waste chute. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

56. Bulk bins – servicing point 
 
The bulk bin servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
front-lift waste collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable), and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

b. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 
access, and any other similar areas. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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c. Clear of speed control devices or similar provisions which inhibit direct access to the 

bins for servicing. 
d. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
e. Constructed hardstand with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent. 
f. Allow for at least an additional 0.5 metres clearance surrounding each container, or 

for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

g. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 
vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site.  

57. Ro-Ro Bins – storage & servicing point - undercover area 
 
The Ro-Ro bins storage / servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan 
Level 01 Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
b. Constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent that 

is of sufficient strength to support the loaded weight of the bin and the truck. 
c. Graded to fall to a drainage point/s, connected to sewer in accordance with trade 

waste requirements. 
d. Allow for at least an additional one (1) metre clearance surrounding each container, 

or for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

e. Allow additional space for compactor and bin-lifter equipment if applicable. 
f. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 

vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site. 
g. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 

access and other similar areas. 
h. Sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
waste bin collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable),and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

58. Waste chute – design and construction 
 
The waste chute must be located in accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 
2017 (Job No. 5370) and be designed and constructed in accordance with the following 
requirements:  
 
a. Adequate strength for its purpose, including additional reinforcing where necessary 

at joins, bends and hopper intersections. 
b. Insect and vermin proof. 
c. Constructed and installed to prevent the following during use and operation of the 

system: 
i. Transmission of vibration to the structure of the premises; 
ii. Excessive odour; and 
iii. Excessive noise to the occupants of the building. 

d. Installed in a fire rated duct and ventilated in compliance with building requirements 
of the National Construction Code – Building Code of Australia. 

e. Comply with the waste chute manufacturer’s technical specifications and /or 
operational limitations, including installation design features and ancillary equipment 
required to prevent blockages and noise disturbances. 

f. Fitted with a shutter at the base of the chute for closing off the chute manually during 
bin exchange and automatically in the case of fire. 
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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59. Waste disposal points – design and construction 

 
A waste disposal point / hopper must be located on each residential floor in 
accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 5370), and be 
designed and constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located to ensure the handle of the hopper is at least 1200 millimetres above 

finished floor level. 
b. Hopper door must automatically return to the closed position after use. 
c. Designed to permit free flow of waste into the chute 
d. Constructed so that the diameter or largest dimension of the service opening (the 

diagonal of a rectangular opening) does not exceed three-quarters (3/4) of the 
diameter of the chute with which the hopper is connected 

e. The floor adjacent to the hopper to be constructed of a durable impervious material 
with a smooth finished surface 

Prior to occupation.  
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

ADVISORY NOTES 

ADVISORY NOTES: DTMR 
General Advice - Stage 1 
 
Ref: Public Passenger Transport: 
A Taxis 

The ‘porte cochere’ shown on Floor Plan Level 01 Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold 
Coast Consortium, Drawing No. SD1.2010.1 Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017should be 
designed and constructed to ensure that it is capable of accommodating at least one taxi 
suitable for use by people with disabilities in accordance with the following:  
• Disability Standards for Accessible Public Transport 2002 – subsection 31(1) of the 

Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth);  
• AS1428.1 – Design for Access and Mobility; and 
• AS2890.6 – Parking Facilities, Part 6: Off-street parking for people with disabilities. 

B Private coaches/buses 
 
The coach parking in the ‘new hotel drop off and car park/driveway manoeuvring areas shown 
on Floor Plan –Level 01_Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold Coast Consortium, Drawing 
No. SD1.2010.1, Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017, should be designed to accommodate the 
maximum design vehicle anticipated on the development site. Advice is provided that single 
unit rigid buses of 14.5m in length are likely to access the site and the development should be 
designed to ensure that these vehicles can manoeuvre in forward gear at all times. The ’new 
hotel drop off’ should provide adequate setdown capacity for the anticipated demand for 
privately contracted buses, coaches, and shuttles/mini-buses.  
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

AMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

# Condition Timing 
GENERAL MATTERS 

1. 
 

Development to be generally in accordance with specified plans/drawings 
 
The development must be carried out generally in accordance with the plans/drawing 
prepared by Cottee Parker Architects listed below:  
 

# Plan no.  Rev.  Title Date 
1 SD1.1002 02 Site Plan 21/07/17 
2 SD1.2010 01 Floor Plan Level 00 21/07/17 
3 SD1.2010.1 03 Floor Plan Level 00 

Part 1 
21/07/17 

4 SD1.2010.2 03 Floor Plan Level 00 
Part 2 

21/07/17 

5 SD1.2011.M 03 Floor Plan Level 01M 21/07/17 
6 SD1.2012 03 Floor Plan Level 02 21/07/17 
7 SD1.2012.M 01 Floor Plan Level 02M 21/07/17 
8 SD1.2013 02 Floor Plan Level03 

Concourse 
21/07/17 

9 SD1.2014 03 Floor Plan Level 04 21/07/17 
10 SD1.2015 03 Floor Plan Level 05 21/07/17 
11 SD1.2016 03 Floor Plan Level 06 21/07/17 
12 SD1.2017 03 Floor Plan Level 07 21/07/17 
13 SD1.2018 02 Floor Plan Level 08 

Podium 
21/07/17 

14 SD1.2019 02 Floor Plan Level 9 21/07/17 
15 SD1.2033 02 Floor Plan Level 10-20 

Typical Hotel Floor 
21/07/17 

16 SD1.2035 04 Floor Plan Level 21 21/07/17 
17 SD1.2067 03 Floor Plan Level 22 

Rec Deck 
21/07/17 

18 SD1.2068 03 Floor Plan Level 23 21/07/17 
19 SD1.2071 02 Floor Plan Level 24-55 

Typical Apartment 
Floor 

21/07/17 

20 SD1.2072 01 Floor Plan Level 56 
Roof Deck 

21/07/17 

21 SD1.3001 04 Tower Elevations 21/07/17 
22 SD1.3002 04 Tower Elevations 21/07/17 
23 SD1.3003 03 Podium Elevations 21/07/17 
24 SD1.3004 03 Podium Elevations 21/07/17 
25 SD1.3101 02 Sections 21/07/17 
26 SD1.3102 02 Podium Sections 21/07/17 
27 SD1.3103 02 Podium Sections 21/07/17 
28 SD1.3107 02 Podium Section 

Through Facade 
21/07/17 

 
The conditions of this approval are to be read in conjunction with these plans. Where a 
conflict occurs between the conditions of this approval and the plans/drawings, the 
conditions of this approval shall take precedence.  
 
 
 

At all times. 

RTI 200256 File01 - Page 390



# Condition Timing 
INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING CONTRIBUTIONS 

9. Infrastructure Contributions 
 
Pay to the Council of the City of Gold Coast (Council) a monetary contribution towards 
the cost of the provision of infrastructure in accordance with Council's Charges 
Resolution. 
 
The current applicable charge is: 
 
Total levied charge payable $8,554,032.90 

+ ANNUAL ADJUSTMENTS 
AND/OR REVIEWS 
 
The above charge will automatically increase by the lesser of the following: 
 
a. The difference between the levied charge and the maximum adopted charge the 

local government could have levied for the development when the charge is paid; 
and 

b. The increase for the PPI for the period starting on the day the levied charge was 
levied and ending on the day it is paid, adjusted by reference to the 3-yearly PPI 
average. 

 
‘3-yearly PPI average’ and ‘PPI’ have the meanings given in the Planning Act 2016. 
 
As the levied charge amount is current at the date of issue, the total charges due at the 
date of payment may be greater. 

Total payable prior to 
the use commencing, 
issue of certification 
of classification or 
final plumbing 
inspection, 
whichever occurs 
first.  

CAR PARKING AND ACCESS 
10. Off-street car parking facilities 

 
a. Off-street car parking facilities must be designed, constructed and maintained in 

accordance with AS2890.1 (latest version). 
b. Off-street facilities for car parking must only be used for vehicle parking.  
c. A minimum of 318 additional off-street car parking spaces must be provided on-site 

in an unbundled arrangement.  
d. Off-street car parking facilities must be drained and line marked.  
 
Information Note: Any unbundled car parking unsold to a residential carpark allocation 
can be made available for use by all other activities within the integrated resort 
complex (i.e residential apartments, hotel, casino and resort users). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  

.  
 

 

   
  

 
. 

  
 

 

16. Bicycle parking  
 

a. Bicycle parking facilities must be provided to the satisfaction of the Minister, at no 
cost to Council and maintained in accordance with:  

i. a minimum of 106 x Class 2 bicycle parking spaces for residents; 
ii. a minimum of 36 x Class 3 bicycle parking spaces for visitors to be 

provided in a freely accessible location at ground level; and 
iii. AS2890.3.  

b. The bicycle parking spaces are to:  
i. enable wheels and frame to be located to the device without damaging the 

bicycle; 
ii. be located outside pedestrian movement paths; 
iii. be accessible from the road; 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use and at all 
times.  
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iv. be arranged so that parking and unparking manoeuvres will not damage 

adjacent bicycles 
v. be protected from manoeuvring motor vehicles and opening car doors; 
vi. be as close as possible to the cyclists ultimate destination; 
vii. be well lit by appropriate existing or new lighting; and 
viii. be protected from the weather. 

HYDRAULICS 
39. Certification of earthworks compliance with hydraulic report 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister a certification from a 
Registered Professional Engineer Queensland (RPEQ) specialising in hydraulics 
stating that the bulk earthworks comply with the approved hydraulic report, being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Flooding and Hydraulics 
Impact Assessment Revision 05” (Report No: F0003-AA0090029-AAR dated 15 
September 2017prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd) and no loss of flood 
plain storage has occurred as a result of the earthworks. The certification must be 
accompanied by calculations and as constructed data that:  
 
a. includes existing and proposed triangulated surface meshes which can be 

produced by computer terrain modelling software packages such as Civil-Cad, 12D 
or KEAYS; and  

b. has been compared with the pre-development surface levels to ensure that no loss 
of floodplain storage has occurred.   

The certification must 
be submitted to 
Council immediately 
after completion of 
the bulk earthworks.  

STORMWATER AND WATER QUALITY 
43. Stormwater management plan to be complied with 

 
The Trustee must submit to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialised in stormwater management confirming that all works have been carried out 
and completed in accordance with the approved stormwater management plan being 
“Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 Development, Site Based Stormwater 
Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 
prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacitic Pty Ltd).  
 
Information note: this condition is non-trunk infrastructure. 
 

The certification must 
be submitted prior to 
the commencement 
of the use of the 
premises. 

44 Certification that stormwater management treatment train implemented 
 
The Trustee must provide to Council and to the Minister certification from a RPEQ 
specialising in stormwater that the stormwater management treatment train in the 
approved stormwater management plan, “Destination Gold Coast Consortium – Stage 1 
Development, Site Based Stormwater Management Plan Revision 05 (Report No: 
F0009-AA0090029-AAR dated 15/09/2017 prepared by Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty 
Ltd), and associated design drawings has been installed on-site and is functioning as 
designed. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use of the 
premises.  

  
 

 

45A Certification of performance of the treatment train 
 
The Trustee/owner must submit to Council and to the Minister certification signed by the 
qualified professional (RPEQ or equivalent) confirming the following: 
 
a. The proposed treatment train including the proprietary device will achieve pollutants 

removal efficiency to satisfy Council’s water quality objectives as outlined in the City 
Plan Policy - Land Development Guidelines.  

b. The signing person must acknowledge that he/she is aware that the Council of the 
City of Gold Coast relies upon his/her certification in approving the above stormwater 
management plan and associated treatment train including the proprietary device. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
works on-site.   
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45B Monitoring of the proprietary treatment devices 

 
a. The Trustee/owner must carry out monitoring of the performance of the proprietary 

stormwater treatment devices as adopted in the approved stormwater management 
plan for two years at no cost to Council. Annual report of the monitoring and 
subsequent results shall be prepared by a suitably qualified professional (RPEQ or 
equivalent) specialised in stormwater and must be submitted to Council for record 
keeping purposes. 
 
Alternatively, the Trustee/owner shall submit a certification or endorsement letter 
from an independent expert / peer reviewer based on the testing / monitoring results 
of the proprietary devices confirming the performance of the devices in relation to 
Council’s adopted protocol (August 2015) requirements, to discontinue the ongoing 
monitoring. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

45C Maintenance of stormwater management devices 
 
a. Prior to commencement of the use of the premises, a site-specific stormwater quality 

improvement device (SQID) maintenance management plan (MMP) must be 
prepared by a suitably qualified professional, consistent with the maintenance 
requirements of the devices in the proposed treatment train, and submitted to 
Council in a satisfactory manner. The approved MMP must be included in the 
Trustee or Community Management Plan / Building Management Statement as 
required.  
 
The MMP must address the following: 
 
i. The MMP must include all associated cost related to the device (e.g. installation, 
inspection and replacement/maintenance, reporting, health and safety plans, 
training, area of land required to install the device etc.); 
ii. The MMP must include the lifecycle cost of the proposed treatment devices. 
 

b. The Trustee / legal authority must enter into a long-term maintenance agreement 
with the proprietor or an appropriate entity for the life of the development. A copy of 
the maintenance agreement must be submitted to council for record prior to 
commencement of the use of the premises; 
 

c. The Trustee / legal authority shall submit to Council certification from a RPEQ every 
year for the life of the development confirming that the cartridges have been replaced 
and functioning as designed. 

 
d. The Trustee / legal authority of the development shall be responsible for monitoring 

and maintaining the stormwater management devices during both construction and 
operational phases at no cost to the Council. 
 

e. In case of failure to achieve the designed pollutant load reduction target during the 
operational phase of the development, the Trustee / legal authority must be 
responsible to replace the proprietary device (Stormwater360 StormFilter 
Cartridges) with an appropriate treatment system in accordance with Council’s 
WSUD guidelines (Section 13 of the Land Development Guidelines) at no cost to 
Council. 

 
Advisory Note: Failure of achieving the water quality objectives during construction and 
operational phase of the development may trigger significant penalty under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1994. 

As indicated within 
the wording of the 
condition. 

HEALTH AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
53. Waste Management Plan 

 
The development must be designed and constructed generally in accordance with the 
approved Waste Management Plan (WMP) prepared by Acardis dated 15 September 
2017 (Report No: AA009245-R01-05). 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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Any proposed changes to the approved WMP must be submitted to Council for review 
prior to the implementation of any proposed structural changes. 
 

54 Bulk bins – storage point – external 
 
The bulk bin storage points must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03). The design and construction of 
all storage points must comply with the following requirements:  
 
a. located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site; 
b. allow for at least an additional 0.5 metre clearance surrounding each container, or 

for the storage of multiple bins – one metre clearance around the combined bin 
area (whichever is the lesser); 

c. sufficiently screened to ensure bins are not visible from a public place or sensitive 
land use; 

d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. roofed and designed to prevent entry to rainwater; 
f. graded to fall to a drainage point within the storage point; 
g. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; and  
h. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

55. Waste storage room – design and construction 
 
The waste storage room must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 Part 
01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and constructed in 
accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. air-locked; 
b. fly and vermin proofed; 
c. used solely for the storage of waste; 
d. constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent; 
e. graded to fall to a drainage point; 
f. drainage point to be connected to sewer in accordance with trade waste 

requirements; 
g. provided with a hosecock for cleaning the bins; 
h. fire rated and ventilated in accordance with the National Construction Code – 

Building Code of Australia; 
i. the doors must be wide enough to allow for the easy removal of the largest container 

to be stored; 
j. the walls, ceiling, floor and equipment of each waste storage room must be designed 

and constructed of impervious material with a finish to allow for easy cleaning; 
k. adequate artificial lighting must be provided; and 
l. must permit unobstructed access for removal of the containers to the service point 

and for positioning of the containers correctly in relation to the waste chute. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

56. Bulk bins – servicing point 
 
The bulk bin servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan – Level 01 
Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
front-lift waste collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable), and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

b. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 
access, and any other similar areas. 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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c. Clear of speed control devices or similar provisions which inhibit direct access to the 

bins for servicing. 
d. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
e. Constructed hardstand with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent. 
f. Allow for at least an additional 0.5 metres clearance surrounding each container, or 

for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

g. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 
vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site.  

57. Ro-Ro Bins – storage & servicing point - undercover area 
 
The Ro-Ro bins storage / servicing point must be located in accordance with Floor Plan 
Level 01 Part 01 dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 175075 Issue 03), and be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located at least five (5) metres from any door, window or fresh air intake within the 

development or any adjoining site. 
b. Constructed hardstand area with a solid concrete base or acceptable equivalent that 

is of sufficient strength to support the loaded weight of the bin and the truck. 
c. Graded to fall to a drainage point/s, connected to sewer in accordance with trade 

waste requirements. 
d. Allow for at least an additional one (1) metre clearance surrounding each container, 

or for multiple bins, one (1) metre clearance around the combined multiple bin area, 
whichever is the lesser. 

e. Allow additional space for compactor and bin-lifter equipment if applicable. 
f. Screened to minimise the view of bins from neighbouring properties, or passing 

vehicles and pedestrian traffic external to the site. 
g. Clearly separated from car parking bays, loading bays, footpaths and pedestrian 

access and other similar areas. 
h. Sufficient access and clearance for the waste collection vehicles to service the bins, 

including adequate unobstructed overhead space for the swinging arm action of the 
waste bin collection vehicle, taking into consideration: 
i. the waste collection vehicle operating dimensions,  
ii. additional clearance for services and fixtures (eg. pipes, air conditioning 

ducts etc if applicable),and 
iii. additional clearance for roadway gradient (if applicable).  

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  

58. Waste chute – design and construction 
 
The waste chute must be located in accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 
2017 (Job No. 5370) and be designed and constructed in accordance with the following 
requirements:  
 
a. Adequate strength for its purpose, including additional reinforcing where necessary 

at joins, bends and hopper intersections. 
b. Insect and vermin proof. 
c. Constructed and installed to prevent the following during use and operation of the 

system: 
i. Transmission of vibration to the structure of the premises; 
ii. Excessive odour; and 
iii. Excessive noise to the occupants of the building. 

d. Installed in a fire rated duct and ventilated in compliance with building requirements 
of the National Construction Code – Building Code of Australia. 

e. Comply with the waste chute manufacturer’s technical specifications and /or 
operational limitations, including installation design features and ancillary equipment 
required to prevent blockages and noise disturbances. 

f. Fitted with a shutter at the base of the chute for closing off the chute manually during 
bin exchange and automatically in the case of fire. 
 

Prior to the 
commencement of 
the use.  
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59. Waste disposal points – design and construction 

 
A waste disposal point / hopper must be located on each residential floor in 
accordance with the approved plans dated 21 July 2017 (Job No. 5370), and be 
designed and constructed in accordance with the following requirements:  
 
a. Located to ensure the handle of the hopper is at least 1200 millimetres above 

finished floor level. 
b. Hopper door must automatically return to the closed position after use. 
c. Designed to permit free flow of waste into the chute 
d. Constructed so that the diameter or largest dimension of the service opening (the 

diagonal of a rectangular opening) does not exceed three-quarters (3/4) of the 
diameter of the chute with which the hopper is connected 

e. The floor adjacent to the hopper to be constructed of a durable impervious material 
with a smooth finished surface 

Prior to occupation.  
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JUPITERS REDEVELOPMENT STAGE 1 

ADVISORY NOTES 

ADVISORY NOTES: DTMR 
General Advice - Stage 1 
 
Ref: Public Passenger Transport: 
A Taxis 

The ‘porte cochere’ shown on Floor Plan Level 01 Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold 
Coast Consortium, Drawing No. SD1.2010.1 Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017should be 
designed and constructed to ensure that it is capable of accommodating at least one taxi 
suitable for use by people with disabilities in accordance with the following:  
• Disability Standards for Accessible Public Transport 2002 – subsection 31(1) of the 

Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth);  
• AS1428.1 – Design for Access and Mobility; and 
• AS2890.6 – Parking Facilities, Part 6: Off-street parking for people with disabilities. 

B Private coaches/buses 
 
The coach parking in the ‘new hotel drop off and car park/driveway manoeuvring areas shown 
on Floor Plan –Level 01_Part 01, prepared by Destination Gold Coast Consortium, Drawing 
No. SD1.2010.1, Issue 03 and dated 21 July 2017, should be designed to accommodate the 
maximum design vehicle anticipated on the development site. Advice is provided that single 
unit rigid buses of 14.5m in length are likely to access the site and the development should be 
designed to ensure that these vehicles can manoeuvre in forward gear at all times. The ’new 
hotel drop off’ should provide adequate setdown capacity for the anticipated demand for 
privately contracted buses, coaches, and shuttles/mini-buses.  
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